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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

For and on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”]) of
Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”],
| am pleased to present the Annual Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Although the property management market in
Mainland China is currently quite fragmented, we
delivered solid results in year 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s 2017 audited profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to RMB90.5 million (2016:
loss amounted to RMBé.4 million), an increase of
1,518.6% as compared to 2016. This was mainly due
to (i) the growth in property management business
revenue from RMB626.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to RMB977.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017,representing an increase
of RMB350.4 million, or 55.9%; [ii) increased average
price per revenue-bearing gross floor area (“GFA”")
from RMB1.76/sq.m./month as of 31 December 2016
to RMB1.81/sq.m./month as of 31 December 2017;
and [iii) significant decrease in net loss incurred for
the 020 business from RMB50.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to RMB4.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Earnings per share
was RMBO0.113 (2016: loss per share of RMB0.008]).

HEHHBRR :

AABRERAPBIREBERQAR ([ARF] - EF
HWBARIAEBDESR((EZ]  SBIEE)) g
(EF2)REARNEE2017F12A31B ILFE
RF R ©

FEAMAOYEEETSENEED B BERMAN
2017FNEIHEEESE -

5t %5 2] e

NEB0M7TFRREGEEZFBAEARKLH
BT (2016%F : [FIEARBLAEITT) » 8201645 1%
1,518.6% - L F BN EE R EBKRERESE
2016F12ANBEFEMARK269BETIERE
HE2017TF12ANBLFEMARKEI77IIAE T
T ARM350.45H & L 5K55.9% ; (i) FFHE W=
EEBE((Z2EEE]) MFEHERB2016F12A31
BREASFEHKAREI.76TIEINZE2017512F31
BB ABFEAKARKEL81IT + Klii) 020 AT
BEEEEAEE2016F12A3BILFENARE
50.2E B TBEERVEFHE2017F12A31HILEERD
ARELIBETL - SREFAARE01137T (2016
F BB AR0.0087T) °
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DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil] to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 4 June 2018,
making the total dividend payment of approximately
HK$40.6 million.

OPERATION REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property
management company in China. In 2017, the
Group was rated among the Best 10 of property
management enterprises in China in terms of the
overall strength by China Real Estate Association
(FEEHE %1% E), Shanghai E-house China R&D
Institute (385 E B E %K) and China Real
Estate Appraisal Centre (F7 B 55 2 B 7F 2 0).

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had expanded
its presence to 43 cities in China where it was
contracted to manage a total of 500 residential
properties and non-residential premises such
as commercial or government buildings with an
aggregate contracted GFA of 66.7 million square
meters (“sq.m.”). This represented an increase of
11.2% compared to the aggregate contracted GFA
of 60.0 million sq.m. as of 31 December 2016. In
relation to the delivered GFA of 54.6 million sg.m.
in 2017, the increase represented a growth of 22.4%
compared to the delivered GFA of 44.6 million sq.m.
as of 31 December 2016.

In 2017, the Group further acquired 7.5%
equity interest in Zhejiang Yongcheng Property
Management Company Limited U I kK D EE
AR AF]) and acquired 100% equity interest
in Cenxi Hongtu Property Management Company
Limited (X m Bzl EEER QA at total
consideration in form of cash of RMB22.5 million
and RMB6.0 million respectively. Those acquisition
provided a stable and healthy growth of the Group's
business.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESR

g

EEeBEARETEE2017E12A31B EEE RN
REAR B G IR5.058 10 (20164 : &) T2018F6 H4H
ZHNARARBRRLZMAMAE - Bk 5 SEEAL0.68
BB o

e

AEBRPEELBIMREERAQR - R2017F &
SEETBEEHERZHE  LESEFRMEMNER
EtBEEMERNFFLFSTENEERLERS
Ehtwme

M2017F12A318  AEBEKEHREZE F B4
W BTHEEAS HS00EEEWERIEFEWE (I
FRASRRTET)  BANEEMB ARG TEEFH
KFEFK]D  E2016F12A3MBNBEEHEER
260.08 B 5 KL IN11.2% - BEE2017E 2 X &
HEHEE AN BEBFEF K R2016F12A3MAHNER
NBREMELL6BBEF K 18K22.4% -

R2017F - AEBE-TRBH T KXY EEEER
RARMTS%RER KBS EMBEENEEEAR
NAEEI00%AHE  RRED R REE ARKE25H
BETRARBOBE T ZFZUBRAKEXRKIER
HTREER -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESR e

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain
its own advantage as an independent property
management company, competing with counterparts
in the market by its high quality service and
operational efficiency, actively establishing stable
partnership with leading property developers in
all regions, exploring potential new development
projects and pursuing properties which have
owners’ association been established. When right
opportunities arise, the Group will accelerate
its expansion of business scope and coverage in
China through acquisition of property management
companies and other service companies which
provide services related to communities.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere thanks to every shareholder and business
partner for their constant support and trust of the
Group, and also to every employee for their hard
work and contribution to the Group over last year. In
the coming year, the Group will continue its active
expansion of business and enhance its property
management service quality, so as to bring a better,
more enjoyable and more satisfying experience for
home life to residents. With the continuous efforts
of the Group, | believe that the Group will bring good
returns to its shareholders in the long term.

Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

REFHK AKREKEBETERBIMEEER
AMNEE USEERHERLEXTETHEH FH
FORGEZMENRIVEERRAEIRERH
R BREEEFERBAULSRENIETZ
BEenmx -E6EERER  AREKERKEY
REB R RE MR AR AR RS A RS 2R A
MRERFPENRGHEEREBEZE -

B

AARBURKREZERLORHA —EXRKREELE
BOE - URRREBAEEH RETEHE—
NETHBE-FRAAKENENFERER - £
B—F  AEEH-NREEBESEKDR =
MERGRE  REFPLEEX BH FRENE
RELRR AAHGEEAKRETEHENENT  RE
HERBEARRGR EFHNEE -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

VQ:J;_“_ oh
B2
For the year ended
31 December
BZ12ANALFE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000 Change
AR¥TRT AR®BTR g
Revenue W 25 977,552 635,146 53.9%
Gross profit EH 296,837 156,738 89.4%
Profit (loss) for the year FRFHE (EE) 99,288 (3,352) 3,062.1%
Profit (loss) attributable to owners SARHER AEG
of the parent B (&) 90,549 (6,383) 1,518.6%
Gross profit margin /%) EFE%) 30.4% 24.7% 5.7pp
Net profit (loss) margin /%) A OFEE) E(%) 10.2% (0.5)% 10.7pp
Basic earnings (loss) per share (RMB) BREARTN (EE)
(AR#®T) 0.113 (0.008) 1,512.5%
Final dividend per share [HK$) BRARBRE EL) 0.05 - NATEA
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e
Revenue Gross profit and gross profit margin
W == EMRERNE
(RMB million) (RMB million/%)
IANR¥BEER) ANRBBEET/%)
33.3
30.4
977.6 247
0.3 i
231 296.8
43.2
635.1
8.2
11.8
55.7 156.7
420.2 g4 9211.0 140.1
2.0
66.2 559.4
351.7
2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017
[ Property management [ 020 business income
services 020U A
MEERIRY
[ Sale assistance B Other services and
services sales of goods
GEEE HpR# M EE m

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the company

ERAREEABMGEFE (R

(RMB million)

IAR®EHE&ER)
90.5
10.9
(6.4)
=
b
2015 2016 2017
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

IBRE
Total assets Total equity
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBEER) (AR®BBEER)
546.7
1236.4 501.7
1116.2 4434
710.8 | | |
2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017
(Restated) (Restated)
(REZ) (RE5)
Total Contracted GFA Average price of property management service
BENEEREERE VEEERBEFHER
(million sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m./month)
(BBF 5K (NRME/EFHK/A)
1.81 1.76 1.81
66.7
60.0
12.2
15.4
33.8
11.6 Lh b 54.5
22.2

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017

[ Delivered GFA B Undelivered GFA [ Average price per revenue-bearing GFA'
ERTEEERE ARMEREEE BB R EEmBEN FEER

Note: B 5E

1. ltis calculated as a weighted average of all the prices 1. BERZHEBEFERDEEWRENENTANMEERLE
and fees specified on the contracts that are generating AR MEFHESE  BETREEESNERE -
revenue as of the end of each relevant year, excludes
management fees for parking lots.
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- — . - A Sy



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R B A am B AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property
management company in China. In 2017, the
Group was rated among the Best 10 of property
management enterprises in China in terms of the
overall strength by China Real Estate Association
(FEIEMEZRE), Shanghai E-house China R&D
Institute (£ S FEEMEMZEL) and China Real
Estate Appraisal Centre (FEEMERFTFH L.
As of 31 December 2017, the Group had a total
contracted gross floor area ("GFA”) of 66.7 million
square meters (“sq.m.”], where it was contracted to
manage 500 properties across 43 cities in China.

The Group main business line is property
management business. Under the property
management business line, the Group is engaged
in the provision of property management services,
sales assistance services and other services and
sales of goods.

Property management services

The Group primarily provides property developers
and property owners with a broad range of property
management services to mainly residential
properties, commercial and government buildings.
Services provided by the Group include standard
property management services and also ancillary
services such as cleaning, gardening, security,
repair and maintenance and butler services.
Through its butler services, the Group provides
personalized and premium property management
services to residents with its trained butlers onsite.
While its primary and long-term business focus is
on the residential property market, the Group also
provides services to non-residential properties,
including both stand-alone non-residential
properties and properties associated with
residential properties, such as schools and
commercial buildings.

£ EI) -

AEERTEALBIMEERERF - 020175
AEERTEFHEXHE LEFEFHLENR
RETEEHEAFTOFIRTEDEERLER
BENTE - R2017F12A318 - AKENBESHE
SmEiE((REEE]) R6.TEEFT IR (TFIAK]D -
ERT4E 72 B43{E M T WS008 W) % -

AEENTEXEBRAMEEREK RYWEER
EBRT  AEERFRHDEEERY - BERSE
AR EM AR REE&m -

) 3 B 18 BR 7%

AEBTEAYVEERBAAEZIREREZNDEE
BRY - EPARBOK/ETYE BRARBNET -
AEERENRBEEFEDTEERE REER
BoplmER BE- R #ERREUANKEFRR
BE - BBERRY  AKREIREZNHSERS
REPREVEGEAFTEZZEBEMEEERS - &
SENTERREEBERRETVEDTS T8
FFEEMREHRRS (BEREEFREEDFERES
MEMBYE)  MERNEHEKRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group believes that service quality is
fundamental to establish a solid foundation to
support the growth of the Group’s business. The
Group holds various qualifications and licenses in
respect of property management services, namely
ISO 9001, I1SO 14001, OHSAS 18001 and level one
property management qualification certificate.

Sales assistance services

The Group provides property developers with sales
assistance services by deploying on-site staff
at the sales centres to maintain the conditions
of the centres and provide timely assistance to
facilitate various aspects of the sales process. The
Group generally continues to service the property
developer clients after the expiration of the sales
assistance contracts by entering into preliminary
property management contracts. Sales assistance
serves as an important source of business for the
property management services.

Other services and sales of goods

This business line primarily consists of the provision
of consulting services, engineering and catering
services, and the sales of engineering spare parts.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had expanded
its presence to 43 cities in China where it was
contracted to manage a total of 500 residential
properties and non-residential premises such
as commercial or government buildings with an
aggregate contracted GFA of 66.7 million sq.m.
This represented an increase of 11.2% compared
to the aggregate contracted GFA of 60.0 million
sq.m. as of 31 December 2016. In relation to the
delivered GFA of 54.6 million sgq.m. in 2017, the
increase represented a growth of 22.4% compared
to the delivered GFA of 44.6 million sq.m. as of 31
December 2016.

EIRE R am AT

AREEHEE RELZEEDNAETBEEARUAIEA
SEEBNRZELAZEZ -ASERMEEERY
BAEZBEERKER - 954150 9001 + 1SO 14001 »
OHSAS 18001 R E— R X BB EIRE

15 85 AR 15

AEERAMERRBREEBHERYS  KEHSET
BEEFRLAEER LRI AHEEREPETE
BN LR W B - —RBRT  ARERBHESOER
BREBEBITUNIPEEEGNEBEANEERRE R
FRrRER% HESMIXEEREREXRENER
IR

HBRBEREER

ZEBRIZERBREHRFEARS - TRREKRS
ARHE TRTEM -

B0

I EREEN TS

R2017F12A31H - A& B EK IR E R FHL3E
W RIHNEEAKSEEEMERIEFEDE (W
FAASBTET) BENEEMBEARGLTAEFH
K B2016F12A31BHMBAA N EEATMENIFETF
F oK H111.2% - BRE2017FE D R B EmE54.60
BT HK  B2016F12A3M BN E XN EETELLS
BEFEHAK  #BIN22.4% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Efﬁu nHH Tﬁ

The acquisitions of 70% equity interests in Eastern
Harbour Engineering Management Limited (“Eastern
Harbour”) and Zhejiang Yongcheng Property
Management Company Limited (“Yongcheng”]) in
2016 and the further acquisition of 7.5% equity
interest in Yongcheng in 2017 provided a stable and
healthy growth of the Group’'s business. Eastern
Harbour and Yongcheng enhanced the portfolio of
properties under management and revenue source
in the eastern and central region of China. The
Group strives to develop new business relationships
from the existing customer base and own network in
order to provide strong organic growth to the Group.
In addition to organic growth, the Group continues
to identify the right acquisition targets to strengthen
its portfolio and increase geographic presence
across China.

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

The Group will continue to strategically select
markets to enter into, focus on those with more
developed economies and comparatively high
per capita GDP. Once the Group has established
presence in a new city, it seeks to expand its
business within the same city or neighboring cities
with a view to maximizing its economies of scale.

#0165 W2 RSB TRERARAF (RS
B BT AR M EERARAF ([KK) 70%
) % 4 TR 201748 3t — 25 Y B R #07.5% 1% HE 75 75
FEEGREBREE - XHEBRAMBRAE
85 o B R R P T E R A A RIRAK
B AREBNABRAE TP ARERIEHHE
THBEEBE  RTAREEREADNBEE -
B RS - AEERENEA BRI
AL H AL TR A P 2 30T R

B 2

AEERBEERBEMEEFEEENTS  F
REBEREEBAHBEREELEESHMS - K
SEEFHTYRE e HEERR — M m#bia
ﬁﬁm%¥ﬁ’u%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁmﬁﬁm

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown TREHINAREERNEBIBEEMENHTRMED
of different geographic areas where the Group has  UgzSFR4A -
established presence for the years indicated.
2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBETIT
Eastern and Central China EH NED 676,262 380,557
Southern China FEF 235,479 201,219
Northern China E3ld 65,811 53,370
Total EEt 977,552 635,146
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FREHHEA

The map below illustrates the cities in which TEBBER2017F12ANBAEBETNEENYE
properties the Group was contracted to manage FFEMMREHHTHIEREE -

were located and the number of projects in each city

as of 31 December 2017.

e

A A
g
R s L

Aq A Ar,f

| W Eastern and Central China EER KR & H
01 Chizhou M (1) 09 Nantong FJ# (8) 17 Wenzhou ;&M (4)
02 Chongqing & (1) 10 Ningbo )% (271) 18 Wuxi 485 (14)
03 Chuzhoul% M (6) 11 Quzhou M (4) 19 Xuancheng T4 (4)
04 Hangzhou # /M (37) 12 Shanghai £% (10) 20 Yangzhou M (1)
05 Huaian 7% (1) 13 Shaoxing 43 # (22) 21 Zhenjiang $8T (2]
06 Huanggang = (1) 14 Suzhou &x /M (8) 22 Zhoushan ALY (1)
07 Huzhou M (17) 15 Taizhou &M (1)
08 Jiaxing 2= & (2) 16 Taizhou Z=/M (1)

Nl Southern China #7
23 Cenxi 2Y% (3) 28 Huizhou ZJM (1) 33 Wenchang X3 (2)
24 Foshan 1L (19) 29 Jiangmen ;L9 (1) 34 Wuzhou 1B (2)
25 Guangzhou E /M (7) 30 Nanning F 2 (18) 35 Zhaoqing 2 (4)
26 Guilin EE#K (1) 31 Qingyuan & (3] 36 Zhongshan FF 1L (2)
27 Haikou /A (1) 32 Sanya =5 (9) 37 Zhuhai 28 (1)

B Northern China #1t
38 Baoding R (1) 41 Dalian A (1)
39 Baotou B3 (3) 42 Eérduosi BRI % H (1)
40 Beijing 1t (2) 43 Langfang B35 (1)

Note: Numbers in parentheses represent the number of  Mi&f : #EHRAMNEFIEFTNBEE HE
contracted projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T mED T

The table below sets forth the delivered contracted TRHIAMRABHZERXNEHNEETREREE
GFA and the number of properties under H®HEHAE -
management as of the dates indicated.

As of 31 December 2017 As of 31 December 2016

M2017%12831H 7201612 A31H

Sg.m. in Sg.m. in
thousands No. thousands No.
FEHRK =] FERFK Eig=

Residential properties FEYE

Eastern and Central China'” ER NEHRD 33,450 239 27,160 201
Southern China®? =gl 12,414 56 9,897 45
Northern China® 5| qd) 1,861 6 744 3
Subtotal hEt 47,725 301 37,801 249
Non-residential properties HFEEYE 6,836 132 6,794 124
Total Mt 54,561 433 44,595 373

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's contracted M2017512A318  AEB AN YW E B E HiEE

GFA of undelivered properties amounted to TERELIEI22BEF K (2016F 1 15.4BEBFHK) »
approximately 12.2 million sq.m. (2016: 15.4 million

sg.m.)

Notes: Mot

(1) Including Chizhou, Chongqging, Chuzhou, Hangzhou, (1) &M « EBE - BN - FUM - EZ ~ =@ - M - 28 -
Huaian, Huanggang, Huzhou, Jiaxing, Nantong, FEEER BN EE BEEHMAM TN OR
Ningbo, Quzhou, Shanghai, Shaoxing, Suzhou, M ES B BN I RAL -

Taizhou, Taizhou, Wenzhou, Wuxi, Xuancheng,
Yangzhou, Zhenjiang and Zhoushan.

(2] Including Cenxi, Foshan, Guangzhou, Guilin, Haikou,  (2) B#F=29Z - #L - BN - 4080 - BN - IP9 - %= -

Huizhou, Jiangmen, Nanning, Qingyuan, Sanya, BER - XE BN EE -FRLUEKE-
Wenchang, Wuzhou, Zhaoqing, Zhongshan and
Zhuhai.

(3) Including Baoding, Baotou, Beijing, Dalian, Eérduosi (3] B#ERE  BHE -dtR - - K& DSBS HREHE -
and Langfang.
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The Group will continue to expand its business
through obtaining new service engagements
and acquisition of other property management
companies. The table below indicates the movement
of the total contracted GFA and the number of
properties the Group was contracted to manage
during the year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BHEE A wm B DT

AEBBESEBFRHNRBEERUBEEMY X
BEARMMBRES - TRBINFALANEER
BRASETHNEENYEBENES -

As of 31 December 2017
M2017%12831H

As of 31 December 2016
7201612 A31H

Sg.m. in Sg.m. in

thousands No. thousands No.

FEHK %A FEHFK #H

As of beginning of period Hi4) 59,995 455 33,815 167
New engagements'" bt 8,574 66 5,289 23
Acquisitions g4 258 3 22,291 274
Terminations®? gl (2,080) (24) (1,400) (9)
As of end of period HiR 66,747 500 59,995 455

Notes: ix=s

(1) In relation to properties the Group manages, new
engagements primarily include service engagements
for new constructions developed by property
developers and service engagements for residential
properties replacing their existing property
management companies.

(2)  Including the contracted GFA and the number of
properties the Group ceased to manage, which were
primarily due to non-renewal of certain property
management contracts and mutual termination prior
to expiration for commercial reasons.

(1) RAKEMEENMEMNS HZEZEBEMEER
BEZNFFREERBENRBRE  REEVEXER
BENEEBRLANBRBEE -

2) BREAKETBEEMNMESGVERRETRLEE -
TERTEAETYEERANRENEEEARER
BIARE#LE »
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R DT

SALES ASSISTANCE SERVICES

The Group provides property developers with
cleaning, security and maintenance of their model
homes and sales centers and assists in facilitating
the sales process of the properties. The sales
assistance services contracts generally have a
duration of 6 to 18 months and could be terminated
prior to the expiration date if all display units have
been sold out. The Group provided sales assistance
services to 66 and 72 properties in 2017 and 2016,
respectively. The Group can enter into new property
management contracts with most of the property
developers via this sales channel by demonstrating
the expertise and providing of quality sales
assistance services.

OTHER SERVICES AND SALES OF
GOODS

The Group provides installation, repairing and
maintenance services primarily to the elevators
of the properties under management. Engineering
spare parts can be sold separately to other elevator
servicing companies. Also, the Group operates
canteens in the government buildings and provides
catering services there. In relation to consulting
services, the Group provides consultation and advice
to property developers on various aspects of their
operations, including the general structure, lift or
road planning of the properties which may affect the
quality of the property management services that
the residents receive subsequently.

15 $5 AR %%

AEERANEERBEATHEELRBEEPLNF
B RRERE - UHBREDENHEBRE © 15
RBEaH—RRMEI18ER BEE2HRINEME
HEIER T - RIFEE W B HATAR LE - 20174 52016
F o AEE D RIM66ME K 7218 Y E R 7 85 R - 3B
BRTEXNBNEHRELHERE  AKEAE
HHERBEBAZEMERRBILNMEEE
BH -

HttfRBEREEEm

AEETEHERMEIAEBEHRZE  #E
ERERY -ITRZHMEVBLILE TEMIFE
RBRFE - I AREEBRAETEEERMER
FRREERIRE - ENFEARY - AEESMEER
AREENESTARHEFALRER  BEDERN
—REE  TTREIREREE  EREREUREY
EEPEGHYMEEERBESR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The Group will continue to maintain its own
advantage as an independent property management
company and compete with counterparts in the
market by its high quality service and operational
efficiency. The Group will actively establish stable
partnership with leading property developers in
all regions and explore potential projects under
development. The Group will strive to develop new
business relationships from the existing customer
base and own network in order to provide strong
organic growth to the Group. The Group also targets
to expand its portfolio of customers by pursuing
properties which have owners’ association been
established. Furthermore, when right opportunities
arise, the Group will accelerate its expansion by
expanding its business scope and coverage in China
by means of acquisitions.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
29 June 2017, pursuant to the terms of the Joint
Venture Agreement entered between the Group and
the Vendors, the Group will acquire the remaining
interests in Yongcheng in four tranches of 7.5%
each at a price of RMB22.5 million for each of the
subsequent acquisition. Since the net profit of
Yongcheng for the financial year of 2016 has met the
profit guarantee provision provided to the Group,
the Group entered into an acquisition agreement to
purchase a further 7.5% of the existing registered
capital of Yongcheng at a total consideration of
RMB22.5 million (the “Further Acquisition”] on 29
June 2017.

Upon completion of the Further Acquisition, the
Group holds 77.5% of the registered capital of
Yongcheng in which Yongcheng remains as a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results will continue to be consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements of the
Company. The directors are of the view that the
Group’s increase in shareholding in Yongcheng will
further consolidate the profit base and provide a
stable return of investments to the shareholders.

EIRE R am AT

Al =} R R G &

AEBREBERIRBUNEEERTANES
UeEERBREERXTEMSEH FHF - A5 E
BiEGES RN BELCYERRBAELRES FH
B UARRREGCEERTHNERE - AKEKE N IAR
EEFPEMLESRBERMNEBBE UALKE
BERBRYRAIER - AEBEY ARESRKEKILE
TREEZYE NERERFPHEAZER - i
EEHERER AKERERBRBUENELR
BEAMREXBHRERRINPENEE -
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VI EREBREKKRETMEARRNTS%  BR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEE A B AT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded revenue of RMB977.6 million, representing
an increase of 53.9% over the year 2016.

Increase in the Group’'s revenue was primarily
attributable to the growth in property management
business revenue from RMB626.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB977.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
represented 55.9% increase over the year 2016.

Breakdown of Revenue by business line and
services

Bt ¥ 3k 3R [0

Wz

HE20M7F12A3MBIEFEAR AEBHESBKZE A
R¥977.6E &L $2016F 12 HN53.9 % ©

AREBKEENFEARNYEEREBAERAEH
HZE2016F12A3MBEFE 2 ARK626.98 L1
REZEHZE2017TF12A3BEFEZ ARIII3EE
JC * #2016 01 755.9% °

BEB G R IR & 2 8 W sk B A

For the year ended
31 December

BE12ANBLFE
2017 2016 Change
2017F 20165 23
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
AR¥TRT ARBTT AREBTR %
Property management business ~ WEEEE®
- Property management services ~ — ¥ EERH% 910,941 559,372 351,569 62.9
- Sales assistance services — B RR % 43,187 55,731 (12,544) (22.5)
- Other services and sales —HE R &
of goods HEEm 23,136 11,779 11,357 96.4
Online to offline business REBBRT XK 288 8,264 (7,976) (96.5)
977,552 635,146 342,406 53,9
Property management business L E AR

The Group's property management business
includes the provision of property management
services, sales assistance services and other
services and sale of goods. Details of analysis of
each service are as follows:

ARENEETEEBOERENETZRY 5 ¥
RIS AR AR RBEER - B ERGZH
BT :
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property management services

Revenue from property management services
increased by RMB351.6 million or 62.9% over 2016
primarily due to (i) organic growth in the Group's
existing property management services business
as a result of increase in the delivered contracted
GFA by 7.8 million sq.m.; and (ii) additional revenue
attributable to the delivered contracted GFA of 20.2
million sq.m. bringing in to the Group through the
acquisition of Yongcheng.

Sales assistance services

Revenue from the sales assistance services for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB43.2 million,
comparing to RMB55.7 million in 2016, representing
a decrease of RMB12.5 million, or 22.5%. The
decrease in revenue from the sales assistance
services was due to the decrease in the number
of projects from 72 in 2016 to 66 in 2017 and the
decrease in average revenue of each project from
approximately RMB774,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB654,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Other services and sales of goods

Revenue from other services and sales of goods
during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB23.1 million (2016: RMB11.8 million]). This
service primarily consists of the provision of
consulting services, engineering and catering
services, and the sales of engineering spare
parts. The increase in revenue of this service was
mainly due to revenue received or receivable from
Yongcheng which has been newly acquired since
October 2016.

EIRE R am AT

V) 3 B 12 IR

MEEERE IS REER20165FE A R¥351.68
Brg629% TERAABNDXNENEEEEE
MIBEEFH A UWHAKBERENEEEREE
BABER: R)EBRBARASTEETRER
NEHREmME20.28 8T KRB BEIMNE -

1#h 85 AR %

HZE2017F12A31BLEFE BERBASRER
ARBLI2BETT  82016F M A RES5.70 8 T
D ARME12.58 B T 522.5% ° 7 85 R 75 P 15 Uk 25 08
DT ATE B B H2016F 721 5 4 £20174 8966
&l B ZEIE B FH W B E 2201656124318 IEF
B4 AR®T774,000cE 2 =2017F12A318 (EF
[ # AR #654,0007T °

Y

o]
= AR

Hib R REEE

REBZE2017TF12ANALEFE  EMRBREER
mZ R/ ARB21BE T (20165 : ARK11.8
BET  URETEBEEHRZEARYE  TERE
AR - ARGHE TRTARM - L IRF 2 Was1g D
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ez Y5 o

\
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R DT

Online to offline business

Revenue from the community 020 platform for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMBO0.3 million,
comparing to RMB8.3 million in 2016, representing
a decrease of RMB8.0 million or 96.5%. Revenue
from the corresponding period last year was
mainly generated from the provision of community
e-commerce services for the residents through the
Group’s community 020 platform which the revenue
generated from this revenue model decreased
significantly after the shift in strategic direction of
this business line since the fourth quarter of 2016.

Cost of Sales and Services

The Group’s cost of sales and services for property
management business primarily comprise (i)
sub-contracting costs, representing the expenses
paid to sub-contractors for various services under
the property management services and sales
assistance services; [ii) staff costs; (iii) depreciation
expenses associated with equipment and property
used in providing services; and [iv] costs of other
services and sale of goods such as salaries cost
of the technicians in the provision of elevator
engineering services; costs of the spare parts sold
and operating costs in running canteens and the
catering services.

Cost of sales and services for the property
management and sales assistance services
increased by 47.3% from RMB450.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately
RMB664.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. The increase was primarily due to the growth
of business and the corresponding increase
in the staff costs and sub-contracting costs.
The increase in staff costs was attributable to
(i) increase in the number of employees that the
Group employed directly after the acquisition
of Yongcheng; and (ii) increase in the average
salary of the Group’s employees. The increase
in sub-contracting costs was attributable to the
expansion of the Group's business.

HETRTER

B ZE2017F12A31B L5 E » 1 R020F & {5 e
R/AREOIEETT  B2016FMWARKSIAE LA
DARKEBOBE&ETHI6.5% c EFRBZ WS EE R
BEBAEENHEO20FEREPIRELREFS
BIR%E MEKRABXAELEZ RSN AEBR
20164 55 71 3 2 24 8 AR A% 5 7] 1 K e R 4> o

HER KA

AEEBETHREEXTNHERREANAETER
BN BRA (BERDEEERGEHIERSE 2R
RBHTFTHEEOF) : (i8I : (i) B2 H AR
BEEANRBERDEBBENTER X « RlivEA
RERHEEGRAAR - FIMRRHTEETIZRE D
MEMABFERD  HETHHRAREELR
RERRIBEOBERA

MEEBELBHHERBEOESE LR KA BEZE2016
F1I2ANBLEFEMHAREELS0.98 BB I147.3%
EHZE2017TF12A31BEFEHAREE66LOBETT °
FRALZIINTERAAEBER MEIKARS
B IRFEREIE N o 8 TACARIE AN - T5 A () Uk B8 ok
REASEEZERNEEB AN RiIAEE
BEEMFHFHF LB - D BERAENN  TEHR
REBEEBERE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Costs of other services and sales of goods for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB16.6 million
(2016: RMB6.5 million), which primarily consisted of
(i) salaries cost of the technicians in the provision
of elevator engineering services; [ii] costs of the
spare parts sold; and [iii) operating costs in running
canteens and the catering services in 2017.

Cost of sales and services for community 020
platform for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMBO0.78 million (2016: RMB21.1 million], such
costs decreased significantly for the year ended
31 December 2017 after the change in strategic
directions of this revenue generating model since
the fourth quarter of 2016 and the outsourcing
of the maintenance and operation services of the
Group’'s 020 platform to a third party in April 2017.
The outsourcing agreement has been terminated on
15 September 2017.

Gross Profit/(Loss) and Gross Profit/
(Loss) Margin

The tables below sets forth the Group’s gross profit/
(loss) and gross profit/(loss) margins by services for
the years indicated:

EIRE R am AT

HZE2017F12A3MAIEEE - EMRBREEE MK
KABARE16.6EET(2016F : A\R¥CSABTT) -
TEBRIREARETREREOREMASHF KA
() PTE T EBFACAN ¢ Rliii) 201749 &8 2 5 & & #UR

HZE2017F12ANALEFE  #HRE020F & HE K
R#KARBAREE0TSE BT (20165 : ARME21.1
BET) K AB2016FEEMFRKEREWRAE
R B BE 7 AR R 2017454 A 8 AR £ B 020F & 1Y
BEREBERBEIINATE=ZF%E  REE2017512
ASTHIEFEKIEBR A - ZNAIHE B R2017F9A
15SH&IE °

ERN(ER)RER(ER) =

TR AEERIREERBEESNERH(F
18) REM,/ () X :

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12ANALEE
2017 2016
20174 20165
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
AR%TR EWE% AREFTT U&= %
Property management business )% & 18 ¥ 7%
- Property management —MEEBRRY
services 274,127 30.1 139,451 24.9
- Sales assistance services — % S AR 7 15,979 37.0 24,790 445
- Other services and sales —HR% R
of goods HEE M 6,521 28.2 5,329 45.2
Online to offline business BREFBRTER 210 72.9 (12,832) (155.3)
Overall B 296,837 30.4 156,738 24.7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB296.8 million, comparing to
RMB156.7 million in 2016, representing an increase
of RMB140.1 million, or 89.4%. The Group's overall
gross profit margin increased from 24.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to 30.4% in 2017. The
Group's gross profit for the property management
business line for the year ended 31 December 2017
was RMB296.6 million, comparing to RMB169.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of RMB127.0 million, or
74.9%. The Group’s gross profit margin for the
property management business line increase from
27.0% for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 30.4%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as a result
of (i) increased average price per revenue-bearing
GFA from RMB1.76/sq.m./month as of 31 December
2016 to RMB1.81/sq.m./month as of 31 December
2017, (i) increased economies of scale as multiple
phases of the same properties were delivered
and became revenue-bearing; (iii] termination of
property management services to certain residential
properties as the profitability of these properties did
not meet the Group's expectations; (iv] the Group’'s
selection of and engagement with new projects with
higher margins; and (v the effect of value-added tax
in lieu of business tax.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB20.6 million,
comparing to RMB23.3 million in 2016, respecting a
decrease of RMB2.7 million, or 11.6%. The decrease
was mainly due to the net effect of the decrease
in net exchange gain of RMB12.1 million in the
corresponding period which has been recorded as
a net exchange loss in other expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2017, and the increase in the
unconditional subsidies from the government of
RMB8.1 million and rental income from investment
properties of RMB1.8 million.

HE2017TF12ANAEFE  AEEEMNAARE
296.8E BT ' BR2016F M ARB156.78 BB M A
RE1401E B ILE89.4%  NEBMEBEBEFNRMHE
Z£20165F12A318 1L F [E #924.7%38 f1 2201745 &Y
30.4% - B E2017TF12A3NB L FE - AEEYESE
BERGNEMNAARE26.6B 8T BHE2016
F1I2A3MBEFEMNARK169.6B8E TIE AR
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EHREE2016F12A318 EFEM27.0% RS EHZE
2017F12A31H It FEK30.4%  EAAIFFE K
HEEEENFEHERB2016F12ANENERE
FRHKARBII6TTIEME2017F12A31HHOEAE
FHAAREI81TT : (IFEER —WETR B
R E S BECERSE R R E U )RR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMBé6.4 million,
comparing to RMB29.5 million in 2016, representing
a decrease of RMB23.1, or 78.3%. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in business
development, marketing and promotion expenses
of RMB23.3 million incurred for the online to offline
business after the shift in strategic direction of this
business line since the fourth quarter of 2016.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB115.1 million,
comparing to RMB99.7 million in 2016, representing
an increase of RMB15.4 million, or 15.5%. The
increase was primarily due to the net effect of (i)
the increase in amortisation expenses of intangible
assets of RMB13.8 million; (ii] the increase in
general administrative expenses of RMB24.6 million
after the acquisition of Yongcheng in October
2016; (iii) the increase of share award expenses
of RMB5.8 million; and (iv) the reversed of share
based payment expenses of RMB3.2 million; (v]
the reversal of share-based payment expense of a
subsidiary of RMB13.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2017; (vi] decrease in administrative
expenses of RMB12.6 million associated with the
operation of community 020 platform; and (vii)
expansion of the Group’s business scale.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses for the year ended
31 December 2017 was RMB39.8 million (2016:
RMB24.1 million]). The expenses was primarily
comprised of (i] provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables of RMB29.5
million (2016: RMB13.4 million] and (ii) net exchange
loss of RMB8.7 million which has been recorded
as a net exchange gain of RMB12.1 million in other
income and gains in 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased from RMBA4.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
RMB9.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. The increase was primarily due to the net
effect of the (i] increase in interest expense of
RMB2.3 million for bank borrowings; [ii) increase
in interest expenses imputed on consideration
payable of RMB5.1 million; and (iii) the reversal of
imputed interest expenses on non-current liabilities
for cash-settled share-based payments of RMB1.4
million which has been included as a credit in the
finance cost.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group’s income tax expense for the year ended
31 December 2017 was RMB49.9 million, comparing
to RMB27.6 million in 2016, representing an
increase of RMB22.3 million, or 80.8%. The Group’s
effective tax rate decrease from 113.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to 33.5% in 2017 since the
losses in the 020 business incurred during 2016
were not utilised for tax purposes.

Trade and Bills Receivables

Trade and bills receivables mainly arose from
management and service income from property
management services, income from sales
assistance services and income from other services
and sales of goods.

As of 31 December 2017, total trade and bills
receivables of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB190.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB31.5 million compared to
approximately RMB159.4 million as at 31 December
2016. The increase was attributable to the expansion
of the scale of the Group’'s business.

The Group’s trade receivables turnover days for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was 65 days (2016: 66
days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade Payables and Other Payables
and accruals

Trade payables primarily comprise payables
to sub-contractors of the Group's property
management services. Trade payables increased
from approximately RMB36.6 million as of 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB45.0 million
as of 31 December 2017. This was primarily due to
the growth of the Group’s property management
services business.

Other payables and accruals primarily comprise
receipts on behalf of community, residents for
utilities, receipts in advances, accruals and deposits
received. Other payables and accruals increased
from approximately RMB354.1 million as of 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB386.0 million
as of 31 December 2017, primarily attributable to an
increase of RMB46.8 million in receipts on behalf of
community residents for utilities.

Deferred Taxation

As of 31 December 2017 and 2016, the deferred tax
asset recognised was mainly attributable to the
allowance of doubtful debt of RMB23.4 million and
RMB16.4 million, respectively.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and
Capital Structure

The Group maintains a strong and healthy financial
position. The Group’s principal sources of funds
to finance the working capital, capital expenditure
and other capital requirements were internally
generated by cash flows and bank loans. As of 31
December 2017, net working capital (calculated
as current assets less current liabilities) was
RMB226.2 million, representing an increase of
RMB35.9 million from RMB190.3 million as of 31
December 2016. The current ratios (calculated as
current assets/current liabilities) are 1.4 times as of
31 December 2017 (2016: 1.4 times).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As of 31 December 2017, the Group had bank
borrowings denominated in RMB of RMB23.0 million
(2016: RMB25.3 million), which was secured by the
investment properties of the Group (2016: RMB2.3
million). Bank borrowings of RMB23.0 million
(2016: 25.3 million) as of 31 December 2017 were
fixed-rate. In addition, the Group had an unsecured
bank borrowing amounting to RMB78.0 million
(2016: 103.6 million) which was variable-rate and
denominated in HK$ as of 31 December 2017.

The Group principally focused on the operation in
the PRC. Except for the cash, bank deposits and
bank borrowings denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group was not subject to any other material risk
directly relating to the foreign exchange fluctuation.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, despite
the acceleration of RMB against USD and HKD,
the Directors expected any fluctuation of the RMB
exchange rate would not materially and adversely
affect the operations of the Group. The management
will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take prudent measures to
minimize the currency translation risk.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is defined as total borrowings
net of pledged bank deposits, amounts due to
non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary, due
to a joint ventures and bank balances and cash
divided by total equity. As of 31 December 2017, the
Group was in a strong financial position with a net
cash position amounting to RMB377.8 million (2016:
RMB291.7 million). Accordingly, no gearing ratio is
presented.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2017, investment properties of
RMB91.4 million (2016: 74.4 million) were pledged
to secure certain banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as
of 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had
approximately 7,300 (2016: 6,700) employees. In
order to enhance the morale and productivity of
employees, employees are remunerated based
on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practices. Compensation policies and
packages of management staff and functional heads
are being reviewed on a yearly basis. In addition
to basic salary, performance related salary may
also be awarded to employees based on internal
performance evaluation. Moreover, the Company
adopted a share option scheme in April 2015 and
share award scheme in June 2017 in order to retain
elite personnel to stay with the Group and to provide
incentives for their contribution to the Group.

The Group also invests in continuing education
and training programmes for management staff
and other employees with a view to upgrading
their skills and knowledge. These training courses
comprise internal courses run by the management
of the Group and external courses provided by
professional trainers and range from technical
training for butlers to financial and administrative
trainings for management staff.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES OR
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed above in this annual report, the
Group had no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associates during the year ended 31
December 2017.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has no specific plan
for major investment or acquisition for major capital
assets or other business. However, the Group will
continue to identify new opportunities for business
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS

On 25 November 2015, the Company issued
200,000,000 new shares of nominal value of HK$0.01
each in connection with the listing of its shares on
the Stock Exchange (the “IPO”). The net proceeds
after deducting the underwriting commission and
issuing expenses arising from the IPO amounted to
HK$289.1 million (equivalent to RMB238.2 million).

Up to 31 December 2017, RMB59.6 million has been
utilised for the development of the 020 platform and
RMB142.9 million has been utilized in the acquisition
of property management companies. RMB1.8
million has been utilized for the implementation of
training and recruitment programs. The remaining
net proceeds of RMB33.9 million were deposited
with certain licensed financial institutions as of 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’'s financial condition, results and
business operations may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties, some of which are inherent
to the Group’'s business and some from external
sources.

Industry Risk

The China residential property management industry
is highly competitive and fragmented. Competition
may intensify as the Group’s competitors expand
their product or service offerings into or as new
competitors enter the Group’'s existing or new
markets. If the Group does not compete successfully
against existing and new competitors, the Group
may not be able to renew its existing contracts upon
expiration or fail to win the bid for new projects.

Increased competition in the property management
industry may result in reduced pricing for the
Group’s services and a decrease in the Group's
market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of
responding promptly to market changes within
the industry sectors it operates in. Any failure to
interpret market trends properly and adapt its
strategy to such changes accordingly may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
condition, results, and business operations.

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is
exposed to various financial risks, including market,
liquidity and credit risks.

The Group’s earnings and financial position may
be adversely affected by movements in foreign
exchange rates and interest rate. In particular,
any depreciation in the Group’s bank balances
denominated in foreign currency may affect its
net profit. The Group will closely monitor the
relative foreign exchange positions of its assets
and liabilities and allocate its holdings of different
currencies accordingly in order to minimise foreign
currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if
it is unable to obtain adequate funding to finance
its operations. In the management of liquidity risk,
the Group’'s management monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit
risk from its customers. However, the Group had
no concentration of credit risk in respect of trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of customers, who are residents and property
developers in the communities managed by the
Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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DIRECTORS

MR. LIU JIAN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 50, is the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company
on 5 January 2015. Being one of the first members
of the Group, Mr. Liu founded Guangdong Zhong Ao
Property Management Company Limited (“Zhong
Ao Property”]) with Ms. Chen Zhuo in September
2005. Mr. Liu was appointed as the sole director
of Zhong Ao Property in September 2005 and has
been primarily responsible for overall operation
and management, strategic planning and business
development. Mr. Liu plays a key role in the Group's
business development and has led its business
expansion from Guangdong province to other parts
of China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked
at Guilin Park Hotel Co., Ltd. (EMEESIER/E B R F)
from May 1990 to August 1994 and his last position
held was manager. From September 1994 to March
1999, he worked at Guilin Royal Gardens Hotel Co.,
Ltd. (HEMFEBEEBR AT and his last position
held was manager. From 1999 to December 2003,
Mr. Liu served as general manager of Guangzhou
Olympic Garden Property Co. Ltd. (E/NEAITIE
E¥%/27]) and from February 2004 to June 2005,
as general manager of Nanguo Aoyuan Property
Company (FEEIEREY 7)), both companies
being subsidiaries of Guangdong Yabo Property
Service Company Limited (ERHEBYWEREER
2 7A]) ("Guangdong Yabo”). Mr. Liu graduated from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZE
12 T K2 with a bachelor's degree in economics
in 1988. In 2008, Mr. Liu attained a master’s degree
in business administration from Asia International
Open University (Macau).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MS. CHEN ZHUO
Executive director and vice president

Ms. Chen Zhuo, aged 40, is a vice president of the
Company and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 5 January 2015. Ms. Chen joined
the Group as vice president when Zhong Ao Property
was established in September 2005. As a founder
and a member of the core management team of
the Group, she has been primarily responsible
for financial management, strategic planning and
business development. Ms. Chen served as deputy
general manager of Guangdong Yabo from August
2002 to March 2005. Ms. Chen received a college
degree from Sun Yat-sen University (LU KXZ) in
1999, majoring in business management. Ms. Chen
obtained the qualification of a property management
manager in 2000 from the Ministry of Construction
of the PRC.

MR. LIANG BING
Executive director and vice president

Mr. Liang Bing, aged 46, is a vice president of the
Company and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 5 January 2015. Mr. Liang joined
the Group as vice president in September 2005. As a
member of the Group’s core management team, he
has been primarily responsible for overall operation
and management, strategic planning and business
development. Mr. Liang served as deputy general
manager of Guangdong Yabo from May 2002 to June
2005. Mr. Liang graduated and attained a bachelor’s
degree in environmental engineering from Hunan
University (#@X22) located in Hunan, the PRC in
July 1996. He later obtained a master’s degree in
business administration for senior management
from Sun Yat-sen University (R 1LKX2) in 2013.
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MR. LONG WEIMIN
Executive director and vice president

Mr. Long Weimin, aged 55, is a vice president of the
Company and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 5 January 2015. Mr. Long joined
the Group as vice president in June 2008. As a
member of the Group’s core management team, he
has been primarily responsible for overall operation
and management, strategic planning and business
development. Mr. Long has 14 years of experience in
the hospitality industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Long served as a deputy general manager at
Guangxi Nanning Fenghuang Lodge (7 2B E
E£E) from November 2001 to January 2004, as a
deputy general manager at Purui Hotspring Hotel
(EIH)E RAJE) from 2003 to 2007 and as a general
manager at Luoyang Mudou International Hotel Co.
Ltd. ((BF%SAEPEFRAR/E AR A ) from 2007 to 2008.
Mr. Long graduated and attained a diploma from
Guangxi Radio and TV University (EF/EEB TR ANE)
in 1982.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. WEI ZHE
Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Zhe, aged 47, joined the Company and
was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 17 April 2015. Mr. Wei has over
20 years of experience in both investment and
operational management in China. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Wei served as corporate finance
manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now part of
PricewaterhouseCoopers] from 1995 to 1998 and as
the head of investment banking at Orient Securities
Company Limited from 1998 to 2000. Mr. Wei was a
vice chairman, from 2002 to 2006, and a consultant,
from 2007 to 2011, of China Chain Store & Franchise
Association. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Wei was also
the chief representative for Kingfisher's China
sourcing office, Kingfisher Asia Limited. Mr. Wei
joined Alibaba Group and served as senior vice
president of the B2B Division, from November 2006
to January 2007, and president of the B2B Division
and executive vice-president of Alibaba Group,
from February 2007 to February 2011. He was an
executive director and chief executive officer of
Alibaba.com Limited, a leading worldwide B2B
e-commerce company listed on the Stock Exchange
in 2007, from October 2007 to February 2011.
He was voted as one of “China’s Best CEQOs” by
FinanceAsia magazine in 2010. He founded Vision
Knight Capital, a private equity investment fund in
June 2011 and served as a founding partner and
the Chairman. Mr. Wei graduated from Shanghai
International Studies University with a bachelor’s
degree in international business management in
July 1993. He also completed the corporate finance
program at London Business School in June 1998.
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Mr. Wei was a non-executive director of HSBC
Bank (China) Company Limited from April 2007 to
February 2011 and The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited from January
2008 to February 2011. He was an independent
non-executive director of PCCW Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0008), from November 2011 to May 2012
and was re-designated as a non-executive director
in May 2012. He was an independent director of
Shanghai M&G Stationery Inc., which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from June 2014 to May
2017. He was an independent non-executive director
of Zall Group Ltd., a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2098],
from April 2016 to June 2017 and was re-designated
as an executive director in June 2017. He is
currently a non-executive director of PCCW Limited.
Mr. Wei is also a non-executive director of JNBY
Design Limited, and an executive director of Zall
Group Ltd., which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an independent
director of Leju Holdings Limited which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange.

MS. WU QIMIN
Non-executive Director

Ms. Wu Qimin, aged 47, joined the Company and
was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 17 April 2015. Ms. Wu joined
E-house Capital (5/E& ) in 2008 and became
one of the founding partners. Currently she
serves as co-president of Jupai Holdings Limited
(NYSE: JP] and vice-president of Jupai Capital.
Ms. Wu graduated from Shanghai Institute of
Urban Construction [E&EMMERZM) with a
bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1992. She
later obtained a master’s degree in construction
economics and management from Tongji University
(FBEKE) in 1999 and currently participates in the
finance DBA program for Doctor’s Degree in The
Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of Shanghai
Jiao Tong University.
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MR. ZHENG DONG
Non-executive Director

Mr. Zheng Dong, aged 52, joined the Company
and was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 5 January 2017. Mr. Zheng has
over 20 years of experience in sales and property
development. From May 2011 to March 2016,
Mr. Zheng was the managing director of Yixing
Hongli Oriental Tourism Real Estate Development
Company Limited (EEISY R 7 iREMERZEFR
~A]). From April 2007 to March 2011, Mr. Zheng
was the director and general manager of Jiangsu
Zhong Tang Real Estate Company Limited [(T&
EEEAMRAF]). From October 1996 to March 2007,
Mr. Zheng held various management positions at
China Sports Industry Group Company Limited (9
REXEERMGAERAFR). Mr. Zheng held sales
position in a number of other companies between
1988 and 1997. Mr. Zheng graduated from Liaoning
University with a bachelor’s degree in Economics in
1988, and obtained a master’s degree in Economics
from Liaoning University in 1996 and a master’s
degree in Project Management from University of
Management & Technology in 2005.

MR. ZHANG WEILUN
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Zhang Weilun, aged 45, joined the Company and
was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2015. Prior
to joining the Group, he worked as an assistant
project manager and project manager at Shimizu
Corporation [EKEFZMKA24) from June 1996
to November 1997 and from December 1997 to
May 1998 respectively. During 1999 to 2004, he
successively served as a general manager of
Nanguo Olympic Garden (FIEIBEMITZIERE), a
president, vice-chairman and director of Wuhan
Chengcheng Cultural Investment Group Co., Ltd. (&
EB LI B EERHBR AR (later changed to
Wuhan Aoyuan City Development Co., Ltd. (EUEER
B mERERMDBR2AF) and then Wuhan Wanhong
Group Co., Ltd. (BUEEBEBRKRHBMR AR (stock
code: 600681), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, an executive vice president and a
director of Aoyuan Group Limited (BRE%EBEAR A
Al)l. Mr. Zhang has been the chairman and general
manager of Guangzhou Willsun Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (BEM#EREEBR AT since 2005. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Wuhan University of Hydraulic and
Electrical Engineering (EVEXKFIE HAZ) with a
bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1993.
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MR. CHAN WAI CHEUNG, ADMIRAL
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral, aged 44, joined the
Company and was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 May
2017. Mr. Admiral Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy from the City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Admiral Chan is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He has extensive experience
in accounting and auditing fields. Mr. Admiral Chan
is an executive director of Energy International
Investments Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”] (stock code: 353],
an independent non-executive director of Carnival
Group International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 996), an independent non-executive
director of SFund International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Hanbo Enterprises Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1367) and a
non-executive director of China Nonferrous Metals
Company Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8306). He was an independent non-executive
director of Jia Meng Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8101), from 26 September
2013 to 22 May 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. CHAN KA LEUNG KEVIN
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin, aged 49, joined the
Company and was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31
May 2017. Mr. Kevin Chan, holds a Bachelor
of Accounting and a Master of Finance from
the University of Illinois of the United States of
America. Mr. Kevin Chan has extensive experience
in corporate finance. He is currently a responsible
officer of a corporation licensed under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong] (the “SFO”) to conduct type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity.
He was an independent non-executive director
of Greens Holdings Ltd, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1318) from 9 January 2015 to 19 November 2015.
Greens Holdings Ltd is a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and is
principally engaged in production and sale of heat
transfer products, wind turbine towers and the
services of waste heat power generation through its
subsidiaries. On 29 September 2015, a winding up
petition was filed against Greens Holdings Ltd and
the petition is pending for further hearing.

MR. HUANG ANXIN
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Huang Anxin, aged 55, joined the Company and
was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 3 October 2017.
Mr. Huang obtained a master degree in management
from Central China Normal University in 2000. He
is currently the head of school of management
of Guangzhou Open University. He has over 29
years of experience of teaching in the People’'s
Republic of China and in particular, the subject of
corporate management and administration. He also
has intensive knowledge in other areas such as
property management, economic management and
administration and community governance.
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EENEREEE[N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. CHAN KONG
Vice president

Mr. Chan Kong, aged 68, joined the Group as a vice
president in April 2008. Prior to joining the Group,
he served as an executive housekeeper at Guilin
Riverside Resort, China (&2 & £E) from February
1987 to February 1988. From February 1988 to
January 2002, Mr. Chan worked with Macau CTS
Hotel Management (International) Limited (P39
IR(BEBR)EEBE AR AR He joined as a project
coordinator in 1988 and was later assigned by a
secondment to Hotel Universal Guilin in the capacity
of an executive housekeeper. He was subsequently
promoted and served as general manager of Hotel
Universal Guilin and general manager of Hotel
Metropole, Macau (RFIREEIE) and Xi'an Eastern
Haojing Hotel (AZEFREE/E). From 2003 to
2004, he served as a general manager at Man Wah
Dongguan Hotel (R 5 X #HE).

MS. XIANG YAN
Sale Director

Ms. Xiang Yan, aged 32, joined the Group in October
2005. She is Sales Director of the Group. Ms. Xiang
graduated from Jinan University (BF A2 and
obtained a diploma in property management.

MR. YU HO MING
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Yu Ho Ming, aged 40, joined the Group on 10
April 2015. He is currently the chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for accounting, financial management
and company secretarial matters of the Group.
Mr. Yu has over 16 years of experience in auditing,
advisory accounting and financial management.
Mr. Yu is a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He obtained his honours
diploma in accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (currently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) and he was awarded a Master of Finance
from Curtin University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board ("Board”) of directors (“Directors”] of
the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 31 December
2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and
upholding high standards of corporate governance
of the Company to ensure that formal and
transparent procedures are in place to protect and
maximise the interests of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of the Securities ("Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2017, the Company applied and complied
with all the code provisions of the CG Code except
for code provisions A.2.1, A.2.7, A.4.1 and E.1.2,
and explained with considered reasons for such
deviation.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in their dealings in Company’s securities.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Group and oversees the Group’'s
businesses.

The Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties as set out below:

To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to Directors and employees;
and

To review the Company’'s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination
of four executive directors, three non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive
directors. There is a strong independent
element on the Board, to ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board's
decision making process as well as the
thoroughness and impartiality of the Board’s
oversight of the management.

The Board possesses, both as individual
Directors and collectively, appropriate
experience, competencies and personal
qualities, including professionalism and
integrity, to discharge its responsibilities
adequately and effectively. In addition, the
Board collectively has adequate knowledge
and expertise relevant to each of the material
business activities that the Company pursues
and the associated risks in order to ensure
effective governance and oversight.
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(i)

Members of the Board, who come from a variety
of different backgrounds, have a diverse range
of business, professional expertise. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” in
this Annual Report.

The Board members have no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) with each
other.

The Board of the Company currently comprises
of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer]

Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wei Zhe

Ms. Wu Qimin

Mr. Zheng Dong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral

Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
nine board meetings were held. Prior notices
convening the board meetings were despatched
to the Directors setting out the matters to be
discussed. At the meetings, the Directors were
provided with the relevant documents to be
discussed and approved. The company secretary
is responsible for keeping minutes for the board
meetings.

(ii)
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liii) Responsibilities of the Board and
management

The executive directors, with the assistance
from the senior management, form the
core management team of the Company.
The executive directors have the overall
responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and the senior management personnel
are responsible for supervising and executing
the plans of the Group.

liv) Independence of independent
non-executive directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed four independent non-executive
directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive directors have
appropriate and sufficient diversity, industry or
finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests
of the Shareholders. One of the independent
non-executive directors, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung,
Admiral is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of
the independent non-executive directors has
submitted a written statement to the Stock
Exchange confirming their independence and
has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange as
soon as practicable if there is any subsequent
change of circumstances which may affect their
independence. In addition, the Company has
also received a written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors
in respect of their independence. Based on
such confirmations, the Board considers that
all independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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[v] Induction for Director and
continuous professional
development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his responsibilities under relevant status,
laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
provides Directors with regular updates on
latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors
are also provided with regular updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects
to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The company secretary of the Company
has from time to time updated and provided
written training materials relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Chairman and chief executive officer are two key
aspects of the management of a company. Chairman
is responsible for providing leadership for the board
and management of the board while chief executive
officer is responsible for day-to-day management
of business. Clear division of these responsibilities
should be in place to ensure a balance power and
authority. The code provision A.2.1 of CG Code
which provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

During the year, Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision A.2.1
of CG Code.
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The Company consider that having Mr. Liu acting
as both the chairman and chief executive officer
will provide a strong and consistent leadership to
the Group and allow for more effective strategic
planning and management of the Group. Further
in view of Mr. Liu's experience in the industry,
personal profile and role in the Group and historical
development of the Group, the Group considers it is
to the benefit of the Group in the business prospects
that Mr. Liu continues to act as both the chairman
and chief executive officer after the Listing.
Therefore, the Company currently has no intention
to separate the functions of chairman and chief
executive officer.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires
that Non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term until termination by
the notice period as stipulated in the respective
appointment letter in writing served by either the
Company or the respective Director. They were,
however, subject to the requirement of retirement
and re-election at least once every three years
at the annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Company’'s articles of association. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures were
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices were no less exacting than
those in the code provisions of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code requires that
the chairman should at least annually hold meetings
with the Non-executive Directors [(including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without the
Executive Directors present. Although the chairman
did not hold a meeting with the Non-executive
Directors during the year ended 31 December
2017, the Company has set up good communication
channel that the Company Secretary shall gather
any concerns and/or questions raised by the
Non-executive Directors and report to the chairman
and set up follow-up meetings, whenever necessary,
in due course.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee
on 5 November 2015 with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rule
and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The audit committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr. Chan Wai
Cheung, Admiral and Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin,
all being independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral is the chairman
of the audit committee and is the independent
non-executive director with the appropriate
professional qualifications. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, oversee the audit process
and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, four audit
committee meetings were held and the individual
attendance of each director is set out in the section
“Directors’ Attendance Records At Meetings”.

At the meetings, the members of audit committee
principally reviewed and discussed with the
external auditor of the Company about the Group’s
annual results and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016,
the interim review scope and process for the
Group’s result for the six months ended 30 June
2017, the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2017 and audit scope and process for
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2017 and reviewed the effectiveness of
the risk management and assessment, financial
reporting process and internal control system,
respectively.
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Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration
committee on 5 November 2016 with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The remuneration
committee four members, namely Mr. Zhang Weilun,
Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral and
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin. Mr. Zhang Weilun is
the chairman of the remuneration committee. The
primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to establish and review the policy and structure
of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and approve recommendations on
management remuneration.

The remuneration committee meets to determine
the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of executive directors
and approving the terms of executive directors’
service contracts. In determining the remuneration
for Directors, the remuneration committee takes
into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the desirability
of performance-based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two
remuneration committee meetings were held and
the individual attendance of each director is set out
in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.

Nomination committee

The Company has established a nomination
committee on 5 November 2015 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The nomination committee has four
members, namely Mr. Liu Jian, Mr. Zhang Weilun,
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral and Mr. Chan Ka
Leung, Kevin. Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman of the
nomination committee. The primary duties of the
nomination committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors of the Company.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects
set out in the Board diversity policy, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to
the Board for adoption.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two
nomination committee meeting was held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out
in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS
AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at various
meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the table below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERWE

HEEFRANE REZEEQ@ETREZEES T
MERRANBINE@ETE  SBREFRRER  F
B XIERBEBES Bk FELR - A&
ERBEE -RBZEENVERXN ST WIALET
EREFEZTIUNAEERR  UHBEESHRM -

BE20M7TF1N2ANBEFEAR - EMAREBEE
CHET ZSEENENEELREIIRAIEER
ERHERE &

ESERNSRAHFERCRE

TEREISEFRBE017F128318 1€ F A FH
BITREGEO LD

Remuneration Nomination
Audit Committee Committee Committee Board
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
ENZES] FMWZEER REZEEg S BE
£ LZE ] ZE ] ZE 26 BEAE
Mr. Liu Jian [Chairman)] N/A N/A 1/2 7/9 0/1
AErk(FE) ek NEA
Ms. Chen Zhuo N/A 11 N/A 8/9 Al
BRELt NEA NER
Mr. Liang Bing N/A N/A N/A 8/9 0/1
REEE TER AN MERA
Mr. Long Weimin N/A N/A N/A 8/9 17
BAREE i i NEA
Mr. Wei Zhe N/A N/A N/A 7/9 17
BELE TER TER NER
Ms. Wu Qimin N/A N/A N/A 3/9 1
Rigat MEA TER TER
Mr. Lam Yiu Por N/A N/A N/A 1/3 N/A
BRI E A i TER TER
Mr. Zheng Dong N/A N/A N/A 5/9 0/1
HRrAE i i NEA
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PREBWE
Remuneration Nomination
Audit Committee Committee Committee Board

Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM

ENZEE FWZEEE REZEE Exg B
28 2 = 2L = BEAE
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis 2 1/2 1/2 1/2 3/6 01
FEREE
Mr. Zhang Weilun 44 2/2 2/2 8/9 A
R REE
Mr. Yuan Boyin 2/2 A A 3/3 1
rRiRkAE
Mr. Wu Haibing ¢ 1/2 0/1 0/1 1/3 0/1
REERAE
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral ® 2/2 - - 5/5 N/A
BEELE A
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin ¢ 2/2 - - 5/5 N/A
BRRAE TER
Mr. Huang Anxin’ N/A N/A N/A - N/A
BROEE NEmA NEA NEf TEH
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Mr. Lam Yiu Por has tendered his resignation as a
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 4 May 2017.

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis has tendered his resignation
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, and ceased to be the chairman of the audit
committee, the member of the nomination committee
and the member of the remuneration committee of
the Board with effect from 5 July 2017.

Mr. Yuan Boyin has retired as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and ceased
to be a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board
with effect from 26 May 2017.

Mr. Wu Haibing has retired as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and ceased
to be a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board
with effect from 26 May 2017.

1.

MEBER AL BERRRIFRNITES - B2017F5 740 12
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REREEEEREARABULINTES - L E201755
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RERELEEREARABUIIRNITES - B B201755
ABAREREEEETERZES FHEESRRES




5. Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board
with effect from 31 May 2017. Mr. Chan Wai Cheung,
Admiral has been redesignated as the chairman of the
audit committee of the Board with effect from 5 July
2017.

6. Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board
with effect from 31 May 2017.

7. Mr. Huang Anxin was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 3 October 2017.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires that
the chairman of the board should attend the annual
general meeting. The annual general meeting was
held on 26 May 2017. Mr. Liu Jian, an executive
director and the chairman of the board, was unable
to attend the annual general meeting due to other
important engagement at that time. Ms. Chen Zhuo,
an executive director, has been elected as the
chairman of the annual general meeting. Ms. Chen
and the chairmen of all the Board committees (or
in their absence, other members of the respective
committees) and the external auditor were
available at the annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total
fees paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by Ernst & Young are
set out below:
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5. MREBRLEB2017F5A31HERERT AARRRIB L IEH
TEENESEBETEXZES FHZESRREZE
ERE  REBEXEB017TFTABRATAEEESET
EREZEENER -

6. FMRRBEABE2017FE5A3NBREZ T ARNRRBIEH
NTEERESCETERZES FTHZESREREZE
KB -

7. BROALCEZTAARRBUINITES  H2017F
10A3R AR °

CEEARTHNTABEXEI2ZRT EFSXFRE
EERREFERE - 2017F58268 BT RREF
ARELE JTESHREZGIFEIREEERASR
EMEREEMARERAEFRE HITEERE
ZTEEARRBEFAENERE BT ERZF
BEEZE e IR (RNEARHFEIIESEHEZE
CZEMKE) URINBREMHEHEARAEUEBE
RRERIR A RERE -

BEET =

HZE2017F12A31BEFE ML kG AEHFT
MAEBEREBEZELIEZEREEN TEAHER
WEBET AT

RMB’000
ARET T
Audit service ZEUR TS
Audit of the annual consolidated financial BEZFREAHMEHRE
statements 1,450
Interim review of financial results for HZE2017F6A308 1ENMER 2
the six months ended 30 June 2017 WIS S 4E R HER 800
2,250
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Directors’ and auditor’s
responsibilities on the financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibility to prepare the accounts of the Group
and other disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and the management will provide information
and explanation to the Board to enable it to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other
Board decisions.

A statement by the Company’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, about their reporting
responsibilities is included in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the chairman,
Board and Board committees by developing good
corporate governance practices and procedures.
The Company Secretary of the Company was an
employee of the Company and the Company did not
engage an external service provider as its company
secretary. The Company Secretary took no less than
15 hours of the relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group’'s
risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing its effectiveness, while the management
and other personnel are responsible for
implementing and maintaining the internal controls
systems that covers governance, compliance, risk
management, financial and operational controls
to safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholders’
interests. The system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable, and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

EERKBOAHMBRRNVELE

EFRRAAACREAREORE & ETRAUR
EHRMREER  MEREEAEERREAR
BB EHAHNERAMESRREELAE
A -

B B8R R R H) B LI A BRI % ok & R BB 2= 15 A Y
HBEEEMR - SN ARF R [ I8 2 BAD S
W o

RNEWE

NAMEIEEIR ZEFShEFZEY  EHRY
MEEERFHAREF ARAWNARMERER
FIEER ARFAUEZEINBRGHEYRE QA
WME - NI MEREE2017F12A31BILFEE &
ZALR N EEE RS -

[ B B 3 B A R EE 42

EXeRAERAREZ AREERABEZERS
TEHEERM mMEBREREMABREEER
REBANERRG BBREEL A8 ARE
B M hEEER UWREARBEERFHEZ
Mak o RS2 REH B EE R M IFBUEHER KR
RERXBERZEAR  BEREHEEMFERYH
HWRE N FAEERHERRMHIFK
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Risk Management and Internal Control
Review

During the financial year ended 31 December
2017, the Board has conducted an annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The
following is the summary of the Internal Control
and Risk Management Report.

This report summarizes our assessment and
procedures for the Company’s risk management,
and its internal control is considered to be
sufficient and at low risk. This report also
aims to assist the Company to recognize its
internal control weakness in relevant financial
procedures, systems and internal controls area.

Our assessment starts off from assessing
the over compliance and risk management
control, the financial reporting and disclosure
control, and the operating controls of the
Company. Approaches include interviews
with management on relevant documents,
walkthroughs of processes, tests on selected
operating samples, and a follow-up assessment
after implementation of recommendation on
internal control issues.

We have performed annual enquiries, reviewed
of company’s documents, and on-site inspection
to better identify and understand the extent
of the risks. The Board of Directors has
full responsibility to set up a strategy when
designing a system of internal controls that
eliminate risk and achieve business objectives.
An Internal Control and Risk Management
basic framework is established and it consists
of effectiveness and efficiency of operation;
reliability of financial reporting; and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. In
addition to the policy regarding the disclosure
of Inside Information, an Operation Manual is
also imposed for employees to comply with
applicable laws and all in-house procedures
and practices.
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On an annual basis, the Department Heads
review and update their risk registers;
discussion sessions are then led by the Chief
Executive. Control activities are built on
top-level reviews, segregation of duties and
physical controls by documenting all control
process in policies and procedures to limit
delegation of authority, identifying the material
risks, planning the action items, and finalizing
the budget and business objectives through
variance analyses. The Company Secretary and
legal advisor are also responsible to review
adherence to the laws, while the Board is
responsible to delegate roles and authorities
to the Board members and senior management
and ensure they understand them.

For employee risk management, the Code
of Conduct and Business Ethics are set out;
training sessions are regularly held to reiterate
the Company’'s zero tolerance approach to
bribery and proper business ethics.
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Internal Audit Function

During the financial year ended 31 December
2017, the Company has an internal audit
department which consists of 2 employees
to monitor the daily operations of the Group.
Besides, the Company also appointed an
internal control advisor (the “IC Advisor”] to
perform internal audit for the Group during the
financial year ended 31 December 2017. The IC
Advisor reported to the Audit Committee and
to the Company’s management. The IC Advisor
conducted its internal audit review activities
according to the endorsed internal audit plan
during the financial year ended 31 December
2017. The IC Advisor reported the internal audit
findings and recommendations to both the
Audit Committee and the management of the
Group. The management of the Group agreed
on the internal audit findings and adopted the
recommendations by the IC Advisor accordingly.

Management's confirmation on risk
management

Based on the risk management mechanism and
internal audit review activities mentioned in the
aforementioned paragraphs, the management
of the Group had provided a confirmation to
the Board that the Group had maintained an
effective risk management mechanism and
internal control system during the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Board and the Audit Committee, continue
to evaluate the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting
and internal audit functions, as well as that
function’s training programs and budget.
Based on its annual review, the Board and
the Audit Committee are not aware of any
material deficiencies in the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and consider them
effective and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM") and putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Article of Association
of the Company, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of the requisition the
Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves] may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for directing
shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

The annual report and the Company’s website
provide the contact details of the Company.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward
proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to
put forward proposals at the general meeting under
the Cayman Islands Company Laws or the Articles
of Association of the Company. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph to convene an EGM for any business
specified in such written requisition.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continue to maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders
and investors through diversified communication
channels, including (i) printed copies of corporate
communications (including but not limited to
annual reports, interim reports, notice of meetings,
circulars and proxy forms) required under the
Listing Rules, and shareholders can choose to
receive such documents using electronic means
through the Company’'s website (www.gdzawy. com];
(ii) the annual general meeting provides a forum
for shareholders to raise questions with the
Board: (iii) the Company’'s website contains the
announcements, latest data and information of the
Group, so that the shareholders and investors can
access and inspect the information of the Company
in a timely manner; (iv] analyse briefings are
arranged from time to time to update shareholders
and investors on the Group's performance.

The Company has not made any changes to
the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Associations on or after the Listing Date. A latest
version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association is also available on the website of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFeRs

The Directors have pleasure in presenting its annual
report together with audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in
the provision of property management services
and property management consulting services.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2017,
and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this
Annual Report. The above sections form part of this
report.

During the year, the Company has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to reducing emissions
and minimizing negative environmental impacts
through the implementation of the environmental
management system (“EMS”) across our properties.
The Group’'s EMS is certified to the international
standard 1S014001. Apart from complying with all
relevant international and local regulations, the
Group regularly identify potential environmental
risks and strive for continuous improvement. The
key environmental concerns from the Group’'s
operations relate to resource use and waste
management. The Group have implemented
relevant initiatives, such as implementation of
metering systems to monitor the energy and
water consumption, installation of LED lighting
and energy efficient water pumps. The Group also
promote environmental protection awareness to its
employees and property owners through posting
reminders and providing recycle bins.
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The Group obtain the certification from OHAS18001
occupational health and safety management system.
The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment and it values
the health and well-being of its staff. Adequate
arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is
healthy and safe.

The Company's Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, regarding the same period
covered in this annual report, will be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
within three months from the publication of this
annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH ITS
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group has maintained a good relationship with
its employees, customers and suppliers:
Employees: Employees are the most valuable asset
for the Group. The Group therefore
strive to create a motivated workplace
by providing employees a safe and
healthy working environment, and
a fair workplace with a prospective
career. The Group also emphasis on
its employees’ work-life balance, and
organized various activities throughout
the year.

Customers: The Group is committed to upholding
excellence in its service quality in each
and every part of the services, and
providing a feel-at-home experience
to build customer connection. Various
communication channels are set up to
listen to its customers’ opinions.
Suppliers:  The success of the Group highly
depends on the quality of products and
services obtained from them, hence,
the Group developed procurement
procedures to select and assess its
suppliers carefully.

More details will be disclosed in the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
which will be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company within three months
from the publication of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 81 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK5.0 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 ("Proposed Final Dividend”)
(2016: Nil) to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 4
June 2018.

Subject to the approval by the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the "AGM”], the Proposed
Final Dividend is expected to be payable on or about
15 June 2018. The aggregate amount shall be paid
out of the Company’s share premium account if
the payment of the dividend is approved by the
shareholders at the AGM.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years is set out
on page 212.

DONATIONS

The Group had no charitable donations during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

LOANS

Please refer to note 27 to financial statements
of this annual report for details of the loans and
borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the
Group’s property and equipment are set out in note
14 to financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 29 to
financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was
no equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws of Cayman lIslands,
distributable reserves of the Company as of 31
December 2017 amounted to RMB414.9 million
(2016: RMB396.4 million).

DIRECTORS

The following is the list of Directors during the year
and up to the date of this annual report.

Brief biographies of the current Directors of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” of this annual
report.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weiman

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wei Zhe

Ms. Wu Qimin

Mr. Lam Yiu Por (resigned on 4 May 2017)

Mr. Zheng Dong (appointed on 5 January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (resigned on 5 July 2017)
Mr. Zhang Weilun
Mr. Yuan Boyin (retired on 26 May 2017)
Mr. Wu Haibing (retired on 26 May 2017)
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
(appointed on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin (appointed on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Huang Anxin (appointed on 3 October 2017)

Pursuant to Articles 83(3) of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung,
Admiral, Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin and Mr. Huang
Anxin who have been appointed by the Board shall
hold office until the annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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Pursuant to Articles 84 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo
and Mr. Liang Bing shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has an unexpired service
contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the
Directors throughout the year 2017 and as at the
date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant
to which the Company shall indemnify any Director
against any liability, loss suffered and expenses
incurred by the Director in connection with any
legal proceedings in which he/she is involved by
reason of being a Director, except in any case where
the matter in respect of which indemnification is
sought was caused by the fraud or dishonesty of the
Directors. The Company has maintained insurance
cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
is reviewed on an annual basis. During the year
2017, no claims were made against the Director.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

There were no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and holding company was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, a confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Based on such
confirmations, the Company still considers all of
the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2017, the interests of the
Directors and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”), Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong] as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or which otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

(i) Long position in Shares

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EENRBESTRAERKRG  HERG
&F%W%é

PR2017F12A31A  EERHEBBEARAKRR ST
EEEZE(EEREBEAMBNERHFRBER
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i) ROFHEFR

Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage

Name of Director interests were held shares of interest
B RS
EEnA HEEZNSH R4 EE ERal:1
Mr. Liu Jian Founder of discretionary trust, Interest 435,820,000 54.30%
in controlled corporation

=i PRETAIVA  REEEER
Mr. Wei Zhe Interest in controlled corporation 94,262,000 11.74%
EE&EE XA EE
Notes: B3t -

(1) Dawngate Limited ("Dawngate”] holds 40% of
the issued share capital of Qichang International
Limited (“Qichang”) and is taken to be interested
in all the shares of Qichang and all the Shares of
the Company held by Qichang for the purposes
of Part XV of the SFO. The issued share capital of
Dawngate is held as to as to 15% by Mr. Liu and
85% by Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited as trustee of
the Liu Family Trust. Being the settlor of the Liu
Family Trust, Mr. Liu is taken to be interested in
all the Shares of the Company that the Liu Family
Trust is interested under Part XV of the SFO.

(M REERAR(BEEDFERERBRERATATHED 2
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JBEME BTRA MBI %L E4515%% FHilton Assets
(PTC) Limited A B KR k15 %E’J;?E/\E(Tﬁ?—rﬁ%% [
BEHFRBAEEGIEXVE Bl HAERREETLNE
YA HERARBKIKEXEEERNAELAR 7%@
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&
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(2) Central Oscar Holdings Limited (“Central Oscar”)
is held as to approximately 95.5% and 4.5% by
Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. and
Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur
Fund Il, L.P. respectively, both of which are
managed by Vision Knight Capital (China) GP II,
L.P. ("VKC"), an exempted limited partnership
registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
the general partner of which is VKC (China) GP
Il Ltd. VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. is wholly-owned by
VKC Cayman Il Ltd. Both of VKC (China) GP Il Ltd
and VKC Cayman Il Ltd are limited companies
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. VKC Cayman Il Ltd is owned as 50% by
Mr. Wei Zhe and 50% by Mr. Zhu Daming. Under
the SFO, each of VKC, VKC (China) GP II Ltd, VKC
Cayman Il Ltd, Mr. Wei Zhe and Mr. Zhu Daming is
deemed to be interested in the 94,262,000 Shares
of the Company held by Central Oscar.

(ii) Long position in underlying Shares

(2)

Central Oscar Holdings Limited ([ Central Oscar]) % Bl g
Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund Il, L.P.&Vision Knight
Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund II,L.P.3%%5 4995.5% &
4.5% - & 9 B Vision KnightCapital (China) GP II. L.PI.
[VKCD (ABRERENSEZEZAMNEREERETS
BH)EE H—KE5¥ ARVKC (China) GP Il Ltd e
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd.JhFEVKC Cayman Il Ltd. 2 & %A -
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd®VKC Cayman Il Ltd &R IEFH S8
BEEFMAZABR AR VKC Cayman Il Ltdi&H
HoHE B 50%M HE K B Zhu Damingt 4 # B50%% 4 ©
RIEE % M S 5] - VKC » VKC (China) GP Il Ltd * VKC
Cayman lILtd * & % 4 % Zhu Damingt £ & # &R B R
CentralOscarfT4594,262,000/% /" A IR 5 P #E A #E 25 o

lii) HEARGPHEFE

Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage

Name of Director interests were held underlying Shares of interest

HHE BAERE

BEEnA HEEZNSH gk =] Aotk

Mr. Liu Jian Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
2k E EmEBA

Ms. Chen Zhuo Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
PRE 22+ BB A

Mr. Liang Bing Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
RELE E=mBEA A

Mr. Long Weimin  Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
ERRLE E=mlEA A

Mr. Wei Zhe Beneficial owner 16,000,000 1.99%
mEEE EnlEAA

B EaiFEEIN - R2017F128318  iEZE EHE
B AR KRB ST EENRG - HEKR D
MESDHEAEAERIKE o

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2017,
none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debenture of the Company or
any associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE
COMPANY

Pursuant to the written resolution of the
Shareholders passed on 20 April 2015, the Company
granted the Pre-IPO Share Option to 380 eligible
participants to subscribe for 80,000,000 shares as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group. Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the share options granted are disclosed
in note 30 to financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As announced by the Company on 20 June 2017,
the Board resolved to adopt a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) which has taken effect
immediately.

The purposes and objectives of the Share Award
Scheme are to recognise the contributions by
certain employees of the Group and to provide
them with incentives in order to retain them for
the continual operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

The maximum number of shares that may be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme during its
term is limited to 3% of the issued shares capital
of the Company as at the Adoption Date of 20 June
2017. The maximum number of Shares which may
be awarded to a Selected Person under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the Adoption
Date.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, new
Awarded Shares may be allotted and issued to
the Administration Committee or the Trustee
under general mandates granted or to be granted
by the Shareholders at general meetings of the
Company from time to time and be held in trust
for the Selected Persons until the end of each
vesting period. The issue price of such new Shares
shall be at the nominal value of Shares. When the
Selected Person has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board at the time of making the
Award and become entitled to the Awarded Shares,
the Administration Committee or the Trustee
shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that
Selected Person.
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During the year, a total of 8,434,000 Awarded Shares
were granted to 20 employees of the Group by way
of allotment and issue of 8,434,000 new Shares to
them. There is no other vesting condition imposed
by the Board on the Selected Persons in relation
to the award of 8,434,000 Awarded Shares. Further
details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in
note 30 to financial statements.

Unless otherwise defined in this section, the
capitalized terms used in this section shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the
announcements made by the Company on 20 June
2017 and 22 June 2017 relating to the Share Award
Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company was entered into
with any individual, firm or body corporate during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors had an interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) was entered into by Mr. Liu Jian,
Dawngate Limited and Qichang International Limited
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in
favor of the Company on 5 November 2015, pursuant
to which each of the Controlling Shareholders
will not, and will procure any of its/his associates
and any company directly or indirectly controlled
by he/it (not include any member of the Group)
not to either on his/its own or in conjunction with
any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or
other contractual agreement, whether directly
or indirectly, whether for profit or not, carry on,
participate in, hold, engage in, acquire or operate,
or provide any form of assistance to any person,
firm or company (except members of the Group]) to
conduct any business which, directly or indirectly,
competes or may compete with the business
presently carried on by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or any other business that may
be carried on by any of them from time to time
during the term of the Deed of Noncompetition, in
Hong Kong or China and such other places as the
Company or any of its subsidiaries may conduct or
carry on business from time to time, including but
not limited to provision of property management
services, residential community 020 business and
other related services.

The independent non-executive directors had
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that the Controlling Shareholders have complied
with all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRE
As of 31 December 2017, the register of substantial 20175128318 AR GIREZE S LB EEH F
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shareholders maintained by the Company under 33%KFEMNEERRLZMEEH U TEE (KT
section 336 of the SFO recorded that the following  Z BRI R AR B Y B {7 S AR BE IR 15 70 8 8 LA T 4

entities, other than the Directors of the Company,

E\

S

had an interest in the shares or underlying shares

of the Company as follows:

Long positions 5~
Number
of Shares/ Approximate
Name of Capacity and underlying percentage
shareholder nature of interest Shares of interest
B3, B R
RREEZB BEHRERNEE BOHE BOk
Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited Trustee 435,820,000 54.30%
iEA
Dawngate Limited Interest in controlled corporation 435,820,000? 54.30%
TEEER AR AR
Qichang International Limited Beneficial owner 435,820,000 54.30%
REBRAERAR EnEEA
Vision Knight Capital (China) Interest in controlled corporation 94,262,000 11.74%
GP I, L.P. R EEER
Central Oscar Holdings Limited EnEEA 94,262,000 11.74%
Beneficial owner
Decision Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 54,000,000 6.73%
EREAA
Shanghai Hengji Assets Interest in controlled corporation 54,000,000 6.73%
Management Center (L.P.) XREERER
FEEREEERRL(AERER)
Briarwood Capital Partners LP Investment manager 64,348,000 8.02%
REK®E
Briarwood Capital Partners Interest in controlled corporation 64,348,000 8.02%

GPLLC

RErEE S
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Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3]

(4)

(5]

The issued share capital of Dawngate is held as to 15%
by Mr. Liu and 85% by Hilton Assets (PTC] Limited as
trustee of the Liu Family Trust, a trust with Mr. Liu as
founder and established in accordance with the laws
of the Cayman Islands. The discretionary beneficiaries
of the Liu Family Trust include Mr. Liu and immediate
family members of Mr. Liu.

Dawngate holds 40% of the issued share capital of
Qichang and is taken to be interested in all shares
of the Company held by Qichang for the purposes of
Part XV of the SFO. Each of Suiya Investment Limited,
Signgain Limited and Onsure Limited, being the
wholly-own investment holding company of Ms. Chen
Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin respectively,
holds 20% of the issued share capital of Qichang.

Central Oscar is held as to approximately 95.5% and
4.5% by Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. and
Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund II,
L.P. respectively, both of which are managed by VKC,
an exempted limited partnership registered under
the laws of the Cayman Islands, the general partner
of which is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. VKC (China] GP
Il Ltd. is wholly-owned by VKC Cayman Il Ltd. Both
of VKC (China) GP Il Ltd and VKC Cayman Il Ltd are
limited companies incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands. VKC Cayman Il Ltd is owned as 50%
by Mr. Wei Zhe and 50% by Mr. Zhu Daming. Under the
SFO, each of VKC, VKC (China) GP Il Ltd, VKC Cayman
Il Ltd, Mr. Wei Zhe and Mr. Zhu Daming is deemed to
be interested in the 94,262,000 Shares of the Company
held by Central Oscar.

Decision Holdings is wholly-owned by Shanghai
Hengji Assets Management Center (L.P.}, a limited
partnership registered under PRC laws, the general
partner of which is Shanghai Yidejin Investment
Management Center [L.P.) ("Yidejin”], which is also
a limited partnership registered under PRC laws.
Yidejin is managed by Shanghai Yubo Investment
Management Company Limited (“Yubo”), a limited
company established in the PRC which is an indirect
subsidiary of E-House (China) Holdings Limited. Under
the SFO, each of Hengji, Yidejin and Yubo is deemed to
be interested in the 54,000,000 Shares of the Company
held by Decision Holdings Limited.

Briarwood Capital Partners LP is a limited partnership
registered under the laws of United States of
America, the general partner of which is Briarwood
Capital Partners GP LLC, which is a limited company
registered under the laws of United States of America.
Briarwood Capital Partners GP LLC has 100% control
over the partnership’s affairs but it does not own 100%
of the partnership. Under the SFO, Briarwood Capital
Partners GP LLC is deemed to be interested in the
64,348,000 shares of the Company held by Briarwood
Capital Partners LP.
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B ZARRSE(RE)ERERRANHEENE R
Al RBEBHFLBAERD B FEBERBAZHERA
HDecisionHoldings Limitedf#§54,000,0000% & 2 & f% 17
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
did not enter into any connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which need to be
disclosed in this annual report under Rule 14A.49 of
the Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’'s major suppliers are sub-contractors
providing relevant services for the Group’s property
management and sales assistance business lines.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 30.7%
(2016: 20.7%) of the Group’'s total purchases, and
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 65.9% (2016: 58.1%) of the Group’s
total purchases.

The major customers of our property management
business line include property developers, property
owners and property owners’ associations, while the
major customers of the sales assistance business
line include property developers. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 4.4% (2016: 5.8%) of
the Group’s revenue, and the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 9.8% (2016:
13.7%) of the Group's revenue.

At all time during the year, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders of the Company
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital
had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, experience and prevailing
market rate.

The remuneration committee of the Company
reviews and makes recommendations to the Board
on terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and
other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in note 9 to financial statements of this
annual report.

FEXS

BE017TF12ANBLFE  AEBE Y EF IR
REXZRFEWERS - ARELETHRAFE14A49
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights
under the Company’s Articles of Association or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to
existing shareholder.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no shares
were repurchased and 372,000 shares that were
repurchased in 2016 were cancelled in 2017.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed
herein, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been audited by
Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
AGM of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as the auditors of the Company and to authorise the
Directors to fix its remuneration.

During the year 2017, the Company’s auditors are
changed from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to Ernst &
Young.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

EY:

Independent auditor’'s report

To the shareholders of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited
[Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the
“Company”]) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 81 to 211, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BED RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

FRETEE

MBRESHFRDREAMOEXHE  HAHEE
HHBEBRRNOBARSEENERH RFFTERAE
FEBRBAHMBRRAMNBAERKERE - N
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Key audit matter

REETER

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

B 5 R AEREREEANRE

As at 31 December 2017, trade and bills receivables
of the Group amounted to RMB190,932,000 (net
of provision for impairment). A provision of
RMB67,952,000 was made for impairment of trade
and bills receivables as at 31 December 2017.
Significant management’s judgement is involved in
determining the impairment provision for the trade
and bills receivables, after taking into account
various factors including the aging of balances,
existence of disputes, recent historical and
subsequent payment patterns and other available
information such as the creditworthiness of the
customers.

M2017%F128318 BEXEEMNEBESREWGKERE
WE A AR190,932,0007T (B BEEE) - R
2017F12ANAERESRKFEBREKEERE
ER 1 AR 567,952,000 B F Z 5 fE W 2008 K e
WEENRERESIREATEBHE B
BRIRE BEAMD CHELRERGREXES
BRZARBEFEESHMAIMGBER -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

HERERAS G B HRERM E3R22 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
% BE RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KEAMAERGFPEERRETEE

Our audit procedures included assessing the
Group’s processes and controls relating to the
monitoring of trade and bills receivables. We
checked the accuracy of the aging analysis of trade
and bills receivable balances on a sample basis.
We evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s provision
for impairment of trade and bills receivables by
reference to the Group’s debtor collection history
and subsequent settlements.

AW EAEFERTHEREAHEREIRK
REREREENREF RESH - Arfmkies T
SRBFARERZBEROREDNT - A2 E
ERENRETERERGE REFKFZESH
FIEB ZRKRBANEREBENRERBEEST M
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BED RS

Key audit matter

REETER

Valuation of investment properties

BEWMEMGE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s investment
properties amounted to RMB163,592,000. The Group
recorded a net fair value gain of RMB3,960,000 for
the year, which has been determined with reference
to the valuations performed by an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers on the
market approach. The valuation of the investment
properties involves significant estimates and key
assumptions on items such as the selection of
comparable properties and market price.

R2017F12A318 EEENREVER/RARKE
163,592,0007T - EE B S AFE QX FFEKEA
R #3,960,0007T - h2EXBUEEARERMGEM
TRMGEMETHEMEE - REVENGHEY
FOEB A LB ERTHERERENBERMGEFT R
RA B2 R

In the absence of current prices in an active market
for appropriate similar properties, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources,
including: an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, less active
markets transactions and discounted cash flow of
rental income.

ERREEMENZRTSENHRTERBERT - &
SEERREZETRRENER  BETRMLE
FHERUENYENERMS  REBMERXIR
HEWAFBRBEER -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

AR ERNAA G WK IR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KEAMAERGFPEERRETEE

We examined the objectivity, independence and
competence of the external valuers. We checked to
the property related information and involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the
work of the valuers and assessing the underlying
assumptions, such as selection of comparable
properties, market price and discounted cash flow
of rental income.

AR THNBEEMOTERY BLMERTE-
HPREYERBEREMARSGHEEX BT
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Key audit matter

REETER

Impairment of Goodwill

B R RE

The Group recorded goodwill of RMB105,560,000 as
at 31 December 2017 arising from the acquisitions
of businesses in 2016 and 2017.

20178128318 » &£ B85 RMK20164F %2017
FUEEB N EE AR105,560,0007T °

The carrying values of goodwill is dependent on
future cash flows of the underlying cash-generating
units (CGUs) and there is a risk that if these cash
flows do not meet management’'s expectations,
the assets will be impaired. This risk increases in
periods when the Group’s performance does not
meet management’s expectations. The impairment
reviews performed by the Group’s management
include a number of significant judgements and
estimates including CGU identification, operating
profit forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and
discount rates. Changes in these assumptions can
result in materially different impairment charges or
available headroom.

BENEREEIRNERReELEN((ReELE
BRUDWRRReRE  BUZEREeRTHERE
EHRE FHEAESSARERR - LEABRRESE
BORBAIANEEEHENRASE M - EEEE
BEEETHNREZRREREZREXNHEG kG @
BRIRCELEM KEHENEA  KABERRK
FREXE - ZEBRRNEPUEZREERALRE
BT HIRBATR -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

HEREAAS G BEHRERMEIRT -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
% BE RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KEAMAERGFPEERRETEE

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
impairment model for goodwill and reviewed the
key assumptions adopted by management, including
CGUs identification, operating profit forecasts,
perpetuity growth rates and discount rates. We
tested the mathematical calculation of the forecasts
and carrying values in management’'s impairment
model and compared management’'s estimate of
the recoverable amount and the carrying amount of
each CGUs.

ArREREETHAREBRERALREEEEH
R ER ERBMNRCELSEM KEEF
R KARRRRIT|WE - KETRAIE T A &R
HEREEERERATNHBF;E IHERE
WA E S RO EFTESRSELBUMNKREELE -

We compared short and long-term growth rates
to historical trends. We also considered the
accuracy of prior period forecasts. We involved
valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the
perpetuity growth rate and discount rate for each
CGU by comparing third parties’ information,
past performance and relevant risk factors.
We performed our own sensitivity analyses to
understand the impact of reasonable changes in the
key assumptions.

AAEEMRAERXEFRLBELE - AHAXE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BED RS

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 were audited
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on 28 March 2017.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the
Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
% BE RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BED RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
% BE RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BED RS

We communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in
this independent auditor’s report is Ng Cheung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2018

AHEEZZEERATHENEFEE KHER
B BAEABEREIFR BRAMESRHEREE
Hh PO BR A2 Il B (E {0 B KRB o

AHFMAEREZZRERFLER BFHAMENEER
MEBEVENHBEBERER YREFEBAERA
BRRETERAABUMOMBHEANEMEE
AR AR RARD 848 it (2B ) o

CEREZZECBBNFET  AMEBETH AR
EHVBRRNBAZHEZNEE AMBEXE
RESFH AAEGBEIRETHAZESTR - KR
FERBEZRTIANLARABEEZTFETR  HAEER
FEENBERAT HEEBEREAMBETERRS
RERNAEERRBEEEN QIR - BIAFR
ENEEREPEEZESR -

HEBYZBMBENEAREARARRA -

ZXE T ERKAT
HEDIED

&5

201843 A27H

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2017




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

sreBEn MEMEE NG

Year ended 31 December 2017 B E2017F 12831 H L FE

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET R ARETIT
REVENUE W & 6 977,552 635,146
Cost of sales HE KA (680,715) (478,408)
Gross profit E R 296,837 156,738
Other income and gains H A RS 6 20,617 23,309
Selling and marketing expenses HE REHAX (6,394) (29,450)
Administrative expenses THRAX (115,121) (99,675)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMR AT AE REE -
Joint ventures BENDE 2,645 2,148
An associate RN (111) -
Other expenses HinfA X (39,754) (24,109)
Finance costs B RS A AR 8 (9,512) (4,705)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R 4 A0 ) 7 149,207 24,256
Income tax expenses FTSHiF X 11 (49,919) (27,608)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FER®(EHE) 99,288 (3,352)
Attributable to: UTALTEEER
T, (EE)
Owners of the parent ISYNCIE SN 13 90,549 (6,383)
Non-controlling interests FEYERR 8,739 3,031
99,288 (3,352)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BRAAEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BEAELEER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BF,/ (&E8)
- Basic and diluted (RMB) —EAREE(ARET) 13 0.113 (0.008)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FRKRFTEREZE
(LOSS), NET OF TAX, FOR THE YEAR WA/ (E1R) 99,288 (3,352)
Attributable to: UTATEEFER
I, (E5E) -
Owners of the parent ISYNECIEZZSWN 90,549 (6,383)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = 8,739 3,031
99,288 (3,352)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
sre ISR

31 December 2017 120178128 31H

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T ARBETIT
(Restated*)
(F&EF*)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment ) EYS B 14 35,287 38,159
Investment properties WEWE 15 163,592 139,660
Prepayments for acquisition of W B ¥ 2 M TR IR
properties 16 14,738 27,952
Goodwill Fﬁﬁi 17 105,560 104,630
Investments in joint ventures NEEPEMTE 18 5,020 4,363
Investment in an associate B(\‘ REtERNAIMRE 19 2,689 =
Intangible assets mEAE 20 94,836 106,289
Long-term deposits REZ® 2,267 =
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBE E 21 24,530 16,892
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 448,519 437,945
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 824 748
Trade and bills receivables BoRFIEREREE 22 190,932 159,373
Prepayments, deposits and other ERFRIE ke R
receivables H A i W kIR 23 112,290 73,112
Financial assets designated as at fair  #8& AR A FET A
value through profit or loss BRNemEE = 2,550
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEEY 24 483,806 442,473
Total current assets REBEEHAE 787,852 678,256
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables Z 5 M58 25 44,965 36,575
Other payables and accruals HitENFIERESER 26 385,962 354,052
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER 27 42,276 45,524
Tax payables FE #5818 88,439 51,840
Total current liabilities RBEEEE 561,642 487,991
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 226,210 190,265
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDAER
LIABILITIES 674,729 628,210

*  Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to * IWEARZETESEEEZ2016F12A31BIEFEZK
the audited financial statements for the year ended B ISREB TR - REREIRM T4 EEL#
31 December 2016 and reflect the adjustments made. o
Please refer to Note 4 for details.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR MBTORR

31 December 2017 1420175128318

2017 2016
20174 20164F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR¥FT T AREF T
(Restated*)
(& EH*)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFRIBAEE 21 26,059 29,312
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER 27 58,693 83,424
Liabilities for cash-settled share- LAIR & & E Ry R (n
based payments NRHB&E 30 = 12,411
Other long-term payable H & B FE 1 508 28 43,284 59,617
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEHEE 128,036 184,764
NET ASSETS EERE 546,693 443,446
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS R QTR AEGER
OF THE PARENT
Share capital % 2 29 6,619 6,549
Reserves 1 485,760 379,229
492,379 385,778
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M = 54,314 57,668
TOTAL EQUITY A 546,693 443,446

Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to * MWEMRZETEREEE2016F12A3NBLEFEZL
the audited financial statements for the year ended B BHRREMTR - REEIRWMT4PFFREEL R

31 December 2016 and reflect the adjustments made. .
Please refer to Note 4 for details.
Liu Jian Chen Zhuo
2z B
Director Director
EFE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= &

VN

o= A 5

EY)P

Year ended 31 December 2017 . EZ2017F 12831 L EE

Attributable to owners of the parent Non-controlling interests
RATRBARE T
Retained Share
earnings/ option
Capital Share ~ (Accumu reserve Non-
Issued  Treasury Share redemption  Statutory Other ~ Special option  -lated Sub- ofa  controlling Sub- Total
capital ~ shares  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses) total ~ subsidiary interests total equity
L RERH/ L PEL
BRfR% EERH ROEE HORE iRRE KRR GHRE RRERE (BHER) M EREEE FEREE it i
RMB'00  RMB'0D0  RMB'00  RMB'0D0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000 RMB'0O0  RMB'0D0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTL ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARMTT ARETr ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARETR
(note 31(al} - (note 31(]  [note 31(]) [note 30)
(itsta)  (Hdw) (W) (Hik30)
Asat1 January 2017 H01TE1A1R
[as previously stated] (fnza08e3)) 6,569 (3] 433481 45 5,870 16,000 (79,682 0915 (17,457) 385,778 1925 62,363 04,288 450,008
Adjustmenton correction ~ ZEE L7 B
of an error [note 4] (Hske) - - - - - - - - - - (66200 (66200 (6,620
Asat1 January 2017 H21TE1A1R
[as restated) (nE5) 6,549 [3) 348 45 5,870 16,000 (79,682 095 (1747 385778 1925 55,743 57,608 A3 kb
Profit for the year FmilE = - - - - - - 05 90,569 8739 8739 99,268
Shares cancelled [note )~ BEERH
() ] 3 - 3 - - - - - 3 - - - 3
Acquisiion of asubsidiary ~ YE—FHBA
not consttuting a (TEmZHAH)
business combination - - - - - - - - - - 3,386 3386 3386
Transfer EE - - - - 13N - - - 135m) - - - - -
Contract to acquire THUE-ZIE
remaining interests DEGER
ina subsidiary - - - - - - 135 - - 13,55 - 13554 (1355 =
Recognition of equity- ED\EREE
setfled share-based PO
payments n - 5,653 - - - - 2,486 - 8,212 - - 8,212
Share options forfeited BRMERE - > - - - - (5,717) > [5mn (928 - s (e
As at 31 December 2017 H0TE12ANA 6,619 K W 19462¢ 16,0000 (66,128 19,766 59,520 49231 - 54,314 54316 546,093
Asat 1 January 2016 H0GEIAIE 6,59 - 04N - 5,509 16,000 9hk 16630 (10,684) 501,488 16 10 %9 5017
Loss for the year ENER - - = = - - - - ) (6,383) - 30 w33
Shares repurchasedand ~ EEE T
cancelled bt} (63 - e I3 = e - - [45) (5,599) - - - [5,599]
Sharesrepurchasedbut ~ BEEEREH
not cancelled Hikh - ] (3% - - - - - - (394) - - - (34)
Dividend paid BfiRE > - - - - - - R 1) - - N 11
Acquisiton of subsidiaries ~ AEEMEL 7 - - - - - - - - - - SRR K K R UK )
Contract o acquire remaining £ £1HE-Z KB
interestsinasubsidiary  AALHER - - - - - R X - - (s - - - (8080
Transfer £ - - - - 35 - - - e - - - -
Recognition of equity- B EREE
setiled share-hased HRHAZ
payments - - - - - - - 12,701 - 12,701 1,781 - 1,781 16,482
Share aptions orfeited BRhERE - - - - - - - [6,35] - [6,356) - - - [6,356]
Acquisition of additional W ARERSE
interest n a subsidiary ZhE-708
from a non-controlling LAE)ER
equity holder - - - - - - § - - i - (103] (103] (101)
Asat31 December 2016 RA016E12331R
(as previously stated) (%R 8,949 [3 L3481 i 5870 16000 (79,6820 0915 (17.450) 35,778 1925 62,363 84,288 450,06
Adjustment on correction ~~ EEFEZ R
of an error note ] (Hite) - - - - - - - - - S . (R (Y1
Asat3 December 2016 R2016E123318
[as restated) (nE5) 8,949 (3 38 45 AT 140000 (79,682 095t (14T 385778 1925 58,743 57868 b3 bk

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated
other reserves of RMB485,760,000 and
RMB379,232,000 as at 31 December 2017 and 31

December 2016 respectively.

* ZEREBERSIENR2017F12A318 &2016%12H318
ZIRAEMEE DB B ARKL5,760,0000T K AR

379,232,0007T °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERETMER

Year ended 31 December 2017 B E2017F 12831 H L FE

2017 2016
20175 20165
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
st ARET ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERLEYNRERE
Profit before tax: I 5 A 149,207 24,236
Adjustments for: BUTREFE
Change in fair value of investment properties RENENATEED 7 (3,960) (3,341)
Depreciation nE 7 10,045 7,484
Amortisation of intangible assets BV AE&HE 7 16,305 2,559
Impairment provision on trade and bills receivables EHRUFBRRUER
BERE 7 22,431 13,434
Impairment of prepayments, deposits BRHE REREME
and other receivables WHERE 7 7,041 -
Share of profits of joint ventures and an associate [EER RN —FuE N alFIE (2,534) (2,148)
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) ERER/ (hs)F8 8,657 (12,101)
Share-based payment expenses of the Company NG SR E B 30 2,495 8,345
Share-based payment (reversal)/expenses of a subsidiary ~ —RHTBARIRH T
(BR)/AxX 30 (12,981) 7,683
Loss on disposal of items of property and equipment HENEREZBEANER 7 77 109
Finance costs BB 8 9,512 4,705
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERESRRANKE
financial investments 6 (1,125) -
Bank interest income RITFEBA 6 (1,795) (3,655)
203,375 47,326
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEM/ED (76 665
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables BORMTERENEE
and prepayments, deposits and other receivables URBHHE  RER
Hth e YR IR R I0) iR (94,396) 4,660
Increase in trade and other payables and accruals B RAMENTER
JEsT BREM 54,804 36,915
Cash generated from operations REMEBHEE 163,707 89,566
Income taxes paid EfFEH (24,211) (16,789)
Net cash flows from operating activities RERETBNRLRETE 139,496 72,777
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREZHNEERE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEERRITEIRD = 62,834
Purchases of items of property and equipment BENEREREER (10,927) (9,602)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVAE (4,812 =
Additions of investment properties REREME 15 (1,883) (857)
Prepayment for acquisition of properties WENXBNHE = (6,234)
Income from available-for-sale financial investments REGESRRENPA 1,125 -
Interest received BUFIE 1,795 3,655
Proceeds from disposal of items of property and equipment  HEME KX EE B F157UA 3,686 286
Repayment from non-controlling equityholders WEARFAERER R
of subsidiaries BEEH - 17,271
Dividend received from a joint venture KBE-RaBtENRE 1,988 -
Decrease/[increase] in financial assets designated RERRATEHABENS
as at fair value through profit or loss MEERD/(Bm) 2,550 (2,500)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FNBAR 33 (5,572) (185,403)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting WE—RH B A
a business combination (TERKEBAM) (5,297) =
Consideration received on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RMBEARMYEMNAE = 3,031
Repayment from a related party —BBAER = 178
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FAERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2017 . EZ2017F 12831 L EE

2017 2016

20175 20165

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B &t ARETRT ARETL

Net cash flows used in investing activities REEDFARERERE (17,347) (117,341)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REMETHHNRSRE

New bank loans MERTER 23,000 168,888

Repayment of bank loans BERBTER (45,579) (101,639)

Acquisition of non-controlling interests KEEERER (22,500) (101)

Dividends paid ENRE (17,034) (31,051)

Payment on repurchase of shares BERHEOFR - (5,995)

Repayments to non-controlling equityholders i B 8 R FE R AR

of subsidiaries BRBEEET - (5,918]
Repayment to joint ventures MastEER - (2,700)
Interest paid ERHE (3,030) (1,945)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities RETEH (FA)/ FERER

EFE (65,143) 19,539
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH BeRBSEENEM/

EQUIVALENTS (R2) 28 57,006 (25,025)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FNZReRBALERY 442,473 449,107
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXFHNTETE 15,673] 18,391
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ERZREREESEEY 483,806 442,473
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B&¢ RE &S BYEHR I
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BBMRARMIIEE R

statement of financial position HeSED 483,806 442,473
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED IN THE RERERAMIRER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS REEEN 483,806 442,473
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman lIslands under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law on 5 January 2015. The shares
of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 25 November 2015. The registered
office address of the Company is P.0. Box 2681,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’'s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of property management
services and property management consulting
services in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC”). In the opinion of the directors, the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is Qichang International Limited
(“Qichang”), a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”).

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’'s principal
subsidiaries are as follows:

B FS R M vt

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

AAEER
PRIREEAERLF (TARRAE]) 20155185
HERBEREHSEAREEHEREIMKIRE
RAE—HEREER AR - NQFRMDB20154F
1MABERBEBBBRAER LT - AAA M
MERA U U AP.0. Box 2681, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands °

ARBMBAREEZRPEARKME(THE])
RERHEMEXEERBEDEEELZARE - &
ERR ARRERERRERATRRERR
BR2ABR(TRRE] @ ZARB— KN i
E(RBRELES ] AMKINARRF -

FENEARANESR
ARBETEMBRBINFEBENT -

Percentage of

Place of Issued  equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AANFEMGERE AL Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect activities
ERmAL/ BRITEE/
a8 BEREXLE i RA Hi A TEEK
Zhong Ao Holdings Limited BVI UsD1 100% Investment holding
th B EBERAES (E RERR
Zhong Ao Property Services [Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD1 100% Investment holding
Limited (“Zhong Ao HK”) B T REER
hRANKRYG (FE)BERAR
([HBEE])
Aidaojia Holdings Limited BVI HKD7.75 100% Investment holding
("Aidaojia Holdings"] RERAHE 7.5 T REZK

EARERARRE ((RAFER])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1. AE1ER (&)

[continued)]
Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AAFEMLERE AL Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect activities
MR BRITEE/

£ BRREXLH R A E# k3 TEEH

Aidaojia Information Technology Company Hong Kong HKD2 100% Investment holding
Limited (“Aidaojia Information"] 3 25T REER

FAFEAMRARA
(TEHREA])

Eastern Harbour Engineering Hong Kong HKD2 70% Investment holding
Management Company Limited 55 2B RERR
(“Eastern Harbour”]

RABEIRERERAR
(TR7EE])

BMBENERBAERRAR PRC HKD1,000,000 100% Investment holding
["Guangzhou Xuji")** H 1,000,000/ 7 REER

BMBENEREERRF
(TRMBE])

ERPANEERERAA PRC  RMB100,000,000 100% Provision of property
("Guangdong Zhong Ao"}* FE AR 100,000,000 management services

BERPANFERERAA RENEFERRY
((ERpE])

Mg EERNEREERRA PRC RMB2,500,000 100% Provision of property
(“Hangzhou Lvdu")* F AR #2,500,0007 management services

nMEBHEERDE RS RENEERRY
BRRE (M)

MNEENEERBERAA PRC RMB1,000,000 100% Provision of property
[“Hangzhou Huachang”)# RE  AR1,000,0007T management services

MHEENFERERAA RENEERRB
(TMEE])*

MHZEREERBEARAF PRC RMB1,000,000 100% Provision of online to
("Hangzhou Yidao")* FE AR™1,000,000 offline services

MMERESRBAERRTE R IR T RS
(TRMZ3])*

mMEENERBEERAF PRC RMB500,000 100% Provision of property

(“Hangzhou Gaodi")*
mMEENERBERRF
WRCED

H AE#500,0007
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERA IR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

1. AE1ER (&)

BRI HERIRERAR
(Tx#sgm IR

[continued)]
Percentage of
Place of Issued  equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered ANFEMGERE AL Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect activities
AR BRTER/

£ BEREXLE iR A HE EF: TEER

HLKENEERERAT PRC RMB11,000,000 77.5% Provision of property
(“Zhejiang Yongcheng”)* FE AR11,000,0007T management services

IR EERBERRF RENEERRE
(TR D)

LHERMEERERAT PRC RMB3,000,000 70% Provision of property
(“Shanghai Yidong"]* HE  AK#3,000,0007T management services

LRERNEERERAT RENEERRE
(TEBRED?

LEBAMEERBERAT ("Hongtu")* PRC RMB5,000,000 100% Provision of property

SEBEMETRBRAR (BR])* HE  AK#6,000,0007T management services

RENEERRE

BERENEEENERBERAA PRC RMB5,000,000 77.5% Provision of property
[“Ningho Reston”)# FE  AR%5000,0007T management services

ERENBEEENERBEERDA RENEER RS

[ZREEE])"

ERBANZERERAA PRC RMB1,000,000 60.92% Provision of property
[“Ningho Yongxing”)# FE AR%1,000,0007 management services

ERBENEERERAA RENEERRE
([ERAE]*

BERKHEBRIRERAA PRC RMB3,000,000 65.88%  Provision of engineering
(“Ningbo Yongdu" ¥ FE AR%3,000,0007 services and sale of
ERKHEBRIRERAA engineering spare parts
(TZRKHE]) RETIERBBRHEE

IREHHE

ERRNRKRERREERDA PRC RMB100,000 77.5% Provision of catering
(“Yongcheng Catering” }# mE ARK100,0007T services

EREMEXXERRBEERDA REERRS
(KBS

BRI ANBEIRERAT PRC RMB200,000 73.35%  Provision of engineering
[“Yongdu Weak Current Engineering”|* H AR #200,0007C services and sales of

engineering spare parts
Rt TR2RAS &
HEIRTH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSSR R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. AE1ER (&)

[continued]

Percentage of

Place of Issued  equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AAFEMLERE AL Principal
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect activities
B3 BRTER/
L BLREE DY MR A BEE B FTEEK
ENPRREEXERAA PRC RMB10,000,000 60% Provision of property
(“Zhong Ao Shangye” ¥ #E  AR%10,00,0007T services
EMREBXEXARRA RENE RS
(ThEmEE])
BHRRPEHEALER ARAA PRC RMB1,000,000 51% Provision of business
[+ 9MEE) (“Zhong Ao Zhong”)# mE ARM1,000,000 services
ENRRAEELZLEBARDA RERERS
(FaE) ([ham )
ERRREEHEERAT PRC RMB2,000,000 775%  Provision of real estate
[“Ningbo Dongyi”)# RE  AR2,000,0007T services
ERRREEHEARAR REFEERS
([ERRE]*
EREREAIRERAA PRC RMB2,000,000 77.5%  Provision of architectural
(“Ningbo Guochen”)# L AR #2,000,0007C ornament services
EREREMTRERATA REBERMRS
([ERER])"
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

[continued]

* Guangzhou Xuji and Shanghai Yidong are
registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law and the registered capital has
been fully paid up.

#  The subsidiary is a limited liability company.

During the year, the Group acquired Hongtu and
Zhong Ao Shangye. Further details of acquisition
of Hongtu are set out in note 33.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"], accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets designated as
fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

.
—

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

YNGIE-¢-3¢ )

* OEMBEREBERREVEAZEMABIEBED
¥ HEAMEACHRE -

fORRRRBREMERA

FRA AEERBTHRERPEBE - WEKE
M — R IBEE SR M R3S -

RN EEZRREIEFEAEEXEREE
MAKEHNBAR EERRIEEMMEL
AMFBERERREIIE

A

ZEMBRRDEREBEAMAG ([BEEF
Eﬁi"AJ) B2 BEMBHREER ([EFE M

ﬁt@ﬁH'JJ) (’T%Ffrﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%#&iﬁ U
SRR (THEEFEN) RRE) BELE
RS WZ JrJ?E'J&%/% BRG] 2 B EE AR E T 4w
B ZEMBRRIDIBBELKAEIERR
MR A FEFABRZREYEAIR R FEE -
ZEMBRERROUAARE (AR JIK - Mk
ABERA ABEBEOHABREREONTA -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee [i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c] the Group’'s voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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REEE

KEHPBRERBEBBFALG LEMNB AR (5
[REB]) HZE2017F12A318 It FE 2 B R
K -MBRARAARREEXMELEHZ2ER (&
EEBEER) EXSEHP2HERLEHRER
ZF BB HmAERR S E BRI REEEBEIR
B EN(AIASEERE TR0 NNTE
KREHRAMEE 2T EN) P EZE R mE
BIER 1S 4 $Il 4 -

AR A T B SRR A M RIR A T IR B
LUERITRAY - RIS AT HRIRE T 2E
BERNE  AEESEEFREAREERER -
BIE -

(a) EZFRET EMEEEFHENAR L
(b) RIEBEEMERLZHAMZERIEN &

(c) AEENRRENBLRZE -

MEBAREARAMYHHRRBSHER - LK
A—HEEREH HWEBARNEEHAKE
RGEtE s A RGERFTE  YHEGAAKRSE
EAS R S IS N

B REME2EKRSNSAKED HEBNASK
B RBFAEARIEERERS - BE L8
EREaEBRAR - ESERRRIRNEE
RafE #m - WA RAXRAEEKE QA FE
RZEBENRERONGAKRBF2HIEE -




2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation /continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii] the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii] any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments Disclosure Initiative
to HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 12 included in
Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

[continued]

The nature and the impact of the amendments
are described below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity
to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Disclosure
of the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities is provided in note 34(b)
to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an
entity, when assessing whether taxable
profits will be available against which
it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether tax
law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on
the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain
the circumstances in which taxable profit
may include the recovery of some assets
for more than their carrying amount. The
amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the
Group as the Group has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in
the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12,
other than those disclosure requirements in
paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply
to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate, or a portion of its
interest in a joint venture or an associate
that is classified as held for sale or included
in a disposal group classified as held for
sale. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the
Group did not have any disposal group held
for sale as at 31 December 2017.

22 BEREBEERBR2EH (&)

BRIAZEERFERAINT

(a)

(b)

(c)
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are
not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments Classification and Measurement

to HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Amendments Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

to HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

Amendments Prepayment Features with Negative
to HKFRS 9 Compensation’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers’

Amendments Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
to HKFRS 15 from Contracts with Customers’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates and
to HKAS 28 Joint Ventures?

Amendments Transfers of Investment Property’
to HKAS 40

HKIIFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration’

HKI(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to the following
to 2014-2016 Cycle standards
- HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting
Standards'
- HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures’
Annual Improvements  Amendments to the following
to 2015-2017 Cycle standards
- HKFRS 3 Business Combinations?
- HKFRS 11Joint Arrangement?
- HKAS 12 Income Taxes?
- HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEEAERNEBBRE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS /(continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

: No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is
described below.

Of those standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
will be applicable to the Group’s financial year
ending 31 December 2018 and are expected
to have a significant impact upon adoption.
Whilst management has performed a detailed
assessment of the estimated impacts of
these standards, that assessment is based
on the information currently available to the
Group. The actual impacts upon adoption
could be different to those below, depending
on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group
at the time of applying the standards.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
2 in August 2016 that address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a
share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet an employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to
account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also
applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety
as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified,
with the result that it becomes an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification.
On adoption, entities are required to apply the
amendments without restating prior periods,
but retrospective application is permitted if
they elect to adopt for all three amendments
and other criteria are met. The Group will
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018.
The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEEAERNEBBRE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS /(continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases
of the financial instruments project to replace
HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will
not restate comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against
the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. During 2017, the Group has performed
a detailed assessment of the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts
relate to the classification and measurement
and the impairment requirements and are
summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact
on the classification and measurement of
its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) Impairment

23T EMEEARERNEBUBRSE

R (&)

(b) BB

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on
debt instruments recorded at amortised
cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables,
loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are not accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9,
to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss model either on a twelve-month basis
or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply
the simplified approach and record lifetime
expected losses that are estimated based
on the present values of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its trade and
bills receivables. Furthermore, the Group
will apply the general approach and record
twelve-month expected credit losses that
are estimated based on the possible default
events on its other receivables within the
next twelve months. The Group expects
the impact the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
increase the impairment provision of the
debt instruments. The Group will perform a
more detailed analysis which considers all
reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking elements, for
estimation of expected credit losses on
its trade and other receivables upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

EEMBHREEBNEIRRELEBREETE
MBEHmELENESREAFEAABREZE
B A AR AN IR A ER AR 2 E RS
ZEBTE HERKFE EFREHBLY
BEREVAERE LK RERBPESEES
BRAKZ T —EAREEXAERELEAR -
AEBEBEABET N EHRBERAAEE
BRKRABALBUZEHTIFRARNZAA
ReZRRERFZIERFH cBHER
AR IESN AEBBEERB —RITE LR
BEEMBYFER AR+ —EARNATEEE
MENEMTHT _EAARBEEEFE - K
SEARRABTEMBRELENEIRZF
EReRMER TANBERE AEREHK
ETEFANN  EEMAAREAAXKHE
HHEBREAEETRIA G RAT BT BR
SEAFIRFEE S R HAMEURFKAENTE
HEEESE -

PRIAKEEERAF | 2017 F]H

99




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EMEBEEARENMNEBHBERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL ZE Bl (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS (continved)

(b) Impairment (continued)

(b) B (&)

100

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a
new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective
adoption is required on the initial
application of the standard. In June 2016,
the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues
on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15
and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard. The Group plans to
adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
15 to recognise the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at 1
January 2018. In addition, the Group plans
to apply the new requirements only to
contracts that are not completed before
1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment on
the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.
The Group expects that the transitional
adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018
upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
be material and the expected changes in
accounting policies will not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements
from 2018 onwards.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 15 are more detailed than those
under the current HKAS 18. The presentation
requirements represent a significant change
from current practice and will significantly
increase the volume of disclosures required in
the Group’s financial statements. Many of the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are new
and the Group has assessed that the impact
of some of these disclosure requirements will
be significant. In particular, the Group expects
that the notes to the financial statements
will be expanded because of the disclosure of
significant judgements made on determining
the transaction prices of those contracts
that include variable consideration, how the
transaction prices have been allocated to the
performance obligations, and the assumptions
made to estimate the stand-alone selling
price of each performance obligation. In
addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the Group
will disaggregate revenue recognised from
contracts with customers into categories
that depict how the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
are affected by economic factors. It will also
disclose information about the relationship
between the disclosure of disaggregated
revenue and revenue information disclosed for
each reportable segment.

23T EMEEARERNEBUBRSE

R (&)

EHRREE

FRAMBHREEFIRO2REBBERIREH
FRGHENFISRELSFM 2HRATHRE
FHRNBEAZHAAEEVBRRAFOREE
HeRIEIEN - FEMBRELENFISRNEZ IR
&%ﬁi%%ﬁ AARRERAFETHZERESR
VRERBEAN - LER  AKREEFMBR
%WE%EK THARBBEEEZFRONRS
ERMEHNERHE  BETEKE K58
WADEERITEERGASRTEEANERE
ERTEHEVERAR - S BB M E ERISE15
SARE - AEEBETFRIAA KT TR
WADREBER - ZERRIHEERKRAKR
%m%m&% BB R R A REE A XA
EREZE ENKBEENBEBRAREREN 2
W“%H%%WA@MZW%%%E%QM

PRIAKEEERAF | 2017 F]H

101




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EMEBEEARENMNEBHBERE

102

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Presentation and disclosure (continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces
HKAS 17 Leases, HKIIFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives
and HKISIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees - leases
of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term [i.e.,
the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40,
or relates to a class of property and equipment
to which the revaluation model is applied.
The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS /continued)

Presentation and disclosure (continued)

HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can
choose to apply the standard using either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
16 from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption
and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available
and which transition approach and reliefs will be
adopted. As disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group
had future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately RMB17,921,000. Upon adoption
of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis,
however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not
limited to, any amounts relating to leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases, other
practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and
new leases entered into before the date of
adoption.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEEAERNEBBRE

104

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS /(continued)

Presentation and disclosure (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017,
clarify when an entity should transfer property,
including property under construction or
development, into or out of investment property.
The amendments state that a change in use
occurs when the property meets, or ceases to
meet, the definition of investment property and
there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of
a change in use. The amendments should be
applied prospectively to the changes in use that
occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendments. An entity should reassess the
classification of property held at the date that it
first applies the amendments and, if applicable,
reclassify property to reflect the conditions that
exist at that date. Retrospective application
is only permitted if it is possible without the
use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2018. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Presentation and disclosure (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides
guidance on how to determine the date of the
transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and
recognises a non-monetary asset or liability.
The interpretation clarifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it)
is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment]
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income] arising from the payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. Entities may
apply the interpretation on a full retrospective
basis or on a prospective basis, either from
the beginning of the reporting period in which
the entity first applies the interpretation or
the beginning of the prior reporting period
presented as comparative information in the
financial statements of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 230 EMEEARERNBEBHBRSE

106

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Presentation and disclosure (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses
the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of
HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply
to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12,
nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(ii) the assumptions an entity makes about
the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii] how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv)] how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation
is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and
joint ventures are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’'s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures /continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon
loss of significant influence over the associate
or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence
or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is classified as held for sale, it
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
[continued]

When the Group acquires a business, it
assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives
in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the previously held equity interest is
remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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110

[continued]

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’'s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units] to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties
and financial assets designated as fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Fair value measurement /continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required (other than inventories, deferred
tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
[continued]

An impairment loss is recognised only if
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is
an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v] the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vil the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vila person identified in (alli) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); and

\viil the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment and
depreciation

Property and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property
and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of each item of
property and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal
useful lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 3 to 5 years,

3 -5years

3 -10years

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment and
depreciation /continued]

Construction in progress represents leasehold
improvements under construction, which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of
property and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

For a transfer from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties, the deemed cost of
a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property
and equipment and depreciation” above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land
and buildings (including the leasehold interest
under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognised in profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Software and trademark

Purchased software and trademark are stated
at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of three to ten years.

Acquired property management contracts

Acquired property management contracts are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the sum of the years digits basis
over its estimated useful life of five to fifteen
years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to
the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, are included
in property and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by
the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that
is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
[continued]

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with positive net changes
in fair value presented as other income and
gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in
finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
[continued]

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments
are non-derivative financial assets in debt
securities. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale financial
investments until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale financial investments
to the statement of profit or loss in other
gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
[continued]

Available-for-sale financial investments
[continued]

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial
assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management
has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’'s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
[continued]

e the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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124

[continued]

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
[continued]

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account
and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to other expenses in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments,
the Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less
any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
[continued]

Available-for-sale financial investments
[continued]

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original
cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss - is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as
available for sale, impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets
carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the
amortised cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount
of the asset using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss
if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.,SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QLEESTTHEME #)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
and other payables, liabilities for cash-settled
share-based payments, other long-term payable
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and other long-term payable are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired
and held by the Company or the Group (treasury
shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are merchandise goods stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs
in profit or loss.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws] that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
an associate and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4,SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QLEESTTHEME #)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Income tax /continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, an associate and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Income tax /continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services when the
services are rendered;

(c] rental income, on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms;

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

QLT EGEHBERBE &)

Frig®i (&)

BERERAEERELERARBEERATNERA T
e - Bl AN SR B &R R B #7178 A A% B B A
HEERMHAAEREARERRAEEME
EHEREBTR -REEEALR - ERHER
HTFRRVERABKAEN - MERKEER
EHIABELEEFRY A AE U D &5 R K
MABNFRELELZHINYHAREREE - &
RINEREEYEERE -

AT 78 RG

BN E A BRERKE BETE AN
BHRRE AT ERER - MABETRZIER R
PZBMEMN KA AR RGN EEER
BUA o

ﬂﬁuﬂwmﬁ$’§ EIRER &2

(a) KEHEE MWK IIRN Fﬁﬁ’féﬂ’ﬂik@ﬁﬁ
HEREEBRERE S MAKEHLERE
“Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’]ﬂ%\!{/,\IJZQE%E‘E'D
B A B8 Il B B

(b) 2R A $2 AR 75 H) U st 10 AR A5 4 B AR

(c) A& U A TI AR HI 4% i I LL PIARR

PRIAKEEERAF | 2017 F]H

131




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

2.,SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QLEESTTHEME #)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Revenue recognition /continued)

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been
established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’'s operations.
Employees (including directors]) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is
measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 30 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit
or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Share-based payments /continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions
are not taken into account when determining
the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’'s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair
value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met, no expense is
recognised.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award
are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group
or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Share-based payments /continued)

The cost of cash-settled transactions is
measured initially at fair value at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes formula, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the instruments were granted (note 30). The
fair value is expensed over the period until the
vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The liability is measured at the end
of each reporting period up to and including
the settlement date, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the Company has granted the employee
the right to choose a share-based payment
transaction is settled in cash or by issuing
equity instruments, the company has granted a
compound financial instrument, which includes
a debt component (i.e. the employee’s right
to demand payment in cash) and an equity
component (ie the employee’s right to demand
settlement in equity instruments rather than in
cash). The company shall first measure the fair
value of the debt component, and then measure
the fair value of the equity component — taking
into account that the counterparty must forfeit
the right to receive cash in order to receive
the equity instrument. The fair value of the
compound financial instrument is the sum of
the fair values of the two components.

The Company shall account separately for the
services received in respect of each component
of the compound financial instrument. For the
debt component, the company shall recognise
the services acquired, and a liability to pay
for those services, as the employees renders
service, in accordance with the requirements
applying to cash-settled share-based payment
transactions. For the equity component (if
any), the company shall recognise services
received, and an increase in equity, as the
employees renders service, in accordance with
the requirements applying to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute
14% to 20% of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability
when they are approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared, because the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association grant
the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES /continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary
item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item [i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation and any fair value adjustments
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’'s financial
statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial
property leases on its investment property
portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating
leases.

Operating lease commitments - Group as
lessee

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on certain properties. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it does
not retain all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

[continued]
Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment
properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property
qualifies as an investment property, and has
developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Therefore, the Group considers whether
a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could
be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described
below.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

[continued]
Estimation uncertainty /continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Significant judgements and estimates
involved in cash generating unit identification,
operating profit forecasts, perpetuity growth
rates and discount rates. Changes in these
assumptions can result in materially different
on impairment charges or available headroom.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2017 was RMB105,560,000 (2016:
RMB104,630,000). Further details are given in
note 17.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for intangible assets
in respect of property management contracts
at the end of each reporting period. Intangible
assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the net carrying amounts
may not be recoverable.

The net carrying values of intangible assets
are dependent on future cash flows of the
underlying cash-generating units and significant
judgements and estimates are involved in cash
generating unit identification, operating profit
forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount
rates for the beneficial period of the intangible
assets.

Provision for impairment of receivables

Provision for impairment of receivables is made
based on the aging of balances, existence of
disputes, recent historical and subsequent
payment patterns and other available
information such as the creditworthiness of the
customers. The assessment of the impairment
amount required involves management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, the differences will
impact on the carrying value of receivables and
impairment charge/write-back of impairment
in the period in which the estimate has been
changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

[continued]
Estimation uncertainty /continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The valuation of the investment properties
involved estimated and assumption on item such
as the selection of comparable properties and
market price. In the absence of current prices
in an active market for similar properties, the
Group considers information from a variety
of sources for estimation of fair value of
investment properties, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature, condition
or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at
31 December 2017 was RMB163,592,000 (2016:
RMB139,660,000]). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value
measurements and a sensitivity analysis, are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD

ERROR

On 26 July 2016, the Group entered into
an equity transfer agreement and a joint
venture agreement (the “Agreements”] with
10 individual equity holders (the “Vendors”)
to acquire 70% equity interests in Zhejiang
Yongcheng with certain indebtedness (the
“Acquisition”) at a cash consideration of
RMB210,000,000. The Acquisition of the 70%
equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng was
completed in October 2016. According to the
Agreements, net profit of Zhejiang Yongcheng
derived during the period from 1 January 2016
to the date upon the renewed business licence
of Zhejiang Yongcheng being granted should
be appropriated to the foregoing Vendors. The
profit represented identifiable liabilities at the
date of acquisition of Zhejiang Yongcheng. As a
consequence, other payables and accruals and
goodwill at the date of acquisition of Zhejiang
Yongcheng recorded by the Group have been
understated and non-controlling interests at
the date of acquisition of Zhejiang Yongcheng
recorded by the Group have been overstated.
The correction of error did not have an impact
on profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD 4L AIEAESEEIE ()
ERROR (continued)
The error has been corrected by restating each ZEREBRBINEFSEXTEVKRERES
of the affected financial statement account EHRN T TFUEIL :

balances for the prior year as follows:

Impact on the consolidated statement of HREBRARNEE
financial position

31 December 2016
2016%12H31H

RMB’'000
AREETT
Increase in goodwill and total 78 R IETR & E A E L N
non-current assets 15,447
Increase in other payables and accruals, Hth e RIEREFTERNAK
and total current liabilities BB BTG N 22,067
Decrease in net assets EEFERD 6,620
Decrease in equity attributable to R EREGERRD
non-controlling interests 6,620
Decrease in total equity ERBERD 6,620
The change did not have an impact on profit or BB EHESREMEPENKE B E20165F12
loss and other comprehensive income, earnings RANBLFENERANIAERNLE  KRE
per share for the year ended 31 December FREREREEXNTLE o
2016 or the Group’'s operating, investing and
financing cash flows.
5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. K&E D IWER
INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is REBEMME - AEEZRNFEREHERBOM
organised into business units based on the BEEENDEBEGLNT :
geographical zones of services rendered in the
PRC as follows:
(a) Southern Region includes the cities of (a) EEMWEREEN mME =3¢ 80 6#
Guangzhou, Nanning, Sanya, Haikou, (ATRRN NIV R NS B = SR= -3 = 7 NS~ /= 30

Foshan, Zhongshan, Jiangmen, Qingyuan, X8 BM BMESE: &
Zhaoqing, Guilin, Zhuhai, Wenchang,
Huizhou, Wuzhou and Cenxi; and
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Eastern and Central Region includes the
cities of Hangzhou, Suzhou, Chongqging,
Ningbo, Jiaxing, Nantong, Shaoxing, Quzhou,
Nanchang, Shanghai, Wuxi, Xuancheng,
Zhenjiang, Huzhou, Nanjing, Hengyang,
Jingjiang, Zhuji, Chuzhou, Yangzhou, Yixing,
Chizhou, Wenzhou, Huai'an, Zhoushan,
Taizhou, Taixing, Huanggang, Taizhou and
Hefei; and

(c) Northern Region includes the cities of
Baotou, Eerduosi, Dalian, Beijing, Tianjin,
Bazhou, Tangshan, Qingdao, Shenyang,
Baoding, Langfang and Zibo.

Management monitors the results of the
Group’s operating segments separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a
measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax.
The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that changes in fair value of investment
properties, bank interest income, change in
fair value of financial assets designated as fair
value through profit or loss, investment from
available-for sale financial investment, share of
profits of joint ventures, share of losses of an
associate, net foreign exchange gains/losses,
share-based payment expenses, finance costs
as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets,
tax recoverable, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets designated as fair value through
profit or loss and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment Lliabilities exclude interest-bearing
bank borrowings, other long-term payable,
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. KR&EHWER (#)
INFORMATION (continued)
Operating segments 4 28 4. 30
Eastern
Southern  and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
EEHE ERETHE £ HE @t
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2WTEN2ANALEE RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tr AR¥Tn AR%Tn AR%T:n
Segment revenue PHYE 235,479 676,262 65,811 977,552
Segment results NHRE 65,061 122,194 11,823 199,078
Reconciliation: 5%
Bank interest income RATMEHA 1,795
Changes in fair value of investment properties BANEHATELY 3,960
Net foreign exchange loss EXEEEE (8,657)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial ~ HEFELRHE 2
investments 1,125
Corporate expenses PERT (51,602)
Share-based payment expense OIE 5T (2,495)
Reversal of share-based payment expense BEROEZES 12,981
Share of losses of an associate Blh—FHel TE‘ETE 111
Share of profit of joint ventures ElEAERENHE 2,645
Finance costs BBKAR 9,512)
Profit before tax BB AIAE 149,207
Segment assets PHEE 439,460 351,424 13,006 803,890
Reconciliation: 2%
Elimination of intersegment receivables Y30 HEEMTE (614,381)
Corporate and other unallocated assets EREMRS @Eﬁﬁ 1,046,862
Total assets BERE 1,236,371
Segment liabilities AHBAMR 205,083 332,331 21,791 559,205
Reconciliation: b
Elimination of intersegment payables D BEENTE (614,381)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities PEREMANEERE 744,854
Total liabilities AERE 689,678
Other segment information R HEs
Impairment losses recognised in profitor loss B ERLFHERE 4,849 23,937 686 29,472
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH
Unallocated AOR 62
Segment 2 4,939 21,210 139 26,288
Investment in an associate R-RBENAIHRE 2,689 - - 2,689
Investments in joint ventures ReghENRE = 5,020 = 5,020
Capital expenditure* BEARR
Unallocated AORE 1,000
Segment 2 18,554 6,378 57 24,989
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to * BARATBEABMERSE REVE EBEREAE

property and equipment, investment properties, R B EN TR FRIE -
intangible assets and prepayments for acquisition

of properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. KREDHER @)
INFORMATION (continued)
Operating segments /continued) ReEE(2)
Eastern
Southern  and Central Northern
_Region  Region __Region Total
\ FHlE EREVHE EithR a5t
Year ended 31 December 2016 HEW6EFN2ANBLEE RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR%TrR ARBT:
Segment revenue 2 EME 201,219 380,557 53,370 635,146
Segment results PHEE 41,603 37,186 4,472 83,261
Reconciliation: 4%
Bank interest income FATMEBA 3,655
Change in fair value of investment properties ~ RE&NENAFEEH 3,341
Net foreign exchange gains R R 12,101
Corporate expenses PERT (59,517)
Share-based payment expense RARFES (16,028)
Share of profits of joint ventures EEEREENE 2,148
Finance costs BB (4,705)
Profit before tax BRBAIHIE 24,256
Segment assets PHEE 263,457 599,193 7,572 870,222
Reconciliation: Eor 2
Elimination of intersegment receivables Y350 BEERGE (574,633)
Corporate and other unallocated assets TtEREMANEEE 820,612
Total assets BERE 1,116,201
Segment liabilities PHERE 86,779 327,065 25,126 438,970
Reconciliation: o/ 208
Elimination of intersegment payables HHA PEEAE (574,633)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities CERREMAIEAR 808,418
Total liabilities AERE 672,755
Other segment information EnsEn
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss ~ REREANRESE 3913 8,360 1,161 13,434
Depreciation and amortisation EREH
Unallocated ADR 49
Segment A 3,719 6,221 54 9,994
Investments in joint ventures REERENRE = 4,363 = 4,363
Capital expenditure* EXREX*

Unallocated ADR 179
Segment ki) 15,105 128,453 144 143,702
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to * BARIBREABVMERSE BREDE BFEE

property and equipment, investment properties, R B HE R TE I -

intangible assets and prepayments for acquisition
of properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. REoHER (&)
INFORMATION /continued)

Operating segments /continued) ReEDE &)

The Group is mainly engaged in property REEXBRITERMEETERT WMEEY &
management business, sale assistance FRIRTEBREMER - TREDIZREKRE

businesses, online to offline business and other oo AREBKREREEDN
businesses. The following table provides an
analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

based on types of business:

Property Sale Online
management assistance to offline Other
business  businesses business  businesses Total
nx - a]
EEEH kRS BT Hip %% @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR%®Tr ARt ARETx
(Note a) (Note b} (Note ) (Note d]
(i) ki) (M) (Bt skd)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017512A31A
LEE
Segment revenue AHhE 910,941 43,187 288 23,136 977,552
Segment results PEEE 185,378 15,979 (4,079) 1,800 199,078
Property Sale Online
management assistance to offline Other
business businesses business businesses Total
VES &3
ERER HEER BT¥% Efh ¥ @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBT:
[Note a) (Note b) (Note c] (Note d)
(Mizta) (Kizth) (W) (Miztd)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BZ2016512A31A
LFE
Segment revenue 7l 559,372 55,731 8,264 11,779 635,146
Segment results GEES 104,943 23,472 (50,274] 5,120 83,261
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

Operating segments /continued)

Notes:
(al The Group primarily provides property
developers and property owners with a broad
range of property management services to
mainly residential properties, commercial and
government buildings. Services provided by the
Group include standard property management
services and ancillary services.

(b) The Group provides property management service
to property developers for their sales centres.
The services rendered by the Group include
cleaning, security and maintenance services
for their model houses and sales centres and
provision of general assistance to facilitate the
sales process of the properties.

(c)] The Group offers a broad range of services and
products to its residents, as well as enhancement
to its existing property management services
through its electronic sales platform.

(d) Other businesses comprise consulting services,
engineering services, catering services and the
sale of engineering spare parts.

Information about a major customer

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, there was no revenue from transaction
with a single customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue .

Geographical information

The Group’s total revenue are all generated in
Mainland China and the non-current assets are
all located in Mainland China.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6. Wz ~ HM WA R IKEHE
GAINS
Revenue represents income from rendering WS IRERGSATSWA - MDEESERS -
services such as property management services SHBREAKEEERE  YEHBREEHREM
and sale assistance services and the sale of Min% o

goods, net of business tax and other surcharges.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains Wz s H WA RWZH O T ¢
is as follows:

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Revenue W &=
Rendering of services RRERS 971,390 629,062
Sale of goods tHE S m 6,162 6,084
977,552 635,146
Other income Hp g A
Bank interest income SFRITHR B WA 1,795 3,655
Government grants BT 8 B 11,095 3,028
Rental income e WA 2,575 762
Others Hi 67 422
15,532 7,867
Gains W=
Change in fair value of investment REMENRFELEE
properties 3,960 3,341
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale PEAESRIRE 2 K=
financial investments 1,125 -
Net foreign exchange gain fE A a5 R - 12,101
5,085 15,442
20,617 23,309
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. BRI AR

81

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

R M=

AEBOKRBAABE M (GEA) TFIIER

2017 2016
20175 20164
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
(b= AR T AREETT
Cost of services provided FFr 42 i AR 7% A AR 674,806 473,044
Cost of goods sold EE R 5,909 5,364
Depreciation e 14 10,045 7,484
Amortisation of intangible assets £ 2 & & # 20 16,305 2,559
Employee benefit expense EERAMXZ CTEE
(excluding compensation to FEEEASWH) :
key management personnel):
Salaries and other benefits S & E b 42 F 297,679 188,788
Retirement benefit scheme RRER T EIHRK
contributions 11,881 13,511
Share-based payment expenses & 17 1< B 2 1,885 3,459
311,445 205,758
Impairment of trade and bills 2 5 IR R
receivables R R B RIE 22 22,431 13,434
Impairment of other receivables  Hfth JE U ZUIE R B 23 7,041 -
Minimum lease payments under  E&HETH
operating leases SRBEKE 7,535 5,385
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR i B 2,250 7,350
Change in fair value of KEWERTE
investment properties ok 15 (3,960) (3,341)
Rental income e WA b (2,575) (762)
Net foreign exchange BE BB (W)
losses/(gains) F 8,657 (12,101)
Bank interest income IRITF B UA 6 (1,795) (3,655)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEFELREIRE
sale financial investments pa & 6 (1,125) =
Loss on disposal of items of HEMERRZREIER
property and equipment " E 18 77 105
Government grants* I8 8 B 6 (11,095) (3,028)
*  Government grants include various subsidies * RSB EIEARRINE AR B R BT

received by the Company’'s subsidiaries from

relevant government bodies. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to

these grants.

By BEAWZ SN RER G RBRENS -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. M MA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: ISR AR DT ¢
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREETT
Interest on borrowings & B 4,646 2,384
Interest expense imputed on HENREmMEED
consideration payable FERXZ 6,221 1,088
Interest expense (reversed)/imputed on FLIR & & E M5 T Fm
non-current liabilities for cash-settled (¥ [@) #E N IERE
share-based payments BEMERAX (1,355) 1,233
9,512 4,705
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration
for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)
(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

. BEERESTHRASEHMH

REBMZES EMARA T EHRA]) - FERQ
] {5 51 %383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () R A 2 &) (3
BEENZERRIE2MBRENAREFEEER
RRITRABHMNOT

2017 2016

20174 20164F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR AR T

Fees e 4,134 5,304

Other emoluments: HiM4 :

Salaries, allowances and benefits e RBREYAZ

in kind 8,426 2,582

Equity-settled share option expense W S E B RER S 1,228 4,618

Pension scheme contributions RIRE AR 93 193

9,747 7,393

13,881 12,697

On 20 April 2015 and 10 July 2015, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company. Further details
of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’'s remuneration disclosures.

R2015% 48208 K2015F78108 5T EEH
BEAAEBREBIEARNRQRNBRETZER
B E - E— P BHN I IERERWE30 - 2 E
ERENEE(EAEBEHENIBRER) RIEH
HEETE  EFALFEMFRENSEMAL
NEERTEETHRABHHEZRR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERBBITRAEFHM =)
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
[continued)
(a) Independent non-executive (a) B FEHITESE
directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive FRAEMNBUFRITEETHNERENT :
directors during the year were as follows:
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR T
Mr. Zhang Weilun SRR E 156 156
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral PR B 5 A4 91 -
Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin PRER R 54 91 -
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FER L A4 79 156
Mr. Yuan Boyin =AML E 63 156
Mr. Wu Haibing REESLEE 63 156
Mr. Huang An Xin BFELEOEE 38 -
581 624

There were no other emoluments payable
to the independent non-executive directors

during the year (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERESITHRAEHM @)
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
[continued]
(b) Executive directors, non-executive b HATEES - IHTEERESITH
directors and chief executive AE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits ~ share option scheme Total
Fees inkind expense contributions remuneration

o 2ER  RakE BihE
fie RNz RRERX  HERR  FHES
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTIR ARBTR  AR®TR  ARMT:R

2017 20176

Executive directors: BTES

Ms. Chen Zhuo REgt 519 1,741 88 23 2,37

Mr. Liang Bing 2R 519 1,761 88 23 2,37

Mr. Long Weimin EARLE 519 1,743 88 2 2,372
1,557 5,225 264 68 1114

Non-executive directors: FYTES

Mr. Wei Zhe BELE 104 - 776 - 880

Ms. Wu Qimin REFLL 104 - - - 104

Mr. Zheng Dong* R %4 103 - - - 103

Mr. Lam Yiu Por* TR A 130 - 100 3 233

L4 - 876 3 1,320

Chief executive: RETHAR

Mr. Liu Jian Uik 1,555 3,201 88 22 4,866

2016 20165

Executive directors: BTES

Ms. Chen Zhuo REgt 520 413 330 49 1,312

Mr. Liang Bing 2EEE 520 413 330 48 1,311

Mr. Long Weimin EARLE 520 416 330 48 1,314
1,560 1,242 990 145 3,937

Non-executive directors: FUTES

Mr. Wei Zhe FELE 104 = 2,921 2 3,025

Ms. Wu Qimin REFRL 104 - - - 104

Mr. Lam Yiu Por* B % A+ 1,352 867 377 - 2,596
1,560 87 3298 - 5725

Chief executive: BETHAE

Mr. Liu Jian Bk 1,560 473 330 48 2411
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

9.

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

[continued]

* On 4 May 2017, Mr. Lam Yiu Por resigned
as non-executive director of the company
and Mr. Zheng Dong was appointed as an
non-executive director of the Company as of 5
January 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors and the chief executive
(2016: two directors and the chief executive),
details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining one (2016: two) highest
paid employee who is neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

10.

BEERESTHAEHMHN =)

* R2017F5A48  MEBREEBRTARRFERNTES
ME R A AEN2017F1 ASHEZ T AARRRIIERNITE
$ °

MEBEEFTARSTRAERFAREXRAENE
R AR 567 B O 22 B -

IEEREHESR

FALEESHFEREE=ZREZRERFTHA
B (2016F : MBEENRERTHAR) » HEH
AHBEEN EXME c AFEZHES—H (20165 -
ME)REARREZTNFESTRABNERS
FREENHMEBET

2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AR F T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMEEYAE:
in kind: 881 2,875
Equity-settled share option expense EnAEEREE - 7,950
Pension scheme contributions RIRE AR 18 76
899 10,901
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10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

[continued]

The number of non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

NWEEESHEE &)

FEENIESTRAERSFHIEE AS L
HAlwT -

Number of employees

EE A
2017 2016
20175 20164
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z 71,000,000 7T 1 =
HKD1,000,001 to HKD5,000,000 1,000,0017% 7T 5,000,000/ 7T -
HKD5,000,001 to HKD10,000,000 5,000,001 7T Z£10,000,000% 7T - 1
1 2

Share options were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee
in respect of his services to the Group under
the Pre-IPO share option scheme and the share
award shcheme, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 30 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

FEFNIHERTRAERSHEERRERL
SERBREERNAFHEESHBERETSERE
Pk E—THBERAMBRERMAEI0 - 5B
REnEE(CHREBANBSER) RELA
HETE  Ht AXFEMBRERRNSERALX
FEEBERTBRABRSHEEHFMEER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

1"

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

R M

.INCOME TAX

Provision for PRC corporate income tax (the
“CIT”) has been provided at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: 25%) on the assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China, except for those subsidiaries enjoyed
lower tax rate for benefit.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made in the financial statements as no
assessable profit was derived from Hong Kong
during both years.

MN.ABHRBEX

HE2017F12ANBILEEFE  FECEMEHR
(TREEH) B Tt AN & B 170 o B A 1 # B
BB ERTNEIREM PSR X25% (2016
F 5% R FABRERXEZNNERQF
BRIN o

RN MEFEAR KBS EERHRANBREEE
BARMBEHRER P RE BN SR LBAE -

2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETIT

Current - Mainland China: BNER — A B A 3
Charge for the year FAZW 60,810 27,061
Deferred tax (note 21) EERIE (MH5E21) (10,891) 547
Total tax charge for the year FABRRIEL 49,919 27,608




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

11.INCOME TAX (continued) M. PR & BB X (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to HAZEZEMEFEEARBRBAF BN ER
profit before tax using the statutory rate to the I ERREFTENRBERAI Z2HERENOT ¢

tax expense at the effective rate is as follows:

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARET T

Profit before tax F 35 A1 A1 149,207 24,256
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEBEGTERNTIE 37,302 6,064
Profits attributable to joint ventures & R EEL T (662) (537)
Expenses not deductible for tax R 8,763 11,267
Income not subject to tax BARTWA (4,391) (3,496)
Tax losses not recognised RERBIAEE 9,074 12,892
Lower tax rate for specific provinces BERMOBEALMA
or enacted by local authority EREHmAREN X (39) (5)
Tax losses utilised from previous EA AT B R T I8 E5 18
periods (300) (509)
Withholding tax on distributable profits 7<% & & 5 {f B 2 7]
of the Group's PRC subsidiaries AR B FENS 1,138 1,932
Effect on opening deferred tax of T 22 P (K &Y HR 9 3 A
decrease in rates MIBH 2 (966) =
Tax charge for the year FABIERH 49,919 27,608
The share of tax expense attributable to joint BEPEEEDERIER X B ARK662,0007T
ventures amounting to RMB662,000 (2016: (20165 : AR %537,0000T) - EFt A& &b
RMB537,000), are included in “Profits and EMNBEREEIET -

losses of joint ventures” in profit or loss.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax BFEAP R ZEMMERE - R B R S 8 SNE
Law, a 5% withholding tax is levied on dividends KECEMIIBEREESIRAKRESBUSRTE
declared to foreign investors from the foreign N o ZHE E2008F1A1HBAER - WiEAR
investment enterprises established in Mainland 2007512 A3 A LA B EY & FI o 40 SR A B A 4 B2 A1
China. The requirement is effective from 1 B EEMERVERRIBENRBESRLTY: - BIF]
January 2008 and applies to earnings after FAREMBEMHRE - REBE F2017F KL N
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax B8 A B E5% (2016%F : 10%) - NEE KA
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty M E2008FIATBEENBIHZERFEANM
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction X 37 B BT B A B 9 R B AR BB AR TR HI AR o

of the foreign investors. The Group has applied
an applicable rate of 5% since the end of
2017 (2016:10%). The Group will be liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

During 2016, a dividend of HK2.5 cents per share
and a special dividend of HK2.0 cents per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015
were declared by the directors of the Company
and approved in the Company’s annual general
meeting on 31 May 2016. Dividend amounting to
RMB31,051,000 has been paid to owners of the
Company in July 2016.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss)
per share amount is based on the profit/(loss])
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2017,
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 798,146,378 shares (2016: 798,271,066
shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per
share is based on:

12.

13

.E/'\—J

g

R2016F A AAREFFE Z=2015F12AH31
HIEFEZIRABKSFR2.55 1 M RIKRE
FR%2.0581l - WHR2016F5A318 2 AR AR E
BEREEB  ARY31,051,000c 2 B ER
2016FT7TRIRN FARBIER A °

BEREFTBAEBLEERE
ﬂ/%ﬁ

EREAREN(BEE) 2B NHEHE2017F

NANALEFERRAIEBRER ARMEF
B (BE) URFARBEBETEBRINE T

798,146,378/% (2016%F : 798,271,066f% ) 5t &

=

ATESREARAN(BER) TER T #IE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETT
Earnings/(loss) BF, (&E)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary HEERERRR(EBB)
equity holders of the parent, used in FTRAME QR TR E
the basic earnings/(loss) per share BAEGFE, (Ei8)
calculation 90,549 (6,383)
Shares BB &R
Weighted average number of ordinary st E&REARRZF] (Ei8)
shares in issue during the year used FrTRAMFAEEITER
in the basic earnings/(loss) per share AR N FHEK
calculation 798,146,378 798,271,066

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
computation of diluted earnings per share did
not include the exercise of the share options
of the Company since the exercise price of the
share options is higher than the average market
price of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not
take into account the effect of the share options
of the Company since its exercise would result
in a decrease in loss per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

14.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14.MERFE
Leasehold Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements  and fixtures vehicles inprogress Total
BFER

g7 AENREE  BRIE RE  EBIR ait
RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARMTT  ARMTn  ARBTR  ARMTI  ARRTn  ARETR

31 December 2017 217E128318
Cost B
At1 January 2017 R017E1A1R 17,933 312 25,671 10,111 2,036 58,875
Additions TE 2,39% 205 4,792 2,005 1,531 10,927
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-ZHBAR - - 9 - - 9
Transfer g% - 2,631 - - (2,631) -
Disposals HE - - (3,726) (1,667) - (5,393)
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12831R 20,327 5,960 26,746 10,449 936 64,418
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At1 January 2017 R017E1R18 (1,766) (2,236) (12,622) (4,092) - (20,716)
Depreciation provided for the year £ MFTHEHE (1,373) (1,151) (5,360) (2,161) - (10,065
Disposals HE - - T4 884 - 1,630
At 31 December 2017 R17E12ANR (3,139) (3,387) (17,236) (5,369) - (29,131)
Net carrying amount BEFE
At 1 January 2017, net of ROITEIAIR

accumulated depreciation NRE:HTE 16,167 888 13,049 6,019 2,036 38,159
At 31 December 2017, net of R017%12R318

accumulated depreciation R 2:HE 17,188 2,573 9,510 5,080 936 35,287
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

14.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 1Y EERE®
[continued]
Leasehold Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements  and fixtures vehicles inprogress Total
AV
gr HENREE  BERE n ERIE aif

RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

31 December 2016 20165127318
Cost Bx
At 1 January 2016 R016E1A18 8,043 1,646 19,199 7146 - 36,034
Additions HE 603 628 6,094 U1 2,036 9,602
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENHEAF 9,287 850 1413 2875 g 14,425
Disposals e - - (1,035) (151) - (1,186)
At 31 December 2016 R216F12A318 17,933 3,124 25,671 10,111 2,036 58,875
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
At 1 January 2016 R016E1A18 (1,195) (1,252) (8,768) (2812 = (14,027)
Depreciation provided for the year  FRFTiHENE (571) (984) (4,579) (1,350) - (7,484)
Disposals e - - 725 70 - 795
At 31 December 2016 RA6ENANA 1,764 PR I Y/ R ] -
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2016, net of RA1GEIA1R

accumulated depreciation MREHHE 6,848 3% 10,431 4,33% - 2,007
At 31 December 2016, net of 20165127318 -

accumulated depreciation R Z2iiE 16,167 888 13,049 8,019 2,036 38,159
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

15. R E Y %

i

2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREETT

Carrying amount at 1 January MATBERE 139,660 -

Additions NE 19,972 46,090
Additions from acquisition of WHEHBARMAE

subsidiaries - 90,229

Net gain from fair value adjustment N EFARE YR FRE 3,960 3,341

Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31HEREE 163,592 139,660

Certain investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating leases, the details
of which are included in note 36.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
which has been determined with reference to
the valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers, using the market approach, as at 31
December 2017. The fair value represents the
amount of market value at which the assets
could be exchanged between a knowledgeable,
willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction at the
date of valuation. The Group’s management had
discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results on a regular
basis when the valuation is performed.

ETREVECRELEHERNETE =7 &
BB FE36 ©

BEWERAFEYE  R2017F12A31MBH A
FED2EFHIEXSERMGEMTHERTL
FEA A REAARQ B ATISEETHMEET
NPEREERGERHATHABEEENER
HEAEEBRENERRATFRABEENTESHE
AEEERECDOETHEREHRGEMER
BERKRGEELER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

15
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R M

.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /continued)

Each year, the Group’'s property manager and
the chief financial officer decide, after approval
from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’'s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s property
manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year
when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.

Included in the completed investment properties
were certain buildings with a carrying value of
RMB450,000 (2016: Nil), of which the property
certificates have not been obtained as at 31
December 2017.

The Group’'s investment properties with
a carrying value of RMB91,410,000 (2016:
RMB74,420,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31
December 2017 (note 27).

15. R EME 2)

BF AEEVELENMBRESEEREZE
SHAETZREIINFHEMBERNEEYENINR
fME - EREEGBREMSME B2 BIYE
REER R FEKRE - REBEYELE R GR
ERTHEEREMEREETHER E8FM
REEERMN mAERRKLGESER -

& T HEEAREL50,0005T (20165 « &) HIETF
EAABRIREME - HR2017F12A318
ARBEER -

REEIREEARK91,410,0007T (20165 : AR
¥74,420,00070) MR EMECEAR - RAEER
201712 A3 R ER M —RIRTTR B R HIER (M
#£27) ©




15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE
15. REY = (@)
NP EER

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group's
investment properties:

TRERAKERENEN D FEFERBR

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
ERATEER2017E12AN AN A FEE
Quoted

pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEME BAUEE EXART

H&RE BAEE BEBANE @t
(5—FE) (5=8E) (E=E)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TR AR%TR ARET:R

Recurring fair value measurement for: A TEEME T

APEHE

REME

Investment properties

= = 163,592 163,592

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
RALTEER2016F12A31RH AT EHE
Quoted

pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
mETS  BEAAEE EV |

R E BARE BREARE @t

(- (5=B) (3=F)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARMTR AREFL ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement for:  JA TN E B M B H
AYEHE:

BREME

Investment properties

= = 139,660 139,660

During the year, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016:
Nil).

ERN FE-BRRF_ER ML ENFEFE
RER  MEATEFEEAFZERINFE=
B A& (20164 : #|&) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /(continved) 15.3%E Y % (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERE)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques NTARKREYMEHEFRAGERD REERRER
used and the key inputs to the valuation of ABBOHE
investment properties:
Range
& [E
2017 2016
20175 20165
Valuation techniques  Significant Unobservable inputs RMB’000 RMB’000
HERD EXARTBERANE ARET R ARET TR
Residential properties Direct comparison Market unit price RMBS to RMBS to
FEWE method-based per square metre RMB24 RMB25
market obserable ( the higher of the
transaction of and market unit price, AR®BITE AR¥STZE

similar properties the higher of the AR®24T ARM257T
and adjusted to fair value)

reflect the conditions & F 5 K35 BAL B

fo the subject property (TiF BN BEBS -

ERLBRE-BRE AFEMR)

s FRUMES

AEEXSWER

ARURBESY

EOARR

B AAMBEMERBEE LA (TR) T8
REMENRTFERELNCOND) -

A significant increase (decrease] in the maket
unit price per square metre would result in a
significant increase (decrease] in the fair value
of the investment properties.

16.PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION
OF PROPERTIES

16. WY XMW FRSKIE

164

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had deposits
of RMB14,738,000 (2016: RMB27,952,000) in
relation to the acquisition of properties situated
in Mainland China paid to property developers.
The acquisition of certain properties had been
completed during the current year and the
related prepayments of RMB18,089,000 (2016:
RMB45,233,000) were transferred to investment
properties.
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NRPEALONE ST Z2REHBARE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

17.GOODWILL 17. 8 £
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
(Restated)
(FE5)
Cost and net carrying amount MABIBZRAR
at 1 January RHEFE 104,630 41
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) W B B B8 & &) (B EE33) 930 104,589
Cost and net carrying amount MR12A31H Z KA
at 31 December RERE FE 105,560 104,630
Impairment testing of goodwill 2 /Y RE R

Goodwill acquired through business
combinations is allocated to a group of
communities managed by the Group collectively
as the property management cash-generating
unit (the “Property Management CGU").

The recoverable amount of the Property
Management CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is of 16% (2016: 16%) per annum.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period is 2% (2016:
2%).

Cash flow projections during the budget period
for the Property Management CGU are based
on management’'s estimate of cash inflows/
outflows including revenue, operating expenses
and working capital requirements. The
assumptions and estimation are based on the
Property Management CGU past performance
and management's expectation of market
development. The management of the Group
believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amount
to exceed its recoverable amount.

BREXBAHAMBESHAEEIEEAKEEE
M—MHE SRAMEEERSELEM (Y
XEERSELEM] -

PEERRSELEVNIWESERIEFERE
BifEETr AtEFEHERECEEBHERER
FHR U EEERLENSRETEDN - RZRE
METEARETE16% (20165 1 16%) MITIRER -
AFHEENRESRE RN H2% (2016%F : 2%)
g RREE -

BEMRYEEERCELBUNMNASRERR
DEREBBHRSRA/MENMGE - 2FK
& RERXKEEESHELR - RREMGFAER
MEEERSELEMMNBERBENMNEERBH™T
LERNEAH AKEEEERREAEBENE
FENFERBANEMAEARLED TISEHERE
BERAHEAKEEHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

17.GOODWILL (continued) 17. 88 (&)

166

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of the value in
use of the cash-generating unit, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in
any of the above key assumptions would cause
the carrying value, including goodwill, of the
cash-generating unit to exceed the recoverable
amount.

Assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the Property Management CGU
for 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Operating profit - Operating profit are based
on the averge values achived in the three
years preceding the beginning of the budget
period, The operating profit for the Property
Management CGU within a range of 20.56% to
31.07%

Operating expense -The value assigned to the
key assumptions reflects past experience and
management’'s commitment to maintain the
group’s operating expenses to an acceptable level.

Perpetuity growth and discount rates -
Perpetuity growth rates are based on published
industry research. Discount rates represent
the current market assessment of the risks
specific to each CGU taking into consideration
the time value of money and individual risks
of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The
discount rate calculation is based on the specific
circumstances of the Group and its operating
segments and is derived from its weighted
average cost of capital (WACC).

The values assigned to the key assumptions
on market development of the property
management industry and the discount rates are
consistent with external information sources.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, the management of the Group determined
that no impairment of goodwill should be
recognied for the Property Management CGU.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

HBERBDNHBE

EHERSELEMFEREEFLFGNBES

E.IEF*Eﬁ’W—EEﬂﬁﬁﬁ"iL?ﬁﬂﬁi?&éﬁﬂ
ENEDHSEYERREEANREELENM

E’JE\EEE;&Z@EE}H&@@%& °

s E2017F12A318 R2016F12A31 B ES
Eiﬁiﬁiﬁu*ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ“ﬂ o UM EE B AT
KRB REBAAETEERE NS E
R

EEFE —EEFBEDERTEE S F=FFrE
SHEHE DEEEBERSCELEUNEETE
N F20.56%%31.07% °

RERT - ARBRNTEETHNEBERBGE
KHENEEEHRBAEELERIETETK
Ty EEE o

Rﬂiﬁﬁ)&?ﬁfﬁ@—Rﬂiﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁfﬁiﬂgﬁ/\
ETETERE - TREXEERSELEMFE
J—LEAE’JIE?TW%HHE EREEREEAEREE
E&Iﬁ%)\iﬁﬁmzfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁEﬁﬁ?ﬁ’ﬂl%ﬂ

CHBEETDVERAEENEEBDBOFER
/R:Hr W B EEANEFIGRA ([E AR NEF
BRAD RS -

ﬁ%ﬁ#’/ﬂ% RITENMSERITREINEIEZR
R T EERIMNEER R B

HE2017F K2016F12A31B IEFER  AEH
EHEBHAETEREDEECERSESLEUER
EREIEE R




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

indirectly held by the Company.
(a)  According to the Articles of Association
of Ningbo Disai, decisions on relevant
activities require the unanimous consent
and approval of the equity holders.
Therefore, Ningbo Disai is accounted for
as a joint venture of the Group.

(b)  According to the Articles of Association
of Ningbo Yongdu, decisions on relevant
activities require the unanimous consent
and approval of the equity holders.
Therefore, Ningbo YongDu is accounted
for as a joint venture of the Group.

Ningbo Disai, which is considered a material
joint venture of the Group provides property
management services in Mainland China and is
accounted for using the equity method.

BA TS SRR P 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z2017F 12831 H L F &
18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. ARG # ¥EMRE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREETT
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 5,020 4,363
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as AEEEECENFBENOT :
follows:
Percentage of
UFEENEI
Place of
Paid up registration  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing  activities
B BRERX EBIREEME MAEER REE  HENE IEER
ERmeEEENERBEARAR RMB1,500,000  PRC/Mainland 60 (al 60 Provision of property
("Ningbo Disai") China management
services
ERTARBEENERBERLA  AR¥1500000  HE/PERKM RENKERRY
=3%:E-3)
ERABREHERRAT RMB1,000000  PRC/Mainland 3 (b 35 Provision of real
("Ningbo Yongdu"] China estate agency
services
ERKBEEHEARAA AR%1000,000r B/ PERM REFHERERS
(r=igx#))
The above interests in joint ventures are FliREECERRBARAEERE -

(a) RFETKEBENAMKERE H HEESHRTE
BREDFEA—HRFRIE Bt - &
MEBEBEIARINWEARENGERE -

=

(b) REBETRKMNEABER - HETHHRTE
BRERFTEA BRI RIE Bt B

BOKEIIARINWEARBM A ERE -
ERHBRE/AKEEAGLLE  ETFER

iR EYEEERY - WIAERIEAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. R & ¥R E &)

[continued]

The following table illustrates the summarised TRERAERHBENRENBER  SREMNE
financial information in respect of Ningbo Disai, AR ERMARTEMBREPOREEDEYE

adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount
in the financial statements:

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents BeMREZFEY 9,548 8,579
Other current assets Hi R EE 233 90
Current assets MENEE 9,781 8,669
Non-current assets ERBEE 39 127
Current liabilities mENBE (3,549) (3,610)
Net assets EEFE 6,271 5,186

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HEAEEREEDENE

in the joint venture: AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEHFTE LB 60% 60%
Carrying amount of the investment REMERAEE 3,792 3,131
Revenue Wz 11,600 9,351
Interest income FEWA 95 21
Depreciation and amortisation e R (25) (56)
Interest expense B (2) (1)
Tax IR (1,471) (1,162)
Profit and total comprehensive FAFBEREZEBALLRE

income for the year 4,415 3,487
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

18.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. R & ¥R E &)

[continued]

The following table illustrates the aggregate TREAREEEMEFBERANES EERNIB
financial information of the Group’'s joint BRAE

venture that is not individually material:

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Share of the joint ventures’ loss for EheErXFEER

the year (4) 56
Share of the joint ventures’ total Ehaeh

comprehensive loss FHEBASE (4) 56
Aggregate carrying amount of REBREGERHERE

the Group’s investments in B ARRRTE (B

the joint ventures 1,228 1,232

19.INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE NV R—XEEATNRE

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Share of net assets EHEEFE 2,689 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B{Z2017F 12831 H L FE
20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20.BILEE
Acquired
property Software
management and
contracts trademark Total
FrER B ¥ 2
EEEHN BHEEE #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Trt AR¥TrR
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
At 1 January 2017 201741 H1H

Cost B AR 109,039 - 109,039

Accumulated amortisation B (2,750) - (2,750)

Net carrying amount BREFE 106,289 - 106,289
Cost at 1 January 2017, R2017F1ATEKA

net of accumulated Mk RETHESH
Amortisation b3 106,289 - 106,289
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B /B 2 )

(note 33) (BFF5E33) 40 - 40
Additions NE - 4,812 4,812
Amortisation provided FNPTEH R EE 8

during the year (note 7) (BF3E7) (15,758) (547) (16,305)
At 31 December 2017 M2017412H318 90,571 4,265 94,836
At 31 December 2017 2017 12A31H

Cost B AR 109,079 4,812 113,891

Accumulated amortisation Eig £ (18,508) (547) (19,055)

Net carrying amount BREDF(E 90,571 4,265 94,836
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 20.BEE &)

Acquired
property Software
management and
contracts trademark Total
FTEIS ¥ %
BEEAHN BHEEEZ BET
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFTT AREFTT AREFT
31 December 2016 2016%12H31H
At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H
Cost B AR 280 - 280
Accumulated amortisation B (191) - (191)
Net carrying amount BREDF(E 89 - 89
Cost at 1 January 2016, M2016F1 1B A -
net of accumulated Mk RETHESH
Amortisation 5 89 = 89
Acquisition of subsidiaries s BE B BB A &) 108,759 = 108,759
Amortisation provided FARTEHREH (MFE7)
during the year (note 7) (2,559) - (2,559)
At 31 December 2016 72016412 4318 106,289 - 106,289
At 31 December 2016 7R2016F12A31H
Cost B 109,039 - 109,039
Accumulated amortisation T (2,750) - (2,750)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 106,289 - 106,289
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

21.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax assets/
(Liabilities) during the year are as follows:

21.EERE A&

FRELCHREBEEE (BB WEHWT

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities): FEEHE(BF) :
Fair value Withholding
change of tax on
Impairment of investment Intangible  undistributed
receivables properties assets earnings Total
EARY  RENEN AELE
RERE  AVERD BYEE  RRROH @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR  ARMTn  ARETR  ARET:R
At 1 January 2017 R01751A1E 16,375 (299) (26,564) (1,932) (12,620)
(Charged)/credited to profit RER (B) /A ()
or loss [note 11 6,982 160 3,921 (172) 10,891
At 31 December 2017 R1TE12A318 23,357 (139) (22,643) (2,104) (1,529)
Fair value Withholding
change of tax on
Impairment of investment Intangible  undistributed
receivables properties assets earnings Total
EREN  REMED AMEAE
FERE  ATEZEY EVEE  RAENH &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETn  ARBTn  ARETR  ARETx
At 1 January 2016 R16F1A1E 9,894 - - - 9,894
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 4,887 536 (27,190) 5 (21,767)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss FAE % (41%) /3 A 1,59 (835) 426 (1.932) (547)
31 December 2016 R2016%F12A318 16,375 (299] (26,564 (1,932) (12,420)

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2017




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

21.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ NEEBEBE @)
LIABILITIES /continued)
For the purpose of the financial statement MY BREREIRE  ETECHEBEEEREE
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and DH - U T ARTEHBRENEEARERIELT
liabilities have been offset. The following is B SH DT

an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20174 20164
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Net deferred tax assets recognised RizE M BARRKER
in the consolidated statement of EEFIAEEFE
financial position 24,530 16,892
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised  R4RA MR R ER
in the consolidated statement of /»Lfﬂlﬁi%ﬁ\%%ﬁ
financial position (26,059) (29,312)
(1,529) (12,420)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in ARATBEERNEEHBEEE

respect of the following items:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARET T

Tax losses not recognised for RBIELERIE S E R
deferred tax assets HIEEE 103,327 65,652
In accordance with the PRC laws and B BEAEER - RN B A A I8 E 8 R
regulations, tax losses arising in Mainland China SEEAH R F AR R ERER RS -

could be carried forward for a period of five
years to offset against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in 51%5*}51%11@ BERRELEHELEE  ARIRRL
respect of the above item as it is not considered MmIE B AR e A ERTFE o

probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the above item can be utilised.
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/
LIABILITIES /continued)

At 31 December 2017, deferred tax liabilities
of RMB2,104,000 (2016: RMB1,932,000) have
been recognised for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’'s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. Pursuant to a resolution of the board of
directors of the Company, these subsidiaries
will not distribute such earnings derived up to
31 December 2015 and 75% of such earnings
since 1 January 2017 will not be distributed.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised was RMB165,837,000
(2016: RMB74,310,000).

There are no income tax consequences
attaching to the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders.

NEERE, &&®)

R2017F128318  ERAEE R EA AT
FHBARKELEFN (BAHEMNH) HESIE
MBRERELEHREBEEARY?2,104,0007C (2016
F: AR¥1,932,000T) - RIBEARAEES —
Mk ZEMBARBTE DRI E20154F
12A31B8H AR - M E201751 818 #£ itk & F &Y
T5%HETHED IR - BERRECHBEEENTERA
HHBARIKEMPENERZHEBEAARE
165,837,0007T (2016%F : AR #74,310,0007T) °

ARBAEBRRIKRELEASHER -




22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

2LEFBRUREREBERRERE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175 20165

12A31H 12A318

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR T

Trade and bills receivables 2 5 RN IE R ERER 258,884 205,323
Less: provision for doubtful debts B REREE (67,952) (45,950)
190,932 159,373

Trade and bills receivables mainly arise from
property management service income. The
credit period is generally 45 days for property
owners and property developers upon the
issuance of demand notes. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management
and credit limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
trade and bills receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the above provision for the
impairment of trade and bills receivables is a
provision for individually impaired trade and
bills receivables of RMB67,952,000 (2016:
RMB45,950,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of RMB67,952,000 (2016:
RMB45,950,000).

BHRUAARBREBRTIZREMEEERS
WA - REFBMERLE  EXRMERRD
BEEH—RABLEE - AEBSRKEHAREERE
W @R BRI B4 - SRS E B B E AP PR
BEERR BHREHBSRERZEEH RN
MEFPHEERBAEGFRT R - ENIA LR
ARAEEEZEYFARERRBEERSZ TR
EFAR ALY EERETNEERR -E5H
EMHIBER B

At E S e U R E & R R R B S B R A
AMERENEZERKFABEREREEARK
67,952,0007C (20164 : A R #45,950,0007T) Fff
VERE  HEEMMETEAARK7,952,0007T
(20164 : AR ¥45,950,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

[continued]

An aging analysis of the trade and bills
receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the date of demand note, net of
provision for impairment, is as follows:

REFERFEBREKREE &)
RIBEHR AR BNEA BRI ENE S REYK
SEREKEENG R EREOEROFNT

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175 20164

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBT T

Within 30 days 30BN 46,480 31,393
Over 30 days and within 90 days 308 £90R A 34,725 32,355
Over 90 days and within 180 days BiAH908 &180R A 37,654 34,306
Over 180 days and within 365 days BiA180H &3650 A 54,585 42,404
Over one year BiE—F 17,488 18,915
190,932 159,373

The movements in provision for impairment of
trade and bills receivables are as follows:

BHRUKREAREBREERERENESWT :

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175 20164F

12HA31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T

At 1 January »1A1H (45,950) (39,576)
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2R ERE (H7E7) (22,431) (13,434)
Write-off 88 429 7,060
At 31 December 2017 20175128318 (67,952) (45,950)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

22.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

[continued]

The aging analysis of the trade and bills
receivables that are past due but not considered
to be impaired is as follows:

REFERFEBREKREE &)

TR BRERNE SRR B & UK Z K R ik
DHWMT

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175 20165

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARYET T ARBTTT

Within 90 days 908 A 69,720 22,401
Over 90 days and within 180 days BiAB90H &180R A 37,654 34,306
Over 180 days and within 365 days BiA180H &365H A 54,585 42,404
Over one year BiE—F 17,488 18,915
179,447 118,026

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a large number of diversified
customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amount of the trade and bills
receivables approximates to their fair value due
to their relatively short maturity terms.

BB ERENEBUKRERZTIREFERH -
mEFO B R -

ERBEERENEBEFBEESZEARAEEAR
HEBLBNBYIEPER ENBELR K
REAEERSARFREEIRBEEARE &
BERZEERIERERE  MaxFEHRDKR
AR ZHYD o

MR RAHEE  HE S ERURARERRE
ERERmERE QA FERSE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

23.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

23.FAMNRIE - RE R HEtEWFIER

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
201745 2016%F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AREF T
Payment on behalf of customers to REEFPRAASEE
utility suppliers HER N 57,227 26,799
Prepayments B FRIE 24,580 20,627
Deposits paid to utility suppliers mNAEEHER
TR 17,132 12,721
Amounts due from non-controlling FEU— KM B A R FEE R
equity holders of a subsidiary BB ARFIEA - 298
Taxes recoverable A Uk [0 % 18 864 1,179
Other receivables H b fE Y FIE 23,210 16,288
123,013 77,912
Less: provision for doubtful debts B REREHE (10,723) (4,800)
Total REr 112,290 73,112

Hi BUIEREREOZESHMT

The movements in provision for impairment of
other receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20174 20164

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBFTT

At 1 January M1A18 (4,800) (8,308)
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) R EEE (H:E7) (7,041) -
Write-off i 35 1,118 3,508
(10,723) (4,800])

Prepayment, deposits and other revceivable
that were past due but not impaired relate to

EAMEREBENAENKE 2 kHEMEKR
HEZAEASEARIFEBCENBLEEA

BR-ERNBEER ARAEERSANER
EEEREEANE BUERZFHERIERE
BiR MxEERDREST 28D -

a number of independent creditors that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.
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24.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

An analysis of the cash and cash equivalents is
as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

U.BERBTEEY

RekBReFEMOHLMMOT

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

20175 20164

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Cash and bank balances Be& MIBTES 448,806 442,473
Time deposit TEHTER 35,000 =
483,806 442,473

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to RMB305,093,000 (2016:
RMB243,008,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The Group collects deposits from certain
community residents to establish daily repair
and maintenance funds in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.

All of the deposits collected are required to
be kept in designated bank accounts under
the name of the relevant subsidiaries of the
Group although the deposits collected and
the related interest income belong to the
community residents. Pursuant to the property
management agreements between the Group
and the community residents, the withdrawal
and use of the funds are subject to approval
by the community residents. As the monies
maintained for daily repair and maintenance
funds are not controlled by the Group, they are
not recorded as bank balances by the Group. As
at 31 December 2017, RMB9,598,000.00 (2016:
RMB9,321,000) are kept in daily repair and
maintenance funds on behalf of the community
residents.

RMEBR  AEBUARBAHENRERRS
Z B Y A A R #305,093,0007T(2016%F : AR
243,008,0007T) - AR LLEALBAEM
B R IRIER B R INEE RG] R A TE
EERNEERRTE ALEERASAEREE
TINEEBMBITHARE LB AEME

AEERBETEABARNDERAETHRER
WEZEE  URZBEHERRERES -

BEMWREZS RBBENERATIBHLERERF
BE EARERSYENANEERBNEAR
AMEBETARBTRITERE, BEAEEHEME
EREATUNMEEXWE  REOAFRAESERF
HtEERIE BREFRIERBHERRERES
FRIBIEAEEIZES M THAEEZSEARITE
# - M2017F12A31H  ERXREEERBAR
#9,598,000.007T (2016%F : A K #9,321,0007T)
BFABRBHERREES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

24.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W RERAEEEN @)
[continued]
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates RITRSERNT BRITHERFEZZ B A R R
based on daily bank deposit rates. The cash FE - BENBITEBMEERRITE R ITFR
and bank balances and pledged bank balances IR HRE Q)RR (F BB EZEHIRTT ©

are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

25.TRADE PAYABLES 25. 8 5 BT RIE
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the RMERR - BREZEQHFAENE HENFIED
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice BT :

date, is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

Within 60 days 60BN 30,938 31,369
Over 60 days and within 180 days HBiE60H X 180H A 8,445 2,738
Over 180 days and within 365 days @180 %365H A 3,978 1,252
Over one year Hil|—F 1,604 1,216
44,965 36,575
The trade payables are interest-free and B S RNFRBERTTER—MMNI0EI0RAEFE -
normally settled on terms of 30 to 90 days.
The fair values of trade payables approximate MR AREERE  REHEMNFIBNRFE
to their carrying amounts due to their relatively EHIREEMRS °

short term maturity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

26.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2. EftfERSHERESEH

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20174 20164
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMBT T ARETT
(Restated)
(&)
Receipts on behalf of community MOBAEEREK
residents for utilities 8 P UK 128,671 81,864
Receipts in advance TEYRIE 82,572 78,323
Accruals st &R 70,634 89,511
Deposits received B Wiz e 63,017 51,917
Other payable for option (note 28) E ) HA M 8 < FRIE
(Htzt28) 22,155 22,101
Amounts due to non-controlling equity BN — KM B D A FEE AR
holders of a subsidiary EREB AR 5,033 21,684
Amount due to a joint venture Bt —RE&ERENFKIE - 150
Other tax payables H b e F I8 13,880 8,502
385,962 354,052
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s other R20176F 128318 - NEE E b 1 3E R EET
payables and accruals included amounts due to BRBEREN—FXWBARFEREZIZEE AN
non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary HIE -HAEER AR EIRERES -
which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
Except for other payable for option, other BrEMEBAERMRIEN  EMENREBEEES -

payables are non-interest-bearing and have an FHHER A=A -
average term of three months.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK 27. 5T BB ITER
BORROWINGS
2017 2016
217F 20165
Effective Effective
interest interest

rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB'O00  rate(%)  Maturity ~ RMB'000
RRAE(%) A ARMTR ERHE% B8E  ARETR

Current 0
Bank loans - secured ROER-FER 4.35 2018 23,000 5.5 2017 2330
2018 0175
Bank loans - unsecured BOES-EHA - - - 435 2017 23,000
175
Current portion of non-current ~ JFBIERE BB ER S0 Hibor+1.5 2018 19,276 Hibor+15 2017 20,19
loans - unsecured - BE R EARTR% 20185 EERIRE 2175
KBRS FEE+S
42,276 45,524
Non-current L
Bank loans - unsecured BROTET-EHR Hibor+1.5 2019-2021 58,693 Hibor+1.5  2018-2021 83,424
ERBTRE 20195 BRRTRE 2018%
FER5 E21% FEZ45  ENNE

100,969 128,948

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20174 20164
12A31H 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F ARET T

Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: AP LA EABR
EERMRITER
Within one year or on demand —FAHIFEK 42,276 45,524
In the second year E ¢ 19,355 20,450
In the third to fifth years, inclusive kk_ ERF
( ?ﬁ%%ﬁﬁi) 39,338 62,974

100,969 128,948
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27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS /continued)

The Group’'s bank loans were secured by the
pledges of the Group’s assets with carrying

values at 31 December 2017 and 31 December

2016 as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

27.5t BB 1T (&)

AEBRIRITERABPREER2017F12A31
AX&2016F12A31H THIBREENEEEAER:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175 20164F

128318 12A318

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

B & AR® TR ARBTTT

Investment properties wREWE 15 91,410 74,420

As at 31 December 2017, all the Group's
borrowings are denominated in RMB except
that unsecured borrowings amounting to
RMB77,969,000 (2016: RMB103,618,000] were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The bank borrowing balances of the Group
bore interest at floating rates, except for bank
borrowings of RMB23,000,000 at 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB25,330,000] that bore interest
at fixed rates.

The carrying amounts of the interest-bearing
bank borrowings approximate to their fair
values.

R20175F12A318  AEBEME BRI UARKE
FHE - HEARET7,969,0007T (20165 : AR
103,618,0007T) ) £ 30 & SR A B TTRTHE RS ©

AEEBNRITERGERRZIPHMN AR HER
2017412 A31H AR %23,000,0007T (20165 = A
R %25,330,0007T) #9 18 IR B FE F K51 S BRIN

SHERITEFRNEREEEE QX FEMES
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)

28

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

.OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLE

Pursuant to the Agreements as disclosed
in Note 4 to the financial statements, the
non-controlling equity holders of Zhejiang
Yongcheng had a put option to require the
Group to acquire the remaining 30% equity
interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng in four tranches
prior to the year 2020. The considerations
are contingent and will be adjusted based on
the future financial performance of Zhejiang
Yongcheng and capped at RMB22,500,000
for each tranche. In 2017, the Group further
acquired a 7.5% equity interest in Zhejiang
Yongcheng. Since the Group does not have
present ownership interests in the 22.5%
equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng before
the non-controlling equity holders exercise
the buy-out option, the Group recorded the
22.5% equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng
owned by the non-controlling equity holders as
the non-controlling interests in the financial
statements. The buy-out option amount was
classified as a financial liability at 31 December
2017 and 2016 and the changes in the amount
of the option were recognised in profit or loss.
This equity interest redemption option granted
to non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary
is a financial liability and separated into current
and non-current portion (“Other payable for
option”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

repurchased and cancelled and 372,000 shares
were repurchased but not yet cancelled and were

recognised as treasury shares at 31 December i e
2016, which have been cancelled on 11 January

2017.

B TR R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z2017F 12831 H L F &
29.SHARE CAPITAL 29. fg A
Shares % 13
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary HKDO0.01
shares each
BREE
ZEREA 0.0138 T
HK$ 000
THT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2017 and R2017F1 818 &
31 December 2017 20174F12H31H 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRABRE:
At 1 January 2016 201651818 800,000,000 8,000
Shares repurchased and cancelled 2 BB & iR Hm
(note (a)) (F5E(a)) (5,456,000) (55)
At 31 December 2016 and M2016%F12H31H
1 January 2017 %2017%F1A1H 794,544,000 7,945
Shares issued (note (b)) BT % (K aE(b)) 8,434,000 84
Shares cancelled (note (a)) BaEEkGm (M) (372,000) (3)
At 31 December 2017 720178128318 802,606,000 8,026
2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETFIT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBE:
Ordinary shares il
At 1 January ®1A1H 6,549 6,594
Shares issued BTG 73 -
Shares cancelled B ERG (3) (45)
At 31 December ®12H31H 6,619 6,549
(a) During the year 2016, 5,456,000 shares were (a) 2016F R BEEE KiE$H5,456,000080% 1% @ LAKR

F372,0000% %10 B B E1E M AR RR2016512
A31BMRAEBSKG - WEMR2017F1 1185
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

29.SHARE CAPITAL /continued) 29. B A ()
Shares (continued) B &)
(b) During the year 2017, 8,434,000 shares were (b) 20175 & - 8,434,0008% B% 15 B 1R 3B AR (5 S Eh =+ &) (4
issued and granted to the eligible employees H30) EAEBEBRITRETEERES -

under the share award scheme (note 30) at nil
consideration.

Treasury shares EF R4

A summary of movements in the Company’s AKARBEFROOEEFEZHOT :
treasury shares is as follows:

Nominal

Number of value of

ordinary HKDO0.01

shares each

SREE

EBEREE 0.018 T

HK$ 000

FHET

At 1 January 2016 20161 A1H - -
Shares repurchased and not cancelled ERELEERTERS (372,000) (3)
At 1 January 2017 201761 H1H (372,000) (3]
Shares cancelled B R, 372,000 3
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12A31H - -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

30.SHARE OPTION AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME

The Company - Pre-IPO share option
scheme

The Pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to the
resolutions passed by the Company on 20 April
2015 and 10 July 2015 for the purposes of
providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees of the Group, and will expire on 20
April 2020 and 10 July 2020 separately. Under
the Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company is authorised to grant options to the
directors and eligible employees to subscribe
for shares in the Company. Share options do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the share options granted under the
Scheme are as follows:

Exercise price

30. 18 IR #E 2 IR 10 SR B =1 &

AAR-—BRARABRENBRES

BAAREEABRESTE (578 DEREAR
A RIF2015%4H208 X 20157108 @@ )R
EERM URASEENESRAEREEBRM
ZEAB Lo RIMR202064H208 2020
FTAI0EBHR - RBFTE AR EEQER
BRTEENCEREEERE BZEALR
BAATKMD - BREVER FHE ARSZKE
RESERREHELKRE -

Vesting period
Lk

RIBFF B L BRENFENT

Exercisable period

FTEHE

Category of grantees Date of grant per share
ERAER REAH BRERE
Directors 20 April 2015 HKD1.72
g% 201554208 17287
Employees 20 April 2015 HKD1.72
B8 2015%4A208 17287
10 July 2015 HKD1.72

2015F7A108 17287

In 2017, the Group reversed net expenses of
RMB3,231,000 in relation to the above share
options (2016: expense of RMB8,345,000).

20 April 2015 - 29 June 2016
20/4,/2015-29/6,/°2016
20 April 2015 - 29 June 2017
20/4,//2015-29/6,/°2017
20 April 2015 - 29 June 2018
20/4,//2015-29/6,/°2018

20 April 2015 - 29 June 2016
20/4,//2015-29/6,/°2016
20 April 2015 - 29 June 2017
20/4,/2015-29/6,/2017
20 April 2015 - 29 June 2018
20/4,/2015-29/6,/2018

10 July 2015 - 29 June 2016
10/7,/2015-29/6,/ 2016
10 July 2015 - 29 June 2017
10/7,/2015-29/6,/ 2017
10 July 2015 - 29 June 2018
10/7,/2015-29/6,/ 2018

30 June 2016 - 20 April 2020
30/6,/2016-20/4,//2020
30 June 2017 - 20 April 2020
30/6,//2017-20/4,/2020
30 June 2018 - 20 April 2020
30/6,//2018-20/4,/2020

30 June 2016 - 20 April 2020
30/6,/2016-20/4/2020

30 June 2017 - 20 April 2020
30/6,/2017-20/4 /2020

30 June 2018 - April 2020
30/6,/2018-20/4 /2020

30 June 2016 - 10 July 2020
30/6,/2016-10/7,/2020
30 June 2017 - 10 July 2020
30/6,/2017-10/7,/2020
30 June 2018 - 10 July 2020
30/6,/2018-10/7,/2020

R20174 » ANEER FAEBRERDREFEA
R #3,231,0007T (20164 : 2 A R #8,345,000
JT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

.SHARE OPTION AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The Company - Pre-IPO share option
scheme [continued)

No share options were exercised in 2017. At
the end of the reporting period, 40,344,919
share options under the Scheme have
forfeited and the Company had 39,655,081
share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 4.94% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 39,655,081
additional ordinary shares of the Company
for total cash proceeds of HKD68,207,000
(equivalent to RMB57,015,000) before share
issue expenses.

The following share options were outstanding
under the Pre-IPO share option scheme during
the year:

.ERERKRGDEBEE 2

RRAF—BRLARERBERETE (20

2017 BB IR 1T (F - MIREEIR - 518118
T 940,344,919 BERR B 2 UL - MARIEET S -
ANA R H39,655,08110 M ARITEMERE  HE
RZBARRNGBEBITIRG #94.94% - BIEERR A
HEEAREE  BEITEHRITEEREEER
NN B EBINEE 739,655,081 0% R AR - OB AR 1D
BT A 2R S A5 sIE 858 568,207,000%
7T (FEE M AR ¥S57,015,0000T) °

LTRFARBERAREERNBRESIET R
TTIE RO R R -

2017 2016
20175 20165
Exercise price Number Exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
BRTEE BREHE SROBE  BREHE
HKD "000 HKD '000
BT T4 BT T3
At 1 January MAR 1.72 58,546 1.72 80,000
Forfeited during the year FRRYK 1.72 (18,891) 1.72 (21,454)
At 31 December M12A318 1.72 39,655 1.72 58,546

The Company - Share award scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution of the board
of the Company passed on 6 July 2017, the
Company issued and granted an aggregate of
8,434,000 new shares to 20 eligible employees
of the Group as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group at nil consideration.
During 2017. 8,434,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company were issued under
the scheme with no cash proceeds received.
Accordingly, the Group recognised share-based
payment expenses of RMB5,726,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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30.SHARE OPTION AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME /continued)
A subsidiary of the Company

On 17 July 2015, MMZBHELEREER
‘A7] ("Hangzhou Yidao”), a subsidiary of
the Company, is principally engaged in
the provision of software and information
technology services. ERFEYEEEBR AR
(“Guangdong Zhong Ao”, the immediate holding
company of Hangzhou Yidao) and Mr. Luo
Tao (the representative of the employees of
Hangzhou Yidao) entered into an agreement
(the “Equity incentive - Hangzhou Yidao
Agreement”], pursuant to which up to 33%
equity interests of Hangzhou Yidao would be
transferred to the employees of Hangzhou Yidao
("Yidao Employees”) who were responsible for
the development and operation of Hangzhou
Yidao at nil consideration by 30 April 2018 upon
satisfaction of certain performance conditions
of Hangzhou Yidao. On or before 30 April 2019,
the Yidao Employees had the right to require
Guangdong Zhong Ao to repurchase all of the
equity interests in Hangzhou Yidao at a total
cash consideration of RMB22,000,000 that the
Yidao Employees acquired pursuant to the
Equity incentive - Hangzhou Yidao Agreement.

On 5 April 2017, the Equity incentive - Hangzhou
Yidao Agreement was terminated by all
parties. Up to 5 April 2017, no equity interests
in Hangzhou Yidao have been transferred to
the Yidao Employees and no equity interests
in Hangzhou Yidao will be transferred to the
Yidao Employees after the termination of the
Hangzhou Yidao Cooperation Agreement.

The Group has previously recognised share-based
payment expenses of RMB12,981,000 in aggregate
and imputed interest of RMB1,355,000 in relation
to the share-based payment arrangement
under the Equity incentive - Hangzhou Yidao
Agreement as at 31 December 2016 which were
fully reversed in 2017. As at 31 December 2017,
the cash-setteled option (2016: RMB12,411,000])
and equity-settled portion (2016: RMB1,925,000])
are both nil.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

.ERERKRGDEBEE 2

ERAR—KHWELQF

R2015F78178 - MNZEE BRI AR A A
([MMZR D) (RRARHMBAR  ETBHRER
HEGREABERE) BRPRYEERES
BRAR(TEEBPR]) (MNEINEEZERAR)
REBRE(MMNERNEENRR) FT L ([
BHE - MMNERHBE]D - Bt MEKTMNE
BETHEUBE  MMNE D 5 EIB%H BB
2018F4HAHFINEREBREBEMMZE
WBEREREENMMNERRE ([SREE]) -
M2019F4H30B 2Rl - SR EEEREKE
HARBEREBRERESE - MMNERHEK
BOmMEa20kE ReRELEAARE
22,000,0007T ©

M2017F4 A58 - RERE) - MMNZRHEDE
EEBETH) TR IE - EE20175F4 A58 1F  BER
SHREREBEENMEERE - mRKEMMNEE
AEmEE BrenZEEEHEENMNEDR
o

BZE2016F12H318 » AEE BT AR EZDE —
MMNEEHZE TR AR HERRR M
HHETAHARK12981,000 RIEEF B AR
#1,355,0007T * I B 20174 & & [ - 732017
F12A318 - LB EEZH D (2016F : AR
12,411,0000T) M AR S EH I H (2016F - AR
#1,925,000C) Y BE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

31.RESERVES . E
AEBHEENCERISPHREAESEHES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements there in are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company
Law and the PRC subsidiaries’ articles of
association, each subsidiary registered in
the PRC as a domestic company is required
to appropriate 10% of its annual statutory
net profit as determined under PRC GAAP
(after offsetting any prior years’ losses])
to the statutory surplus reserve. When
the balance of this reserve fund reaches
50% of the entity's capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase capital. However, the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the capital after these usages.

(b) Other reserve

The amount represented the contribution
from Mr. Liu Jian, the controlling
shareholder and director of the Company,
through transferring his 40% equity interest
in Guangdong Zhong Ao, a subsidiary of the
Company, to Mr. Long Weimin and Mr. Liang
Bing, both being directors of the Company
and employees of Guangdong Zhong Ao in
2011.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

31.RESERVES (continued) 3N.#E =)
(c) Special reserve (c) %5 Bl 4

Special reserve mainly represent:(i] capital
contribution amounting to RMB258,000
by Mr. Liu Jian and non-controlling equity
holders for the transfer of 75% and 25%
equity interests in EMEBHEERRER
A 7] ("Guangzhou Maiyue”) to the Group in
April 2015 through structured contracts at
nil considerations; (ii) Mr. Liu Jian had made
further capital contribution to Guangzhou
Maiyue amounting to RMB750,000; (iii) the
obligation in relation to the acquisition
of the remaining 30% equity interests
in ZhejiangYongcheng amounting to
RMB80,630,000 recognised in 2016 and
decreased by RMB13,554,000 due to further
acquisition of the 7.75% equity interests of
Zhejiang Yongcheng at 24 July 2017. (iv] the
Group acquired additional interests in E /!
BIREBEHEBR A A ("Guangzhou Daojia”)
from a non-controlling shareholder. The
difference between the consideration paid
and the adjustment to the non-controlling
interests in Guangzhou Daojia amounting
to RMB4,000 was transferred to special
reserve.

32.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’'s subsidiary that has

RIS X 215() 2015F4 8 Bl 4 R 3E
TRIETFEABBEBESGHNEEITIEA
R #258,0007T © MAA AN & [E 88 3% E )N &
EEREBRAG ([EBMEM]) 75%K%25%
A (NRZEERMEMNBEFIEARE
750,0007T : (iii)20164F F i 32 B8 7 U B8 0T
XK #R T 30%A% 4 1Y & £ A R #80,630,0007T
K ER201757 248 B U BT T 5k 5K 7.75%
P& #E w4 A R #513,554,0007T ¢ K liv)AK &
B ) — 8 eI AR AR U BE BN B R 12 B BHE
ERAR(TEMER] MEEIER - 2R
BEEMBRAOIEIERESTEAE ZHEN
ZEBAREL0TEEEDISRIFHE -

NEBERFERBEENBIERH
B4

AEBHEEERNFEREZNNE QR FEERT

material non-controlling interests are set out PN
below:
2017 2016
20174 20165
Percentage of equity interest held by FE 28 AR HE 25 P 5 AR M
non-controlling interests: ERalsd
Zhejiang Yongcheng ALK K
At 1 January M1 A1H 30% 30%
Decrease in non-controlling interests 4% A& 4 25 8 (7.5%) =
At 31 December M12A31H 22.5% 30%
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32.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARYWITH 322.#EEARFEREZN 2 EE K

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

BT E)

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETT
Profit for the year allocated to DEEIETRERT
non-controlling interests: FRFE
Zhejiang Yongcheng ALK K 8,015 2,433
Decrease in non-controlling interests  JE42 P& 25 > (13,554) =
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R & B HiFFIEIRHEZE A
interests at the reporting date REtEERR 45,935 51,474
The following tables illustrate the summarised TERERIT KK IETABER -
financial information of Zhejiang Yongcheng.
The amounts disclosed are before any Fi e RBAIEARIREH -
inter-company eliminations:
2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREET T
Revenue = 327,950 82,472
Total expenses [ (296,203) (74,675)
Profit and total comprehensive FAFERZERA
income for the year 48 %E 31,747 7,797
Current assets REEE 203,051 170,535
Non-current assets FERBEE 211,936 220,515
Current liabilities mBEE (188,689) (192,538)
Non-current liabilities FnBAE (22,078) (25,718)
Net cash flows from operating activities R B & & F&H
REeREFE 35,217 35,112
Net cash flows from investing activities ~ RE&REFEHH
ReRE 58 898 12,449
Net cash flows used in financing activities g & & & F7 A
RenEFE (15,736) (3,019)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents I]R& RIREHEY
¥ hnF FE 20,379 44,542
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33.BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 July 2017, the Group acquired a 100%
interest in ZEMBEMEERBER QA
("Hongtu”) from two independent persons.
Hongtu is engaged in the provision of property
management services. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand
its market share of property management
operation in the PRC. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash, with RMB6,000,000 paid at the
acquisition date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Hongtu as at the date of acquisition
were as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

BEKEH

R201767R31H REBERAMEBLALTEA
ZEMBEMEERERAT ([ME]) M100%
- BB EREMEXERRY - ZRBIHE
EAEERAEETRMEEREBNTSHER
MRS AT - BARERRE ARY6,000,000
ARSI ASE RN

BERNIKEERNAENEEEGENATFERN
T

2017

20174

RMB’000

ARETx

Property and equipment I EN &L 9
Intangible assets mEAE 40
Cash and bank balances e RIBITES 428
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 481
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIR Ko Ho A e U R IR 6,588
Accruals and other payables FE T B PR B H il JiE < 5RIE (2,476)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFENA B EELFE 5,070
Goodwill on acquisition U Bg z & 930
Satisfied by cash AR & A+ 6,000

The fair values of the trade receivables,
prepayments and other receivables as at the
date of acquisition amounted to RMB481,000
and RMB6,588,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables were RMB848,000 and
RMB6,588,000, respectively, of which trade
receivables of RMB367,000 are expected to be
uncollectible.

B 5 WA - TR RRIE K E Al B UK IR R IR
BHMORQFED R SARKL81,000TEAR
#6,588,000,7T » B 5 F& WK IE o H Al & U 5K 1A
MBS HNTED R A ARKSL8000T kAR
6,588,000T * H 1 & 5 & Y 5/ 1B A R #367,000
ST Y E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

33.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continved)  33. %% & 6f#)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

WE-XMBLARNRESRESTNOT

2017

20175

RMB’000

ARETx

Cash consideration paid ERNEBEeRE (6,000]

Less: cash and bank balances acquired BB AR MR EEYEH 428
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEWR L FET AR

included in cash flows from investing EREGFHNRESRE
activities (5,572)

Since the acquisition, Hongtu contributed
RMB1,547,000 to the Group’'s revenue and
RMB88,000 to the consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the year would

U R - BRNEE2017F12A831B LEERA
REBBB 7 UWzEARM,547,0007T RiFA FIHE
AR #88,0007T °

HMEHBERTEY  AEEAFEE W RAEE
DRl E ANR%979,918,0007T & A K #98,251,000
7T|: °

have been RMB979,918,000 and RMB98,251,000,
respectively.
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34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

UFERERERME

Q) ETBHBRERS

During the year, the carrying amounts of
trade and bills receivables amounting to
RMB8,318,000 (2016: RMB7,447,000) have
been offset as payments for acquisition
of properties and RMB18,089,000 (2016:
RMB45,233,000) of payments for acquisition

FR - BHRBAEREREENEREA
R #8,318,0007T (20164 : A R #7,447,000
T)BEERKEBYENNTRTUAEKSE -
A AR®18,089,0000T (2016 : AR
45,233,00070) WHEM XM N R EBRERE
WMEMTELTMWRSRE -

of properties have been transferred to
investment properties which did not result
in any cashflow.
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from b RETHFELEEBENED
financing activities

Interest
bearing Other
bank long-term
borrowings payable
FTERIT H th &= &Y
EEN JE 1~ kI8
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR®TR ARBTTT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A18 128,948 81,718
Changes from financing cash flows EIEREREMELEH) (25,609) (22,500)
Foreign exchange realignment SN PE 73 B (7,016) -
Interest expense MERX 4,646 6,221
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 100,969 65,439

B.HAEE

R2017F12A8318 AREB T EEAKAEE
(20165 : &) o

35.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities
as of 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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36.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. K& HE&IE

As lessor

The Group leases its properties under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms of five years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with its

ERHAA

AEERBLEEHELRHHERYE  ZSHE
REFNFHRRARF - LEHEMNHER —RITR
EMFPXNRES -

PR EE HEK - R IR SRR S AT S A T S B 2
B AR A B TR E - AR Y R R
WHOREEMT -

tenants falling due as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175 20164
12A31H 12H318
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMBT T AREETT
Within one year —F R 4,370 831
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRF
(BREEREMF) 5,333 -
9,703 831
As lessee EREMEA
The Group leases certain office buildings AEBREBECELHETHERETHAZTETK
and staff dormitories under operating lease ETEE -
arrangements.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group REEBR - IRIBR AT FE 5 B89 1 Al T 8548
had total future minimum lease payments under EHE  AEERRZEEENRBENAT -
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
20175 20165
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR¥ETT
Within one year —F A 5,449 4,280
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF
(BEEREMSF) 12,472 13,876
17,921 18,156
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37.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 36 above, the Group had the
following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et
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37. & RKIE

B b XXPH RE36FT R il MO AR E M E AR SN - RIS
HR REEBUTERAE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Contracted, but not provided for: EEIA - BRAREHRREE -
Acquisition of property and equipment WEMELRZBELHEE
and leasehold improvements MEEE 2,774 2,176

38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES

The related companies/parties with which the
Group had transactions and balances were as
follows:

Name of related parties  Relationship with the Group
Ms. Chen Zhuo A shareholder and director
of the Company

Jointly controlled entity of
the Company

Ningbo Yongdu

(a) Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in the financial statement, the
Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

38.BAEE T X &7 R A Bk

RAREITRSREEREBOBH AT/ A
0 ;

BBLInE £8 REAKENER
ezt ARRBERRES
B R KD ARA AR EHIEE

() A S R 5

BRI MR AR R R 5N - Nk
BEREBSAEUNTRS

2017 2016
20174 20164
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 3 AR T AR®ET T
Rental expenses: HemE
Ms. Chen Zhuo PR 2+ (i) = 9

(i) Ms. Chen Zhuo, a director of the Company,
leased a property to the Group during 2016
for a monthly rent of RMB1,000 and the
transaction terminated in September 2016.
The rental expense was agreed mutually
between Ms. Chen Zhuo and the Group.

(i) 2016FA - AAREERELZTRAAEREE—18
Y% BFAARY,000THEZRZERN2016%F9 A
B eI RE LT BAREBERBE °
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38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to a joint
venture

BEBEAIRZIREERE)
(b) BW "t —REEDEFE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20175 2016
12HA31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBF T
Due to a joint venture B —R& & EERE
Ningbo Yongdu Rk B - 150

Other than as disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, the balances with joint
ventures are included in the prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and other
payable and accruals. The balances with
joint ventures are interest-free, unsecured
and repayable on demand.

(c) Compensation to key management
personnel

The remuneration of key management
personnel during the year was as follows:

R mAMEANREESEIN B2 E
[ B A8 R AT A TR 5RR 1 I At B K
FAREMENRAREFER HBE&ED
XRNEHRARE  BEARAREREE -

(AR TFTEEEEAESNIE

FAXTEEEABNFHMOT

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R AREETT

Short-term employee benefits EHEEERN 15,690 10,869
Post-employment benefits BB 12 A 140 269
Share-based payments &% 17 1~ 3% (12,371) 12,569
3,459 23,707

The remuneration of key management
personnel is determined by reference to
the performance of individuals and market
trend.

TEEEABNFMIIREARRE LTSS
gEx-
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39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

9. &R T H (LEH)

of financial instruments as at the end of the

reporting year are as follows:

31 December 2017

2017512A31H

BT ERA IR

R eMTANREPROKEEDT

Financial assets TREE

Loans and
receivables
BEXRERRE
RMB’000
ARB TR

Financial assets included in prepayment, FFATERRIE - e R EAEUY
deposits and other receivables (note 23) AN E B E E (FEE23) 86,846
Trade and bills receivables (note 22) B 5 W IE R W ER (F5E22) 190,932
Cash and cash equivalents (note 24) ReRkBEeEEY (FiE24) 483,806
761,584

Financial liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERARTE
Hema s
RMB’000
AR® T
Financial liabilities included in other SEAEMMENRENEFTER

payables and accruals (note 26) e r B & (FiaE26) 281,235
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 27) & B iR1TfE K (35E27) 100,969
Trade payables (note 25) B 5 FE I kI8 (i 7E25) 44,965
Other payables for option H b BA#E FE 15 58 65,439
492,608
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39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY /(continued)

31 December 2016

.eMIT R GRER) &)

2016512H31H

Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables
b7 G/NS |
FFAIBZER Bk
TREE JE W kI8
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR®ET T
Financial assets designated as at fair BT AL ATFERTA
value through profit or loss BEamamEE 2,550 -
Financial assets included in FTATERFRIE - e Rk
prepayment, deposits and other H fth & R IA B
receivables (note 23) R & E (fTFE23) S 51,306
Trade and bills receivables (note 22) B 5 W IE R KRR
(Mft3E22) - 159,373
Cash and cash equivalents (note 24) ReERBEEY
(B aE24) - 442,473
2,550 653,152
Financial liabilities cRtaE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

BB HEKAGTE

200

WEeRasE
RMB'000
AR T

Financial liabilities included in other AR SRR R BB
payables and accruals (note 26) B e r B & (FiaE26) 253,628
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 27) 5 B RITER (MI5E27) 128,948
Trade payables (note 25) B 5 M kI8 (i 7E25) 36,575
Other payables for option H fth HA 4 & 1< SRR 81,718
500,869
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupy R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE NEMTANAFERAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the MREMEEAFTEAEEENSR T AN K&
Group's financial instruments, other than Eem T ANKREAERAFENT

those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
Carrying
amount Fair value
BREE AFE
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

P = AR®T T ARBT T

Financial liabilities TREE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t S8R 1T1E 5K 27 77,969 82,414
Other payables for option E ) HA e JE A< SR IE 65,439 65,439
143,408 147,853
31 December 2016 2016%F12A31H
Carrying
amount Fair value
BREE NFE
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt & ARBT T ARMET T
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets designated as at 1§ E AEAFEA
fair value through profit or loss BENEeREE 2,550 2,550
Financial liabilities TRAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &H 2R 1T{EK 27 128,948 128,948
Other payables for option E {h BA #E JE < FRIE 81,718 81,718
210,666 210,666
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS /continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale investments
was based on quotation from bank. The
fair values of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
long-term payable have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings and
other long-term payable as at 31 December
2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

Management has assessed that other long-term
payable approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the fact that these borrowings are
made between the Group and non-controlling
equity holders of a subsidiary based on
prevailing market interest rates.

Management has also assessed that the fair
values of the Group’s other current financial
instruments approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The
finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the board of directors. At
each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the board of directors once a
year for annual financial reporting.

NETMMITENAFERATFEEBHK &)

FERENAFENBITRERBER - ;T B8R
BREEMRBEMNRBERDDZOOHAFED
FREBUKSR EERREBTERBARZT
BERBZITREB MG ARRERENEMAE -
R2017F128318 - AEE 2 BRITERRE
thREMFIENTEYRRETIEATAERX -

EEECHEEMRABRMNFRBENAFEEER
HERE  TEARRSEFIALSEE—ZH

BARMFERER RS ARRRITHISHRAE
ILI——ll o

EERENCHE  AREEMRIEHTANR
FEEEEEERS  TEARZSTAENIHY
HAEABEEMRE -

AEBUMBRERENUBHEEETSRT
ARFEAENBRELER MBEEEERY
BREREEERE NEBRSEHY UKHE
IMEMTANEEEHIEETHERERNT
EHABE HEHMBAERL XBF K
HESENFREVHRERIRGERFRE




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets/liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed:

As at 31 December 2017

NETMMITENAFERATFEEBHK &)

AFEER
TERMPAEESBIANAFEFBER

AFEERENEE BE:

20179128318

Liabilities &8E
Fair value measurement using
ERAATRBNATFETE
Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME EAXTBRE EATTE
KR E BABE ZEBARE
(B—FE) (E=F) (B5=F8) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTH AR¥Tn ARWTR AR¥TR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & 2 RTER - - 82,414 82,414
Other payables for option Ho A H PR (5B - - 65,439 65,439
- - 147,853 147,853
As at 31 December 2016 7R2016F12A31H
Assets BE
Fair value measurement using
ERUTHENORAFEHE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3] Total
mBMS  EAUERE EATAH
¥R (E BAHRE ERAZE
(£-B) (2=F) (2=F) o3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
AREFT AR¥TR ARETT ARETn
Financial assets designated asat ¥ AR A FEA
fair value through profit or loss BalemEE - - 2,550 2,550
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40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets/liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed: /continued]

NETMMITENAFERATFEEBHK &)

DV ERBR @)
ATEHERENEE &E: (&)

Liabilities =N
Fair value measurement using
FRNTEENATEHNE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERMS  EAUEBEE EATAE

KRB BARE THAZE
(F—E) (B=E) (=) aat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFL ARBFLT ARBTLT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & £ 3R1TE - = 128,948 128,948
Other payables for option Ho A H R PR (T 5RIE - - 81,718 81,718
- - 210,666 210,666

During the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has entered into structured deposit
contracts amounting to RMB2,550,000 with
banks. The principal amount was guaranteed
but the return was not guaranteed by the
bank. The contract has been classified as at
financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.
The expected return rate stated in the contract
ranged from 1.7% to 3.7% per annum for the
year ended 31 December 2016. In the opinion
of the management of the Group, the fair value
of the structured deposit at 31 December 2016
approximated their principal amount.

REZE2017FE N2016F12A3MBIEFEER i &
MEEMCRHEBEMS  FEHF_E2HEL
ENFLEAEER E-EBNEQAFTEFEEA
s o

B E2016F12A3MBLLFERN  AEEHEIEITH
VTHBETREY - BEEARK2550,0007T °
RITREBEASHEATRELR - %A LR VA HE
REDERETAERLATETABENERHEE -
BHMEE2016F12A31H I FEEH M FEEE
MENTEF1.7%E3.7% - NEBEREERE
EHETRN2016F12A3 BN A FERELRE
BRAE -
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41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include
financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing bank borrowings
and a long-term payable.

The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's
financial instruments are interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s bank borrowings set out in note 27.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M et

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

NEtrmBEBEEEERBRE

AEENERTRABEEERRAFEFARRE
MeEMEE RELReFEY  FRRITEX
KRB ROR -

ZETRTANIZEANRR/AKRENZEER
B AKBEBEZHAGBESREERERE 1
EERRBEEENBIRUKEMERREERES
e 3R -

AEESBTAEENEEARAFEAR - 5
AR EERREADECAR EEELE
EHTFETR LSRR OBE A WEEESE
mF -

M=EERE

REBFAENTENZEHEG
FIEANEEMRITERER -

B Y 27

TRHIIEA KA A A BT AT A BT
BRSO ER T - A B B AT S (A L 8
FIRERNTE) OB -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax

2y B % A0 A

E#/(FE) #m,/ Chid)

RMB’000

AR¥T T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A3NBIEFE 50 (454)
(50) 454

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE2016F12A3NBILFE 50 (389)
(50) 389

PRIAKEEERAF | 2017 F]H

205




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IS A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT NEREREEEERBEE #)

206

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

[continued]
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and nearly all transactions are conducted
in RMB. All of the Group's assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for those
owned by the Company and certain subsidiaries
which are denominated in USD and HKD.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
at the end of the reporting period to a
reasonably possible change in the USD and HKD
exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).

S L B

AREBOEBLURTE AN - BEFRERHMN
ARBET AEBMBEERBBEUIARKEF
B HEHARRRETHEARMEREART
KA TTRHERRIN ©

TROUBRBEBRETRATERN AT
BBTHAALMERIRETENERT - A%
BB GRS (AEEERAENATEED
T 2. H SR -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
USD/HKD in profit

rate before tax
EnHBTER BR B AT F 8
EH/(TR) @,/ Chd)
% RMB’000

% ARET

2017 20174

If the USD weakens against the RMB EETAAREES 10% (5,894)
If the USD strengthens against the RMB EETRAAREER (10%) 5,894
If the HKD weakens against the RMB ERTHAREES 10% (3,953)
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB BERTHAREER (10%) 3,953
2016 20165

If the USD weakens against the RMB EETAAREES 10% (4,668)
If the USD strengthens against the RMB HEETAAREER (10%) 4,668
If the HKD weakens against the RMB BERTHAREES 10% (2,446)
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB BEATHAREHE R (10%]) 2,446

Credit risk FERR

There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group. The credit risk
of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, long-term
deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, an amounts due from
non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary,
arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.
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41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT NEREREEEERBEE #)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

[continued]
Liquidity risk REE SRR
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance AEEMNBER J«Au‘l'é'fﬁfﬂiat%’\z’ﬁ—rﬁﬁﬁ E 1%
between continuity of funding and flexibility REEUENTE REREBEIHETINER -
through the use of interest-bearing bank
borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored
on an ongoing basis.
The maturity profile of the Group’'s financial REERREARBBEITNERTRNRO S
liabilities as at the end of reporting period, BEENIHAMRRNT
based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5years Total
35
REX  HWfER M2f8 A 125% SELLE st

31 December 2017 175128318 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARNTR  ARETn  ARET:R

Interest-bearing hank FTERITRER
borrowings - 736 44,823 63,023 - 108,582
Trade payables BHENFE - 44,965 - - = 44,965
Other payables and accruals Z b ENFHIARE EF 20,524 260,711 - - - 281,235
Other payables for option ~ Efh SR [HE - - 22,500 45,000 - 67,500
20,524 306,412 67,323 108,023 - 502,282
Lessthan 3 to less than Ttob Over
On demand 3'months 12 months years byears Total
Y
FEX SRR 20 A 1256 SELLE it
31 December 2016 2016F12A31A RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETr ARBTn  AR%TR  ARETr  AR¥TR
Interest-bearing bank SERTER
borrowings - 3,017 49,689 100,852 - 153,558
Trade payables BHENFTE = 36,575 = = = 36,575
Other payables and accruals EtEMFIAREEF 38,267 215,361 - - - 253,628
Liabilities for cash-settled MR £EEHRH
share-based payments  FAFKEE - - 22,000 - - 22,000
Other payables for option  E ffy Ej g [E {7 5008 = = 22,500 67,500 = 90,000
BT 256953 %189 16835 - S
Capital management EXERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital ZKE EEAEENEERESBRRAEEEMNT
management are to safeguard the Group's ability BREEBNREEENEARL X EUSEH
to continue as a going concern and to maintain %ﬁ&?ﬁ?ﬁf;hﬂ‘ﬁxﬁﬁﬁ

healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.
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41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

[continued]

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by the adjusted
capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank borrowings, amounts due
to non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary
and due to a joint venture less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable
to owners of the parent. The gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods were as

cREAREEBEREE ®)

AEBREBLERDECRBBEENRBRER
EEEEALBREHARE BAREXFABER
iR AEBETREAEARIREZRE MR
RIREBERKETHR - XEBEBERE ERIN
EHEmmEARER - REZE2017F12A318 K&
E2016F12A3MBIEFEARN  EREANBERZE -
BREKBFIEEE -

AEENEERBLEREREN - AELEXRE
HFRERAKEABREANNERFE - BHFHRE
EAHEBRITER BN — KW E AR IR E S
FEANRERBN -—RAEEEFBRRE R
ReEEY BEABREESRBHER ARERER -
RBEMRWEERBLLRANT

follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR AREETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITE R (FFE27)
(note 27) 100,969 128,948
Amounts due to non-controlling equity B — KB QA
holders of a subsidiary (note 26) EERERTEA
R IR (K EE26) 5,033 21,684
Due to a joint ventures (note 26) B —KG & BENIE
(K3E26) - 150
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRBEEEY (483,806) (442,473)
Net debt BIRFE (377,804) (291,691)
Total equity TR 546,693 443,446
Gearing ratio BEBEBELX N/A N/A
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42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R Bt

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE

42,751 B) B 7R OR &/

position of the Company at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

BERARRNBEHRNMBARKOEHDT -

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
20174 20164
12831H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR¥F T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—KWBRANIEE 95,049 95,410
Due from subsidiaries JiE U B B A R FRIA 351,821 358,238
Total non-current assets IERBEEBLE 446,870 453,648
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - Re REME
receivables W #k 18 228 43
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBAEEEY 76,974 98,043
Total current assets MENEELE 77,202 98,086
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Due to subsidiaries JERT B A R FIE 4,585 19,119
Other payables and accruals H fth F& A 5RIE R E 5T B 188 3,071
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER 19,276 20,194
Total current liabilities mEaEER 24,049 42,384
NET CURRENT ASSETS nEEEFE 53,153 55,702
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDEE
LIABILITIES 500,023 509,350
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITER 58,693 83,424
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERRE 58,693 83,424
NET ASSETS EEFE 441,330 425,926
EQUITY i
Share capital A% 2 6,619 6,549
Other reserves (note) H b 748 (B %) 434,711 419,377
TOTAL EQUITY ERARE 441,330 425,926
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H LFE

.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL L2. DB B RN T ()
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
[continued]
Note: B &
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARHERENT :
Capital Share
Treasury Share  redemption option  Accumulated
shares premium reserve reserve losses Total
ERRG RGEE EXBERE  BRERE ZHER i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1/18 - 470,479 - 14,630 (44,490) 440,619
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - 5 7414 7414
Shares repurchased and cancelled BELREERD - (5,554) 45 - (45) (5,554)
Shares repurchased but not cancelled ~ 2ERERFHRH (3) (393) - - - (396)
Dividend RE = (31,051) s = s 31,051)
Recognition of equity-settled ERNEREEHRHAR
shared-based payments - - - 12,701 - 12,701
Share options lapsed BRERE - - - 4,356) = (4,356)
At 31 December 2016 and R0165128318
1 January 2017 R2017F1 18 (3 433,481 45 22975 (37,121) 419,377
Profit for the year FRFIE - - - 5 12,904 12,904
Shares cancelled BiERG 3 - 3 - - 6
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREEHBRHNR
share-based payments - 5,653 - 2,486 - 8,139
Share options forfeited BRI R - - 5 (5,715) - (5,715)
At31 December 2017 RNTE12A A - 439,13 i 19,746 27

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited after the
vesting day.
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43.

44,

45,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the balance sheet date on 29
January 2018, the Group entered into an equity
purchase agreement with an individual to
acquire certain entities engaging in the business
of provision of cleaning and land scaping
services for communities at an aggregation
consideration of RMB25,000,000. The acquisition
has not been completed as at the date of this
report and is subject to fulfillment of conditions.

At 27 March 2018, the board of directors
resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK5 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 4 June
2018, making the total dividend payment of
approximately HKD40.6 million. Subject to the
approval by the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company (the "AGM”], the final dividend
is expected to be payable on or about 15 June
2018. The aggregate amount shall be paid out
of the Company’'s share premium account if
the payment of the dividend is approved by the
shareholders at the AGM.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in Note 4 to the financial
statements, due to the correction of errors
in the prior period, certain prior period
adjustments have been made, and certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified
and restated and presentation of certain items
and balances in the financial statements have
been restated.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 March 2018.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017512A31H L FE
HREHEEER

43.

44,

45.

BEEREN2018F1A298 AEBEE - A
TRV BRREEHRANBE TRELRBER
ERRGHER - @RERARY?25000,0007T
U ATRE B H R TR BRI S RfHE
RAERTTAIER ©

MR2018F3H27H  EE L H AL E E2017F12
A318 It F E IR R A% B & A%5.0%8 1L 72018
FOALBRINARRREAMAMKRE  BRE
NRHOARELLABIL - FARRBREEAR
AEERRAFTFAT ((BRREFAT]) LiLE
% FEHAK BAR% B AT 201846 158 5 AT 18 Ik
e iR IR B R R ERE BT RG LHE -
BEREE A AR ARG R ERP BN -

o %ok

RIS AR M REAPTE — SRR - NI HIE 88
AEIE BELETAHHARE ETHRE®ET
NEHMDERES - MBHRERFPETHEE RER
BB -

MBHRR A E

BISER KX 2 M2018F3H27TH K E = G #LE kX
RETE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MTF I E

For the five years ended 31 December 2017 B £2017F12A31H L EBFE

212

Results 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
E4 2013% 165 2015% 2165 2017
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB’000)
(ARETn) (ARBTR) (ARETn) (ARETR) (AR¥TR)
Revenue It 290,276 361,202 420,155 635,146 977,552
Cost of sales HEMA (212,352) (240,491) (280,067) (478,408) (680,715)
Gross profit i 77,924 120,711 140,088 156,738 296,837
Other income and gains Ei A RYE 1,481 3,155 1,467 23,309 20,617
Other gains and losses EbmREE (9,381) (16,328) (4,019) - -
Change in fair value of financial BERERTFERA
liabilities designated as at fair BREMEREREN
value through profit or loss ATEZD - - (6,343) 5 -
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAY (3,413) 3,765) (7,615) (29,450) (6,394)
Administrative expenses TBREY (19,852) (21,472) (51,002) (99,675) (115,121)
Share of profits and losses of: EATHERER -
Joint Ventures AEt¥ - (98] 23 2,148 2,645
Associates L YN (424) (670) - - (111)
Other expenses HibH s - - - (24,109) (39,754)
Finance costs BB - (5) (1,572) (4,705) (9,512)
Listing expenses Baiilha - (3,980) (35,881) 5 -
Profit before tax B 54 A 1 46,335 77548 35,366 24,256 149,207
Income tax expenses FERAEY (13,265) (21,650) (24,753) (27,608) (49,919)
Profit (loss] for the year FRENB(EE) 33,070 55,898 10,613 (3,352) 99,288
Assets and liabilities 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
BEREE 2135F 20145 20155 216F 20175
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB’000)
(ARETT) (ARETm) (AR®Tm) (ARE¥1m) (ARETR)
(Restated*)
(EE5*)
Non-current assets FrREEE 29,830 73,391 92,580 437,945 448,519
Current assets TBEE 167,768 205,653 618,253 678,256 787,852
Total assets BEE 197,418 279,044 710,833 1,116,201 1,236,371
Current liabilities RBAE 144,627 173,766 196,541 487,991 561,642
Non-current liabilities FRBAR - 9,639 12,555 184,764 128,036
Total liabilities agE 144,627 183,405 209,096 672,755 689,678
Net assets BEFE 52,991 95,639 501,737 443,446 546,693

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2017




FREIEXKFEAFRLT

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



